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Chairman’s Statement
EKERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and all of
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or “we"”), | present the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)"”).

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND
ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2022, domestic GDP reached 121.02 trillion, representing an
increase of 3.0%. The domestic economy has maintained the
momentum of recovery, which has been faster than that of most
major economies. In 2020 and 2021, after a series of breakthroughs
of 100 trillion and 110 trillion, China’s economic growth has leapt to
a new level.

According to public information from the China Development and
Reform Commission (“NDRC") and the National Bureau of Statistic:
In 2022, natural gas production was approximately 217.8 billion m3,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.7%; natural gas imports
were 109 million tons, representing a year-on-year decrease of
9.9%; natural gas apparent consumption was 366.3 billion m3,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.7%. In 2022, China’s
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG") production was 48.67 million tons,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.1%; the total retail sales
of social consumer goods were approximately RMB43.97 trillion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.2%.

With the joint efforts of the management and all employees, the
Group recorded the piped gas sales of 383.99 million m? for the
Year, representing an increase of 13.07% as compared to last year;
the cylinder gas sales of 99,717 tons for the Year, representing a
decrease of 36.97% as compared to the Corresponding Period Last
Year.

The annual revenue for the Year was approximately RMB2,868
million, representing an increase as compared to the last year.
Affected by the epidemic, the economy and the crude oil prices, the
profit for the Year dropped to RMB59 million.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

By ensuring the stability of the financial position, the Group carefully
utilises fund for reasonable investment and seizes the opportunity
of business development. As at 31 December 2022, the debt-to-
capitalisation ratio of the Group, representing the ratio of total
borrowings to total borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, was 2.79% (2021: 3.30%).

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
INDUSTRY

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

Facing the continuous impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, although
China’s natural gas industry confronted challenges, the basic
conditions and supporting factors that promote the coordinated
and stable development of the natural gas industry have not
changed, and the overall tone of the sustained and steady
development of natural gas industry remains unchanged. Affected
by the international energy crisis in 2022, the natural gas price has
been remained at a high level which lost its competitiveness. As
downstream users turned to other energy, the apparent consumption
of natural gas has decreased in recent decades for the first time.

“Dual Carbon” target leads domestic energy transformation and
acceleration, and dual control over energy and air pollution leads to
the growth of natural gas and the replacement of inventory. In order
to implement the major strategic deployment of the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council on carbon neutrality, the Ministry
of Science and Technology and other nine ministries have formulated
the Plan for Supporting Carbon Neutrality and Implementation by
Science and Technology ( (Bl ZEREERFMEETE) ),
which fully plays the supporting role of science and technology
innovation, makes overall plans to advance industrialization and
urbanization, reduces carbon emissions in the fields of energy,
industry, urban and rural construction and transportation, drives
the orderly substitution of fossil energy, and promotes the safe and
efficient transformation of energy, green and low-carbon. Given
the high-quality development of natural gas industry, the Group
forged ahead to ensure the safety, efficiency and sustainability of our
customers’ gas consumption. Supported by favorable policies such as
energy reform and development plan under “Dual Carbon” targets,
the Group's strategic development objectives for the natural gas
industry will be reinforced in the future. The Group will also continue
to expand its market share in the natural gas industry, fully integrate
its development strategies and objectives such as low carbonisation
and clean energy to develop the piped gas industry in a healthier and
safer manner.
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Chairman'’s Statement
EEHRS

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Cylinder gas business

The promotion of low-carbon economy has brought brand new
development and opportunity to the gas industry, but affected by
the competitiveness of natural gas and other clean energy, canned
gas business opportunities and challenges coexist. Driven by the
favorable policy, the Group’s canned gas business combines its
nature of convenience and flexibility to complement the Group's
pipeline gas market niche. It will also proactively help expanding
the market coverage of canned gas business in the future, seize the
“Dual Carbon” target and the market opportunity of energy clean-
up reform, expand the market scale, optimize the business model
of canned gas business, provide convenient and efficient services to
customers and enhance market competitiveness.

Gas Distribution Business

With the completion of several overseas natural gas pipeline
projects, China has completed the construction of four major
natural gas import channels in the northwest, northeast, southwest
and southeast, and a diversified pattern of natural gas import has
basically been formed. The Group has also thoroughly implemented
the various decisions and deployments of the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council on the natural gas industry as
well as the “Six Stabilities” and “Six Guarantees”, and has complied
with the new energy security strategy of “Four Revolutions, One
Cooperation” to seize the market opportunities and demands
brought about by the energy revolution.

In 2022, the risk of Covid-19 and impact of international
circumstances led to significant impact on global natural gas
supply and demand. The volatility of natural gas prices increased
significantly, presenting both opportunities and challenges for the
future development of the natural gas market. The Group has laid
solid foundation for natural gas trading, expanded into new markets
for gas distribution, diversified gas distribution business to strengthen
it development base and ensure steady growth in sales volume.
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REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

The FMCG supply business

In 2022, facing the impact of unexpected factors in economic
performance, all regions and departments effectively coordinated the
prevention and control of the epidemic and the economic and social
development, promoted the effective and vigorous consumption
promotion policies, maintained the recovery momentum of the
consumer market, maintained a relatively rapid development of new
consumption patterns, and recorded a good growth of necessary
commodities. The Group was actively engaged in online retail
business and offline physical stores, optimized industry service,
expanded into market gaps. The combination of community
supermarket and convenience store also broadened the consumer
base. In the future, we will continue to optimise our product range
of FMCG supply business to provide quality products and diversified
services to community residents and mobile consumers, so that our
FMCG supply business can become more professional and branded.
Affected by the epidemic and the situation of world economy and
trade, China is speeding up its digital development, and using big
data to understand customers’ needs, thereby optimising its own
products and providing a more personalised, convenient and high-
quality consumer experience. In the future, the Group will also
actively make innovation in FMCG supply business to build a more
influential and competitive brand.

The food ingredients supply business

Since the pandemic, when the outbreak was severe, the catering
industry was hit hard, the supply of fresh ingredients was also
affected. But the future was full of opportunities. After the
pandemic, consumers will pay more attention to food safety issues,
and market regulation will pay more attention to food safety
supervision. As the government continues to strengthen supervision
on food safety, coupled with the accelerated development of
information technology in catering industry, the demand for supply
chains from catering companies has naturally increased. Faced with
the increasingly competitive market environment, innovation is one
of the most favorable weapons to win the market. In recent years,
with the continuous improvement of people’s living standards and
the diversification of food consumption structure, the Group actively
responded to the market by integrating the innovation of Internet
technology with the information of consumer market to carry out
unified information management of the procurement, storage,
transportation, sorting, and delivery activities involved in the industry
chain, continuously upgrade and improve every step of the food
ingredients supply chain based on the market demands, strengthen
quality awareness and increase consumers’ trust.
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Chairman'’s Statement
EEHRS

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Looking forward, the Group will maintain its focus on the
development in the field of people’s livelihood, fully respond to
national policies, seize market opportunities, and tap the potential
of industrial and commercial customers while strengthening the
development of residential household customer connection. The
Group will fully leverage the Internet technology to optimize piped
gas transmission and distribution business and cylinder gas supply
business model, providing customers with convenient and efficient
services and enhancing market competitiveness. The Group will
gradually boost the FMCG and food ingredients supply business
through online and offline operations, utilise Internet technology to
expand the scope and increase the income of the FMCG and food
ingredients supply business, achieving diversification in the Group's
income and creating higher benefits for Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the staunch
support of all Shareholders and the community over the Year.

Dr. Mo Shikang
Chairman
Beijing, 31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), under the
leadership of the directors (“Director(s)”) and management of the
Company, all of our staff executed the development strategies of the
Group seriously, thus successfully achieving the business goals for the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately RMB2,868
million (2021: RMB2,732 million), while profit for the Year was
approximately RMB59 million (2021: RMB187 million). Basic earnings
per share was RMBO0.37 cents (2021: RMB1.88 cents). The overall
gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was 10.11% (2021:
14.01%), representing a decrease of 3.90 percentage points as
compared with 2021. The overall gross profit margin of the Group
decreased during the Year, which was due to the increase in the
cost of gases as a result of the impact of the pandemic and crude oil
prices.

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

The piped gas transmission and distribution business mainly
relies on the gas pipeline which were built by the Group to
transport flammable gas fuels to end-users. The Group’s piped gas
transmission and distribution business is categorised into piped gas
connection and piped gas sales. Natural gas is the main gas supply
of the Group's piped gas transmission and distribution business. As
a clean energy, natural gas can help to improve the environmental
pollution problem and simultaneously it has the advantages of safety,
high unit heat value and low price. It has become an important
development direction of international clean energy.

Piped gas transmission and distribution business is our main business
and our main source of income. During the Year, revenue of
approximately RMB954 million (2021: RMB953 million) was recorded
from our provision of piped gas transmission and distribution
business, which accounted for approximately 33.28% (2021:
34.89%) of our total revenue. The overall gross profit margin of
piped gas transmission and distribution business for the Year was
approximately 12.82% (2021: 22.69%). During the Year, the gross
profit margin slightly decreased due to the dual effects of increase
in the cost of gases and decrease in the gross profit margin of
connection fee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business (Continued)

Piped Gas Connection

During the Year, revenue from piped gas connection was
approximately RMB120 million (2021: RMB154 million). Revenue
from piped gas connection represented approximately 12.61%
(2021: 16.18%) of the total revenue of the piped gas transmission
and distribution business. The gross profit margin of piped gas
connection fee for the Year was approximately 50.53% (2021:
63.45%). During the Year, our subsidiary companies had an addition
of 31,435 units of residential household customers and 686 units
of commercial and industrial customers, respectively. At the end of
the Year, our subsidiary companies had an accumulated number
of connected residential household customers and commercial and
industrial customers of 538,355 units and 11,529 units respectively,
representing a growth of approximately 6.20% and 6.33% over that
of 2021, respectively. Due to the impact of the pandemic, the overall
connection rate and gross profit of the Group's piped gas projects
recorded a decrease during the Year.

Piped Gas Sales

During the Year, revenue from piped gas sales was approximately
RMB834 million (2021: RMB799 million). Revenue from piped gas
sales accounted for approximately 87.39% (2021: 83.82%) of the
total revenue from the piped gas business. The gross profit margin
of piped gas sales was 7.38% (2021: 12.94%). During the Year, our
sales volume of piped gas from subsidiary companies was 383.99
million m3, among the total sales, 117.64 million m* (2021: 111.14
(revised) million m3) were sold to residential household customers;
266.35 million m? (2021: 228.46 (revised) million m3) were sold to
commercial and industrial customers. During the Year, the piped gas
sales business stayed stable while the reduction in gross profit margin
led to drop in profit.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2022 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2022)

RAFE EERTERBIRAHNAREI20E
L (2021F : AREE154ETT) EEBRAERS
WALE B R B TEBIALI12.61% (2021
F:16.18% ) NAFE MIERENENEX
,%’950.53t)/o(2021¢-6345%) RAEFE B
MEARDRIMIEEEERAF31,435F « #11%
BERIHEMAF636F -MNAFEER  LMMBA
RS R 25t E# B ERMF538,355F 25 2
BERIMmERAF11,529F  82021F 5 5l 14
620%&6 33% - AFE RRBFELE AEEHE
ERREENEREREEMNT K-

EEMTIHE

REAFE EERABEERADARES34E
TTQR021F: ARB799ET) EEMRREE
I AL E & %ﬁ%i‘%w&)\w 39% (20214 :
83.82% ) - EE MR IHE EF EH7.38% (2021
F:12.94% ) cRAFE  BMMBATRERE
ERAEES383998 Y Hk HF AERAF
HEEBEBMRA11,7648 3 77K (20214 : 11,114
BUAKUER) ) MIBERFPHEEETERR
26,6358 37 /72K (20214 : 22,8468 37 77 K (&
) AFE BEEMRAEEEBRIEITLE K
EF R T AE TR A



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS RE\/l EW (Continued)

Cylinder Gas Supply Business

Cylinder gas supply business is another major business of the Group.
Currently, the Group’s cylinder gas supply business is mainly the sales
of liquefied natural gas (LNG), liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), and
liquefied dimethyl ether (DME). During the Year, while maintaining
established customers, we actively developed new users and
expanded the sales market.

During the year, our subsidiaries sold a total of 99,717 tons of
cylinder gas (2021: 158,210 tons), which contributed a total sales
revenue of approximately RMB744 million (2021: RMB895 million).
During the Year, revenue from cylinder gas supply business accounted
for approximately 25.93% (2021: 32.78%) of our total revenue. The
gross profit margin of cylinder gas supply business was approximately
19.76% (2021: 16.46%). During the Year, affected by the epidemic
and the cost grew up, user demand decreased, at the same time,
certain businesses with low gross profit margins were suspended,
resulting in a decline in sales volume and revenue, and the gross
profit margin was adjusted accordingly.

Gas Distribution Business

During the year, our subsidiary companies in the gas distribution
business sold a total of 182,939 tons of gas (2021: 184,213 tons),
which contributed a total sales revenue of approximately RMB1,051
million (2021: RMB775 million). During the Year, gas sales volume
decreased slightly by approximately 0.69% and revenue increased
by approximately 35.61% as compared with 2021. During the Year,
the gas distribution business accounted for approximately 36.66%
(2021: 28.37%) of our total revenue. The gross profit margin of gas
distribution was approximately 0.70% (2021: 0.76%). During the
Year, the Group continued to develop and serve customers. However,
due to the influence of the gases market, both purchase and sales
prices rose up, resulting in the slightly downward adjustment to the
gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Fast-moving Consumer Good (“FMCG") and Food Ingredients
Supply Business

The FMCG and food ingredients supply business is the new
business vigorously developed by the Group in recent years. The
food ingredients supply business is mainly a one-stop service
providing to commercial consumers through the combination of
online and offline operations, supplying fruits and vegetables, fresh
produce, seasoning, dry foods and oil and other ingredients. The
FMCG business is mainly comprised of the chain of community
supermarket and convenience stores. The consumer group targeted
by the community supermarket is mainly the residents community
population. The community supermarket provides convenient
goods and services for the fixed community residents through the
combination of online and offline operations; the convenience stores
chain is aimed at the consumer group which is a mobile population,
and provides goods and services that are convenient for the mobile
population by selling FMCG.

During the Year, the FMCG and food ingredients supply business
realised revenue of approximately RMB119 million (2021: RMB108
million), accounting for approximately 4.13% (2021: 3.96%) of the
Groups total revenue. We have been optimizing various sections
under food ingredients supply and FMCG business including cost
controlling and improving gross profit. However, the net loss has
increased compared to that of 2021 due to mainly increase in
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
during the Year.

Impairment losses under the expected credit loss model, net of
reversal

Impairment losses under the expected credit loss model, net of
reversal, amounted to loss approximately RMB1,401,000 (2021: loss
RMB62,000), representing an increase approximately RMB1,339,000.
The reason was mainly attributable to increase in expected credit
loss.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses for the Year amounted to loss approximately
RMB21,697,000 (2021: loss RMB19,410,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB2,287,000. Such increase was mainly
due to the impact of the provision for the impairment loss recognised
in respect of property, plant and equipment and righ-of-use assets as
compared to that of 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REV'EW (Continued)

Other Income

Other income for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB47,502,000 (2021: RMB44,836,000), represented an increase of
approximately RMB2,666,000. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase of rental and sales of gas appliances, net.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB3,518,000
(2021: RMB6,935,000), represented a decrease of approximately
RMB3,417,000. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease of
interest on bank borrowings during the Year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB152,814,000 (2021: RMB159,813,000),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB6,999,000, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in staff costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB102,739,000 (2021: RMB126,085,000), representing a decrease
of approximately RMB23,346,000, which was mainly due to decrease
in depreciation of right-of-use assets and decrease in staffs cost.

Share of Results of Associates

Share of results of the associates for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB15,264,000 (2021: RMB15,629,000), represented
a slightly decrease of approximately RMB365,000. Such slightly
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in net profit
generated by the Company’s associates.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures

Share of results of joint ventures for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB4,159,000 (2021: RMB53,698,000), represented
a huge decrease of approximately RMB49,539,000. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in net profit generated by the
Company’s joint ventures as a result of decrease in gross profit of the
Company'’s joint ventures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

B US'N ESS REV' EV\/ (Continued)

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB16,073,000 (2021: credit RMB2,543,000), represented an
increase of approximately RMB18,616,000. Such increase was mainly
attributable to have less over provision in current year.

Increase and Decrease of Projects during the Year

Details of increased and decreased projects is set out in note 39, 40
and 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the consolidated financial position of the
Group is as follows:

Currently, the sources of the operating and capital expenditure of
the Group are operating cash flow, internal current capital, and bank
borrowings. The Group has sufficient funds to meet future capital
expenditures and operational needs.

Borrowing Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the total borrowings of the Group
were approximately RMB85,520,000 (2021: RMB100,250,000),
which comprised domestic bank borrowings denominated in RMB
of the project companies in China. Bank borrowings (in which
interest is calculated by reference to the interest rate announced
by the People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points) are
mainly applied to gas pipelines construction, as general working
capital and for operating expenses. Apart from the borrowings of
approximately RMB67,000,000 (2021: RMB48,250,000) which were
secured by certain assets with carrying amount of approximately
RMB67,098,000 (2021: RMB67,251,000), others were unsecured.
Short-term borrowings amounted to approximately RMB85,020,000
(2021: RMB77,000,000), while others were long-term borrowings
due after one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

The long-term capital of the Group comprised equity attributable to
owners and borrowings, which was confirmed by the sound debt-to-
capitalisation ratio.

Foreign Exchange risk

As all of our operations are in China and substantially all of its
revenue and expenses are denominated in Renminbi, there was no
significant foreign exchange risk in its operation. We currently do not
have foreign currency hedging policy but monitor the market trends
of exchange rates closely, and adopt appropriate measures when
necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities is set out in note 48 of this report.

Employees

For the year ended 31 December 2022, we had approximately 4,700
employees (including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures),
most of them were resided in Mainland China. The employees’
salaries are determined from time to time with reference to their
duties and responsibilities, business performance of the Group and
profitability and market conditions. In addition to pension funds,
individual employees may be granted discretionary bonus and/or
share options as rewards for their outstanding performance.

Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

We adhere to pursue long-term sustainable development in
the communities in which our business and operations located.
We understand the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders (such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public) when making business decisions. We will continue to advance
in corporate governance, energy conservation, remuneration of
employees, general social welfare and etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Social Environment Protection

As a responsible clean energy distributor, we are committed to the
promotion and the use of clean energy in order to minimise the
environmental damage caused by energy demand for economic
development. Through the construction of urban-gas distribution
network, we encourage commercial and industrial customers and
residential households to replace high polluting coal and oil with
clean energy, and vigorously promote the “Coal to Gas” project.
Coal-fired boilers are replaced by natural gas boilers to reduce
pollutant emission.

Cooperate to Fight the Epidemic

At the beginning of 2020, the COVID-19 pneumonia epidemic has
been spreading throughout the country, with a grim situation of
epidemic prevention and control. As an enterprise caring people’s
livelihood, the Group has proactively responded to and coordinated
with the society to fight the epidemic since the outbreak, and
therefore committed to the social responsibility of listed companies.

In order to cooperate in the prevention and control of the epidemic,
the Group has printed and distributed documents such as the
“Notice on Doing a Good Job in the Prevention and Control for the
COVID-19 Pneumonia Epidemic”, and made timely arrangements
for the prevention and control for the epidemic with specified and
unified operational instructions. During the epidemic, we purchased
masks, disinfectant, gloves and other protective materials in a timely
manner through various channels, carefully counted and dispatched
the materials, and distributed them everyday according to the
demands of different on-the-job personnel and posts, and employees
were required to wear masks and take temperature everyday. Staff
are arranged to be on duty to sterilise the business halls, stores,
offices, canteens, gas distribution stations and other places everyday.
All of these steps shall not be skipped for everyone of them.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cooperate to Fight the Epidemic (Continued)

In spite of achieving triumphant in the battle of epidemic prevention
and control, ensuring supply gas is significant. Thus, the Group
strives to ensure the safe and stable operation of gas fuel. We have
strengthened emergency duty and safety inspection, so as to protect
the safety of gas fuel facilities. The dispatch centre carries out 24-
hour remote monitoring to the key gas fuel facilities through the
system, performs all-weather and full-coverage patrol inspection to
the gas supply districts, commercial customers, industrial customers
and gas pipelines, and ensures the safe and stable operation of the
gas pipeline network. On the premise of vigilantly exercising the
preventive and control measures against epidemic diseases, frontline
staff members such as emergency rescue, maintenance and business
are always on their positions everyday, aiming to provide services to
the customers.

In order to reduce the spread of virus caused by human contact
and protect the health of our employees and customers, the Group
temporarily suspended the on-site meter reading service during the
epidemic prevention and control period. In the meantime, the Group
intensified its promotional efforts in guiding customers to pay and
recharge the credit through various platforms such as WeChat official
account, thus encouraging customers to make contactless recharge.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

In recent years, major achievements have been made in China’s eco-
green development. The comprehensive upgrading of eco-green
development among all industries continues to optimize the energy
structure, as well as accelerating the enhancement of low-carbon
transport systems. In the future, energy revolutions which coordinate
energy security and eco-green & low-carbon transformation will be
further promoted in China, thus accelerating the construction of a
clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy system.

The “Double Carbon” strategic goal launched by the central
government has defined the direction for China’s economic
development and energy structure adjustment. Currently, great
positive progress has been achieved in the “Double Carbon”
work. As the next step, China will unswervingly implement the
major strategic decisions for “peak carbon dioxide emissions and
carbon neutrality”, accelerate the development mode for eco-
green transformation, and promote the eco-green and low-carbon
transformation of industry.

In the future, the Group will remain committed to the concept of
high-quality natural gas development and build a comprehensive
natural gas security system which is safer, more stable and more
efficient. It will put in place the decisions and deployments made
by the central government on the natural gas industry, by proactive
response to favorable policies such as “peak carbon dioxide
emissions and carbon neutrality”. It will make full use of policies
and the healthy development environment of the gas industry,
to expand its market size and market share, while taking solid
steps in developing its own industry. Meanwhile, the Group will
formulate corresponding business risk response policies, and while
enhancing the operating productivity and cost efficiency, we will also
remain cautious in capital investment and maintain effective credit
monitoring to minimize the risk of default of customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

Since 2022, the repeated outbreak of the epidemic has made it
impossible to fully recover the production capacity shortfall, and
the continuous supply-side shock has led to a shortage of natural
gas production capacity, which has brought varying impacts to
energy companies. Thanks to the increasingly improved epidemic
prevention and control policies and the economic recovery resulted
from the resumption of work and production, the sales volume of
national natural gas has experienced slow recovery. Although the
development of natural gas has been affected by several unfavorable
factors, the gas industry, driven by relevant favorable policies such
as clean energy and low carbon, will encounter more challenges
and be accompanied by many opportunities in the future market
environment.

Natural gas is an important force in achieving the “peak carbon
dioxide emissions and carbon neutrality” goals in the future.
Currently and for a long time in the future, driven by the policy
of "peak carbon dioxide emissions and carbon neutrality” target,
natural gas, as a clean and low-carbon fossil energy, undertakes the
mission of ensuring energy security during the transformation of
national energy structure. At the same time, compared with other
gas, pipeline natural gas supply is more stable and more competitive.
The Group will take the full advantages of piped gas, so as to
maintain existing users, identify new users, actively expand value-
added business, and continue to promote the development of piped
gas business at a steady pace.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFW®RS N

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Cylinder Gas Supply Business

With the policies such as peak carbon dioxide emissions and carbon
neutrality and air pollution prevention and control, the energy market
has entered a critical period of deepening reforms as a whole. As one
of the urban gas sources, the cylinder gas is featured by cleanness,
efficiency and flexibility and forms a strong complement to the piped
gas business of the Group.

With the recurrence of the epidemic in 2022, various industries
were varyingly affected in terms of benefits, with no exception to
the gas industry. According to the favorable policies for the clean
energy market in the medium and long term, such as clean energy
and “coal-to-gas” as stated in the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the gas
industry still has a long way to go. The prevailing digital trend
in China accelerates the pace of digital transformation. As the
development of in-house new strategic options for the enterprises is
the trend in the future, enterprise-to-customer Internet technology
innovation will also be one of the gas industry’s focus. The Group,
in light of the characteristics of the cylinder gas industry and the
actual business needs, will continue to develop and improve gas-
supplying systems, to realize digital and information management
of cylinder gas business, to realize electronic filling, distribution,
information technology for reducing the operating costs and
improving distribution efficiency, and to improve the safety and
security capabilities of the cylinder gas business. Leveraging favorable
policies and development environment and prospect, the Group will
ensure safe operation and efficient transportation, so as to expand
the market share of areas with no established presences, and create
better economic performance.

Gas Distribution Business

Affected by the international circumstance, the price index of
natural gas in the international energy market has been rising all
the way, and the domestic LNG price has been greatly affected. The
gas distribution business is faced with a huge challenge, as well as
risks and opportunities in the gas distribution industry. Amid this,
building on the established presence of gas distribution business, the
Group will seize the development opportunities of the gas industry
to further expand such business, with an aim to enhance the sales
volume and income from the business again.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Food Ingredients Supply and FMCG Supply Business

In terms of food ingredients supply business, due to income
increases and the impact of the epidemic, Chinese residents pay
more attention to the freshness and high quality of ingredients.
In recent years, the rapid development of technology and Internet
technologies has greatly reduced the demand information gap
between enterprises and customers, and big data has also been
applied to conduct a clear analysis of the quality pursuits of residents
and businesses for ingredients and goods. The Group works to
strictly monitor every link of the industry, and analyze customer
needs through the full combination of technology and realities. It
also endeavours to firmly control the quality of food materials and
improve operational efficiency. With a commitment to the business
philosophy of the last mile between enterprises and residents, it will
mainly rely on the diversified online and offline operation pattern
and deliver fresh and high-quality ingredients to customers in a more
efficient and more accessible way.

In terms of the FMCG business, the advancement of China’s digital
development and the innovation of the Internet technologies have
greatly contributed to the retail industry in the new era. People are
concerned more about their spiritual needs and service experience.
The huge consumer market in China has also brought more
opportunities and challenges to the retail industry. In light of the
above, the Group will deeply explore the needs of residents and
enrich its offerings in terms of the store business. Leveraging the
combination of convenience stores and supermarkets, the Group
will make efforts to expand its market network, and integrate
consumer groups of the store business, so as to further enhance its
own brands. It will also make more key breakthroughs to reduce the
impact of the special external environment, and ensure the quality
of goods while improving the quality of services. These efforts
will enable it to satisfy the shopping needs of new and existing
consumers in @ maximum way.

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 31 March 2023
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Biography of Directors

ERCERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo”), aged 65, is the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, he joined the Company since 30
April 2004. Dr. Mo is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
chairman of the board of Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and acts as director posts in certain
principal subsidiaries of the Group. Dr. Mo holds a Bachelor
degree in Sciences from Tianjin Normal University, a Master degree
in Economics from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
and a PhD degree in Economics from Nankai University in the
PRC. Dr. Mo has substantial experiences in the development and
management of natural gas projects in the PRC. Dr. Mo currently
holds shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in
the Report of the Directors under this annual report. Dr. Mo is the
father of Miss Mo Yunbi, an executive Director.

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 69, is the deputy
chairman of the Board and an executive Director since 21 March
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Zhang holds a MBA degree from the La Trobe
University in Australia. In late 1980s, Mr. Zhang joined the initial
financial securities industry in the PRC, he has been engaged as
senior management for provision of services relating to securities
and financial investment; securities brokerages; investment
banking; financial research and analysis for Wanguo Holdings
Limited and/or Guotai Securities Company Limited and Guotai
Junan Securities Company Limited. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experiences in financial and capital markets. Mr. Zhang currently
holds shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in
the Report of the Directors under this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Fan Fangyi (“Mr. Fan”), aged 46, is an executive Director and
the managing Director, he joined the Group since December 2003
and then was appointed an executive Director and the managing
Director by the Board on 1 September 2015. He is currently a
director of dt A RMM A B R A7) (Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd.*),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and also acts as a
director in certain principal subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fan has
over 10 years of experiences in the management of the Group and
is familiar with the scope of the Group’s operation in all aspect.
Mr. Fan holds a Degree in Economics from the Renmin University
of China, JE@2Bt%¥ &1 (Legal Professional Qualification*) from
the Ministry Justice of the PRC, and registered as a non-practising
member of the Beijing Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Fan has worked in Grant Thornton (Beijing) Certified Public
Accountants and was responsible for auditing. Thereafter, he has
engaged by ZEREIK (i) BR 2 F (Wah Ying International
(Holdings) Limited*) and was in charge of various investment
business projects. Mr. Fan has extensive experiences in investment
banking sector, auditing and merger and corporate acquisition.

Miss Mo Yunbi (“Miss Mo”), aged 33, is an executive Director,
Miss Mo joined the Company since 13 January 2015. Miss Mo is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and in charge
of the development of the Group’s food ingredients supply and
fast-moving consumer goods supply business. Miss Mo has been
engaged as a food and safety analyst in a private entity in the PRC.
Miss Mo graduated in the University of Bedfordshire, the United
Kingdom, with a Bachelor degree of Business Administration with
First Class Honours. Afterward, she has awarded a Master of
Science in Agricultural Economics with Distinction and a PhD degree
from the University of Reading, the United Kingdom. Miss Mo holds
shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in the Report
of the Directors under this annual report. Miss Mo is the daughter
of Dr. Mo, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the
substantial Shareholder.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biography of Directors
ERCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Li Fun Replen ("Ms. Li”), aged 50, is an executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2021, she is current the company secretary
and an authorized representative of the Company, director and
secretaries of certain subsidiaries of the Group, she has joined the
Company since 30 November 2006. Before joining the Company,
Ms. Li has been engaged under company secretarial departments
in certain sizable companies listed in the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Li has over 20 years' experiences in charge of
company secretarial duties in listed companies. She is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an associate
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. She holds
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in United Kingdom, a
Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master of Laws in Chinese and
Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Junmin (“Dr. Liu”), aged 73, is an independent non-
executive Director, he joined the Company on 11 April 2005. Dr. Liu
is currently a member of Audit committee, Remuneration committee
and Nomination committee. Dr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree, a Master
degree and a PhD degree in Economics from the Nankai University in
China. He currently acts as a professor of the Virtual Economics and
Management Research Center of Nankai University, China and is an
independent non-executive director of China Literature Limited (stock
code: 00772), shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Dr. Liu has awarded the 8th Sun Yefang Economics
Prize and BE=ZEHPESRAXHERB2HEEFKRE (The
3rd China High School Humanity Social Science Research Excellent
Award*). Dr. Liu has acted as lecturer of Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics, professor and associate professor of the Faculty of
Economics, Nankai University, China. Dr. Liu resigned as independent
non-executive Director of China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Limited (stock code: 02799), shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, on 29 October 2020 and retired as
independent non-executive director of Tianjin Faw Xiali Automobile
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000927), shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, on 9 December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Prof. Zhao Yanyun (“Prof. Zhao"), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 July 2013. Prof. Zhao is a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Prof. Zhao currently is a professor
of Faculty of Statistics, a doctoral tutor of Faculty of Statistics, an
officer, a professor and a doctoral tutor of the China Research Center
for Competitiveness and Evaluation in the Renmin University of
China. Prof. Zhao also acts as part-time tutor in certain universities
in China including Zhejiang Gongshang University; Hebei University
of Engineering and Shanxi University of Finance and Economics, as
well as a consultant of FFEIATETE € (Statistical Society of China*); a
deputy chairman of FEI#t5H 205 2 € (Statistical Education Society
of China*), a chairman of B £z A £ (Statistical (High School)
Education Society of China*) and a member of BIRE FKAIFFAE
BRZEE (National Science and Technology Innovation Survey
Expert Committee*). Prof. Zhao has awarded a winner of B#FR 45
KB B E R BT EEE (the Government of the State Council Special
Contribution Expert Government Allowance*), 1 Bl # & S ¥t 42 A
7 (Century Talent of Ministry of Education of China*), R BB %X A
EHHELBATEAT TIRBEKRAAE (National Candidate of the
Ministry of Personnel New Century Hundred Thousand Talents Project
of China*) and a candidate of A EI1E = B A T4 (Beijing Hundred
Project of Chain*).

*  For identification purpose only
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Biography of Directors
ERCEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 44, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed with effect from 15 July
2020, he is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee as well as a member of Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master degree in
Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and a member of The Chartered Governance Institute. He is
an executive director and the Chief Financial Officer of CDW Holding
Limited, a company listed on the stock exchange of Singapore from 1
October 2022. He was the Financial Controller of OVM International
Development Co. Ltd. ("OVM Int’l”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of a State-owned enterprise. OVM Int'l is principally engaged in
international trading and investment holding. From 10 July 2017
to 22 January 2020, Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-
executive director of Mingyuan Medicare Development Company
Limited (“Mingyuan Medicare”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 233). The listing of
Mingyuan Medicare’s shares were cancelled on 23 January 2020.
He has over seventeen years' experience in finance, accounting and
business management functions.

All executive Directors have not entered into any service contract
with the Company except Miss. Mo and Ms. Li who have entered
into service contracts with the Company. All independent non-
executive Directors have entered into service agreements with
the Company without specific period. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in the Annual General Meeting
in accordance the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

ETRELRS

The Company has committed to perform a high standard of
corporate governance practices in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and business partners
and also the growth of its business. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles and the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the “Corporate
Governance Code” contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As far as the Code
Provisions is concerned, for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
"Year") and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions.

The directors of the Company (the "Director(s)”) acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year that give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position as a going concern basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements required by the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amended from time to time. This
responsibilities include designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control systems relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Corporate Governance Report

N P T2
iE ¥ B /0 iﬁ %
(a) Directors’ securities transactions

Adoption of Model Code

The board of Directors (the “"Board”) has adopted the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the "Model Code”), amended from time to time, as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

Confirmation on Compliance

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, they all
confirmed in writing that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

Written Guideline for Relevant Employees

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of the
Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees, who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Company. Such relevant employees did and would abide
by the provisions of the Model Code. Besides, the Company has
adopted internal control policy in relation to the disclosure of
inside information of the Company (the “Inside Information
Policy”).

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code and/or the
Inside Information Policy by such relevant employees was noted
by the Company.
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The Board
Composition

The nomination committee of the Company (“NC”) is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition and diversity
of the Board, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of the Directors,
monitoring the re-appointment and succession planning of the
Directors and assessing the independence of each independent
non-executive Director.

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses
and the development of the Company and to the exercising of
independent. Other than Dr. Mo Shikang is the father of Miss
Mo Yunbi, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director)
Miss Mo Yunbi

Ms. Li Fun Replen ®ete

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin

Prof. Zhao Yanyun

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming

Note:
She has been appointed by the Board with effect on 1 July 2021 and

then was re-elected as the Director by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 14 June 2022.
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i

(b)

RELHSE

The Board (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

The composition, experiences, balance of skills, qualifications
and diversity on the Board are regularly reviewed by the NC
to ensure that the Board retains a core of members with
longstanding and deep knowledge of the Group alongside new
Directors who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences
to the Board.

The Board complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to (i) the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise; (ii) independent non-executive
Director representing at least one-third of the Board; and (iii)
the audit committee of the Company (“AC”) should comprise
only independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out
in this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this annual
report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company
also maintains on its website (www.681hk.com) and on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of its
Directors (by category) identifying the role and function.

Appointment, Re-election and Resignation of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures and criteria for the appointment, re-
election, resignation, re-designation, rotation, retirement and/
or removal of the Director(s) in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws, the Listing Rules and all applicable laws.

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws and/or the Code Provisions
of the Listing Rules, (1) at each annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM") not less than one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from the Board by rotation; (2) each
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the conclusion of the AGM after he/she
was last re-elected as Director by shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholder(s)”) at the AGM and (3) each Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
by the Board should retire from the Board at the conclusion of
the first annual general meeting of the Company to be held
but they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as the
Director by the Shareholders at the same meeting.
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The Board (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Resignation of Directors
(Continued)

During the Year, Dr. Mo Shikang, Mr. Zhang Hesheng, Mr.
Cheung Chi Ming and Ms. Li Fun Replen retired from the Board
by rotation at the conclusion of the AGM held on 14 June 2022
(the “2022 AGM") and were then re-elected as the Directors
by the Shareholders with separate resolutions passed in the
2022 AGM in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company and pursuant
to the Code Provisions, Mr. Fan Fangyi, Miss Mo Yunbi and
Prof. Zhao Yanyun shall retire from the Board by rotation at
the conclusion of forthcoming AGM (“2023 AGM") but, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

Prof. Zhao Yanyun served as an independent non-executive
Director from 24 July 2013 and he will be re-election as
Director at the 2023 AGM. During his tenure, Prof. Zhao
Yanyun has demonstrated his ability to provide independent
view to the Company’s matters. The Board and the Nomination
Committee are of the view that Prof. Zhao Yanyun is able to
continue to fulfill his role as required and thus recommended
him for re-election at the 2023 AGM in accordance with
the Listing Rules, his further re-election will be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. Prof.
Zhao Yanyun has made a written annual confirmation of
independence for the Year pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board and the NC have also recommended the re-election
of all the abovementioned retiring Directors (Mr. Fan Fangyi,
Miss Mo Yunbi and Prof. Zhao Yanyun) standing for re-election
at the 2023 AGM.

Detailed biographical information of all the abovementioned
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the 2023 AGM will
be dispatched to Shareholders with this annual report.
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EEINRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Service Contracts with the Company

Each of the independent non-executive Director, Miss Mo
Yunbi and Ms. Li Fun Replen, executive Director, have entered
into service contract with the Company without specific
period respectively. Save as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any service contract with other Directors. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance

The Board normally has at least four (4) scheduled meetings
a year to review the strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, environmental, social and
governance report, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters. if any, and meets at other times as and
when required. The Board requires Directors to devote sufficient
time and attention to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
During the Year, a total number of thirteen (13) Board
meetings, four (4) AC meetings, one (1) NC meeting and one
(1) Remuneration Committee (“RC") meeting and were held.
Minutes of these meetings are currently kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are open for inspection by the
Directors and Board committees’ members.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board (Continued)
Number of Meetings Held and Attendance (Continued)

During the Year, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have
spent sufficient time performing their responsibilities. The
individual attendance records of each Director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, AC, NC and RC as well as
the Shareholders’ meeting(s) (AGM and special general meeting
("SGM"), if any), during the Year are set out below:
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PRI BV BB - 30 FERR IR 1 AR S0 ] B
TERE -AFERN SEREMNBEEAR
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AGM Board AC NC RC
Name of Directors BEiE ReBExE Eze EVRZEe REZEE §Mzag
Number of Meetings g1 1 13 4 1 1
Executive Directors BITEE
Dr. Mo Shikang EtEET N 13/13 i i
Mr. Zhang Hesheng ENEEE N 13/13 i
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHERE N 13/13
Miss Mo Yunbi EE2)E N 13/13
Ms. Li Fun Replen ZELT N 13/13
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHHTES
Dr. Liu Junmin ABRET N 13/13 44 i
Prof. Zhao Yanyun BEEHR N 1313 44 i
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming REBREE N 13/13 44 i

The high attendance record at the Board and its committee
meetings during the Year, which was reviewed by the NC and
RC, demonstrated the Directors’ strong commitment to the
Company.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the Company's affairs. All Directors disclose to
the Board on their first appointment their interests as Director
or otherwise in other companies or organisations and such
information be reviewed and/or updated regularly. During the
Year, the Board has regularly reviewed the contributions from
the Directors and confirmed that they have spent sufficient time
in performing their responsibilities.
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®ERE

AR

The Board (Continued)
Responsibility of the Board

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the senior management. The Board
currently provides leadership and approves strategic polices
and plans with a view to enhance Shareholders’ interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Company and the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The Board has full
support of the managing Director and the senior management
to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Group, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, environmental, social and governance report, risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Responsibility of the Directors

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to managing and executive Directors
and the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above mentioned officers.

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility to
oversee and monitor the operations of the specific business unit
and/or corporate transactions and to implement the strategies
and polices set by the Board. Each Director may seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.
All members of the Board are provided with monthly updates to
enable them to discharge their duties.
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The Board (Continued)

Responsibility of and Annual Confirmation from Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Through active participation in meetings of the Board,
Board committees and general meetings of the Company,
the independent non-executive Directors currently bring a
wide range of business knowledges and financial expertise,
experiences, skills and independent judgment on the issues of
strategy, policy, performance accountability, usage of resources,
key appointments, connected transactions and standards of
conduct to the Board. Independent non-executive Directors have
taken and/or shall take lead when potential conflicts of interest
arise. Independent Board committee, comprising all independent
non-executive Directors, has formed and/or will form to advise
the independent Shareholders on those connected transactions
to be approved by the independent Shareholders at the SGM.
All independent non-executive Directors have made various
contributions to the effective direction and performance of
the Company. One of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received, from each independent non-
executive Directors for the Year, a written annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board and the NC considered all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Insurance of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance including company securities, employment
practices, regulatory crisis event, investigation, litigation, tax
liabilities and public relation, etc, for the Directors and senior
officers of the Group, which is reviewed by the Board on a
regular basis. The Company undertakes an annual review of
the Company’s Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance policy
in light of recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The review benchmarks the amount of cover
against other similar companies and considers whether separate
cover be required for members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

RELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Conflict of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their duties to act in
the best interest of the Company and have particular regard to
the interest of the Shareholders as a whole. Amongst others,
all Directors are required to declare the nature and extent of
their interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement, contract
or other proposal to be considered by the Board at meetings.
Unless specifically permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company,
a Director cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other proposal in which he/she has or any
of his/her close associates is materially interested.

Supply of and Access to Information

The Board and Board committees members are supplied with
comprehensive meeting papers and relevant materials within a
reasonable period of time in advance of the intended meeting
date (in any event no less than three (3) days before the date of
the meeting). All Directors and the Board committees members
are given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board and Board committees meetings and/or their
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision-making process,
the Directors and the Board committees members are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required.

All Directors and the Board committees members have
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that the Board and Board committees
receive appropriate and timely information for its decision-
making and the Board and Board committees procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are being followed.
The Directors and the Board committees members can obtain
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
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The Board (Continued)

Supply of and Access to Information (Continued)

The Board receives from the management monthly management
accounts, explanation or analysis of the operation performance
of the Group and relevant information which enable the Board to
make an informed assessment for the performance of the Group,
from time to time. Other regular and ad hoc reports are also
prepared for the Board and Board committees, to ensure that
the Directors and members of the Board committees are supplied
with all the requested information in a timely and appropriate
manner.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Role of Chairman

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director,
who perform similar role as chief executive officer, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The respective responsibilities
of the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are
clearly defined. The chairman of the Board provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the management, the chairman of the Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
information and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The position of the chairman of the Board is currently
held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

The chairman of the Board ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. He also ensures all Directors are properly briefed on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. The chairman of the
Board encourages Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensures that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus. He
pushes all Directors to make a full and active contributions to
the Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders
as whole.
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LEELHRE

(d)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Managing Director is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, internal control
system, risk management system and internal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval. The position of the Managing
Director is currently held by Mr. Fan Fangyi.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
Group structure, Board and Board committees meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Company, etc. and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements in
Bermuda and Hong Kong.

An induction programme covering the roles of a Director from
the strategic, planning and management perspective, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, as well as
the essence of corporate governance and the trends in these
areas, be therefore arranged for newly appointed Director(s), if
any, after he/she joined the Board.

The Board acknowledges that continuous professional
development and training of Directors is an ongoing process
to ensure the continued enhancement of their skills and
knowledge.
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LEELHRE
(d) Training for Directors (Continued) (d)y EEZB2HEI (&)
Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and materials BrRitt 2 o0 - AR R EBEH B EM K
to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills from time ME - EEMBFESNMBREE-FIE
to time. All the information and materials are relevant to the B RMEIEREE 2 £ K %
Group's business, the economy, corporate governance, rules and B HBIRAD &5 MBS EERE
requlations, accounting, financial or professional skills and/or R/ SLEENBEMETHR - BT
directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements MEEEREGREERZEINI - NFEANE
in place for providing continuing briefing and professional EEIIREAABHINAT
development to each Director. During the Year, the record of the
trainings of the Directors, on named basis, is set out in the table
below:
Receiving
briefings from
Reading financial
journals, officers,
written Attending company
training webcast secretary
materials and/ training and/  and/or other
or updates or forums executives £ 40
il
AR D8 |l
MEST 2@ ek WEM R 3%‘;
AR, BB HttSEMW A
Directors ES REH B LS
3
Executive Directors HITES ?9
Dr. Mo Shikang BtREL v v v S
Mr. Zhang Hesheng R E v/ v/ v £
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHELE v/ v/ v vl
Miss Mo Yunbi REZ/NE v v v
Ms. Li Fun Replen TET v/ v/ v/
Independent Non-executive Directors B F#HITEE
Dr. Liu Junmin BB RE L v v/ v
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEZHE v/ v/ v
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming RAEMRLE v/ v/ v
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training AAREBERBEELREFEIRE &
courses at the Company’s expenses. The company secretary is ABRARFIBE RAANBEBERTSES
responsible to keep records of training taken by each Director. EXNEIlRE AL ESTEEMNEE
The NC reviewed the training records of each Director annually. E L &
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LRELHRE
(e) Company Secretary

The company secretary, being an employee of the Company, has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs and reports to
the Board. She keeps close contact with all Directors and ensures
that the operation of the Board and all Board committees are in
compliance with the procedures as set forth in the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. Additionally, the company
secretary is responsible for compiling and regularly submitting
draft minutes of Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
to the Directors and committee members for their comment, and
final version of minutes for their records, within a reasonable
time after the relevant meetings. Each Director may obtain advice
from and the assistance of the company secretary to ensure that
the meeting of Board and Board committees procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. To ensure the
possession of up-to-date knowledge and market information to
perform her duties, the company secretary attended sufficient
professional training during the Year.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which includes developing and reviewing the Company's
policy and practices on corporate governance, assessing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management. During the Year, the Board
reviewed, monitored and assessed the policy and practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development to Directors and senior management, policies and
practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirement
and the compliance with the Model Code under the Listing Rule
and disclosure requirements in this Corporate Governance Report.
The Board kept under review in light of the changing legal and
regulatory requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
AC, NC and RC is responsible for monitoring the Company'’s
specific affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are disclosed in the corporate website of the Company
(www.681hk.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The members of the AC at present are all independent non-
executive Directors whereas, the majority of NC and the RC
comprise independent non-executive Directors. The list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under "Corporate Information” in this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at Company'’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The AC
currently comprises independent non-executive Directors,
among them one independent non-executive Director possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. None of the
members of the AC is a director, former partner or principal
of the Company's existing external auditor. The AC currently
comprises the following three members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, (chairman)
(i) Dr. Liu Junmin

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun
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LEELHRE

(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the AC include the followings:

(1)

To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
responsible staff of accounting and financial report
function, compliance officer (if any), internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board,;

To review the relationship with the external auditor and
its independence by reference to the work performed and
services provided by the external auditor, their fees, their
firm’s standards and practices and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and/or removal of external
auditor;

To review the continuing connected transactions as
disclosed in the annual report, if any, and confirm that
those transactions entered into by the Group were (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the respective agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Shareholders as a whole; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC held four (4) meetings during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report to, inter alia,

(1

@)

review and approve the draft audited and unaudited
consolidated financial statement together with and the
respective draft result announcements, including changes
in accounting policies and practices; major judgmental
areas; significant adjustments resulting from the audit
(if any); going concern assumption; compliance with
accounting and auditing standards and compliance with
the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting to the Board for consideration and
approval;

review the results of the external audit and discuss with
the external auditor on any significant findings and audit
issues;

assess the independence of the external auditor of the
Company and the effectiveness of audit process;

review the relationship with the external auditor and then
recommend the re-appointment of the external auditor of
the Company and recommended its remuneration;

evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal control and risk management;

review the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staffs of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget; and

review the current continuing connected transactions.

The attendance records of the meetings of AC during the Year
is set out in this report.
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EEINRSE
(g) Board Committees (Continued) (9)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to auditor in respect of
audit service and non-audit services provided by the auditor to
the Group were as follows:

= = = (435
BEZEE ()
T
ERZEE (E&)

ZE RN %

REFRN - BAZEED A AR B R 2 REBUR
BRIERBRBH NN 2 ERET
(I

2022
RMB’000
Nature of services RIEMHE AR T
Audit for the Year KEFEEZ 1,000
Others Hi 5
1,005

Nomination Committee WEEZEE

The written terms of reference has been suggested (amended
from time to time) under the Code Provisions. The NC currently
comprises the following four members, major of them are
independent non-executive Directors:

(i)  Dr. Mo Shikang*, (chairman)

(i) Dr. Liu Junmin®

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

(iv)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming

# executive Director

* independent non-executive Director

The main duties of the NC include the followings:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

(3) review the Board diversity with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy (defined below);

(4) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(5)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

Nomination Policy

The NC has been delegated by the Board to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board on an annual basis.

The Company has adopted below the policy for nomination of
Directors (including the nomination procedures and criteria for
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship) in
accordance with the Code Provisions.

Objective of the policy

NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to the Shareholders
for election as Director(s) at general meetings or appoint as
Director(s) to fill casual vacancies.

NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number
of candidates more than the number of the Directors to be
appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or the number
of casual vacancies to be filled.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEINRSE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC
in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment, experiences and/or knowledge in the
principal business of our group, from time to time;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

1.

The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the
NC, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members, if any, for consideration by the NC prior to its
meeting. The NC may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the NC shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the circular to Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) and has posted it on the Company’s website
(www.681hk.com), which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board, the summary of which are set out
below:

(a)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

In designing the Board’s composition, the diversity of
Board members has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The NC held one (1) meetings during the Year and up to the
date of this report to, inter alia,

(1)

assess the structure, size and composition of the Board
and analysis the diversity of the Board with reference to
the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board;

evaluate the performance of the Board with reference to
the Board performance report;

study the independence of each independent non-
executive Director in accordance with the Listing Rules;
and

identify those Directors to be retired from the Board and
by rotation in the AGM and then be re-elected as Director
in the same meeting in accordance with the Company's
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERELERE

(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(5) propose the maximum number of Directors of the Board
in the AGM;

(6) review the service contract(s) entered and to be entered
with the Director(s), if any; and

The attendance records of the meetings of the NC during the
Year is set in this report.

Analysis of the diversity of the Board by NC is shown by the
following charts:
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EEINRSE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
of RC has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The RC
currently comprises the following five members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming", chairman
(i) Dr. Mo Shikang*

(iii)  Mr. Zhang Hesheng?*

(iv)  Dr. Liu Junmin®

(v)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun*

* independent non-executive Director

# executive Director

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for the Directors and senior management. The RC
has primary responsibility for making recommendations on
and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management to the Board after consultation with the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman, assessed performance of the executive
Directors and accessed to professional advice, at the Company’s
expenses, when necessary. The RC is also responsible for
establishing a formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates be participated in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration be determined by reference to
the duties and responsibilities of Directors in the Group, business
performance, profitability and market conditions.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The RC held one (1) meetings during the Year and up to the
date of this report to, inter alia,

(1) review the summary of remuneration package paid to
each Director and senior management of the Company
for the Year;

(2) study the current remuneration package, policy and
structure of all Directors (including appointment(s),
resignation(s) and retirement(s) during the Year, if any);

(3) propose remuneration packages in the coming year with
reference to the duties and responsibilities of Directors,
business performance and profitability of the Group
and market conditions, the corporate objective and goal
set by the Board with reference to salaries paid by the
comparable companies to Directors;

(4) consider the service contract(s) entered and to be entered
with Director(s) and/or Director(s), if any;

(5) review the procedures of remuneration policy, procedures
and structure for fixing the remuneration packages; and

The attendance records of the meetings of the RC during the
Year is set out in this report.
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RN 2N
RELIHRSE
(h) Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control and risk management
systems to safeguard the interest of Shareholders and the
assets of the Group. During the Year and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board, through the AC, reviewed
the implementation of the systems of internal control and
risk management and reviewing of financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions system. A
review be conducted at least annually on the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control and risk management. During
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, we has
reviewed and monitored effectiveness of our major subsidiaries
in relation to corporate management, human resource,
procurement and sale, inventory, finance, engineering, fixed
assets, contracts and/or information system.

The Group has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation
of responsibility and authority to the management. The
internal control and risk management systems of the Group
are designed to identify and evaluate the significant risks and
to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of failure
to achieve business objective, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatements or
losses.

The Group which currently engages in the businesses of
the sales and distribution of fuel gas including piped gas
transmission and distribution, cylinder gas supply, gas
distribution, and food ingredients supply and FMCG supply in
China, has established internal control and risk management
systems which are designed and structured in accordance with
its specific business and operation functions.
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Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

The Board monitors the Group’s business risk, operating
risk management and internal controls. An internal audit
team is maintained to carry out internal audit functions to
ensure proper compliance with the internal control and risk
management systems to identify the potential risks which may
arise in the operation and financial aspects of the Group's
business for implementation of appropriate measures and
policies on a continuing basis. The scope of review and the
audit plan of the internal audit team for the Year, which are
formulated based on a risk assessment approach and focuses
on areas with relatively higher perceived risks, are reviewed and
approved by the AC in conjunction with the management. The
internal audit team executes its functions based on a yearly
plan and prepares reports for its assignments. These reports
are submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis.

During the Year, the Board, through the AC, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems and the internal audit functions
of Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial reporting system, operational and compliance controls
and risk management system. The Board and the AC confirmed
that during the Year, there were no significant control failings
or weaknesses identified which might have a material impact
on the Company’s financial performance or condition and
the required procedures and human resources are in place to
ensure adequate internal controls within the Group.

An external audit has also been conducted to carry out the
internal audit functions to ensure proper compliance with
the internal control system and risk management system to
identify the potential risks which may arise in the operation
and financial of the Group's business for implementation
of appropriate measures and policies on a continuing basis.
The scope of review and the audit programme of external
audit firm, which are formulated based on a risk assessment
approach and focuses on areas with relatively higher perceived
risks, are approved by the AC at the end of the preceding
financial year in conjunction with the management. The
external audit firm executes their functions based on a yearly
plan and prepares reports for their assignments. These reports
are submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis. Such reports are also circulated to the
external auditor on an annual basis.
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RN 2N
EEINRSE
(h) Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has approved and adopted an Inside Information
Policy for the Company for monitoring inside information to
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information as set out in
the Inside Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

(a)

Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board
in accordance with the Listing Rules. In cases where a
decision by the Board is pending or in cases of incomplete
negotiations, the Group shall implement the procedures
set out in the Inside Information Policy to maintain the
confidentiality of information. Until an announcement is
made, the Directors and the management should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential. If the
confidentiality cannot be maintained, an announcement
shall be made as soon as practicable.

Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors and/or the
company secretary, immediately so that remedial actions,
including making an inside information announcement,
can be taken at the earliest opportunity.

The Group’s finance department shall keep track of the
Group's threshold levels for disclosure pursuant to the
percentage ratios as defined in the Listing Rules, so that
an announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arise.
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Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside information is announced promptly through the websites
of the Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.681hk.com). The electronic publication system of the
Stock Exchange is the first channel of dissemination of the
Group's information before any other channels.

Investor Relation

The Company has committed to maintain an open and
effective investor relation policy and to update investors on
relevant information/developments in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
Shareholders timely. The Directors host the AGM each year to
meet the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company's website at www.681hk.com contains important
corporate information, biographical details of current Directors,
organisation structure, annual and interim reports with
comprehensive and user-friendly information about the Group,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders and the investor community
to have timely access to updated information about the
Company and the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene
a SGM and state the purpose therefor at the Company's
registered office in Bermuda at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

Dividend Policy

The Directors propose the dividend, if any, in accordance with
the dividend policy of the Company (”Dividend Policy”) which
essential features are summarised below:
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Corporate Governance Report
LEELHRE

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Dividend Policy (Continued)

Purpose

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines of
the Company in relation to the distribution of dividend to the
Shareholders.

The objective of the Dividend Policy is to reward the
Shareholders by sharing a portion of profits/earning, while also
ensuring that enough funds are retained for the future growth
and prospects of the Company.

Factors when considering the distribution of dividend

The distribution of any dividend by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, which normally did/will take into
account of the following factors:

e The financial results of the Company and the Group;

e Interests of the Shareholders;

e General business conditions and strategies;

e The capital requirements of the Group;

e (Contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries to
the Company, if any;

e  Taxation considerations;

e Possible effects on our creditworthiness;

e  Statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

®  Any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There is no assurance that any particular dividend amount, or
any dividend at all, will be declared and paid in the future.

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend

Any distribution of dividend for a financial year shall be subject
to the approval by the Shareholders. Shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company can approve any distribution of final
dividend, which may not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

All of the Shareholders have equal rights to dividend.
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Dividend Policy (Continued)

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend (Continued)

Dividend may be distributed in the form of cash and/in specie
of Shares. Any distribution of Shares, however, must be
approved by the Shareholders.

The Board may from time to time to declare the special,
quarterly and/or interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified.

Communication Policy

The Company has adopted communications policy with
Shareholders and investors that provide ready, equal and timely
access to understandable information about the Company, the
policy is posted on the Company’s website (www.681hk.com).
The Board is welcome to Shareholders for their comments and/
or enquiries about the Company. Shareholders may send their
comments and/or enquiries to the Board by addressing them
to the company secretary who ensures these enquires and/or
comments to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders
who wish to put forward proposal for the Company’'s
consideration at the general meetings can send their proposal
to the company secretary.

Pursuant to Bye-laws of the Company, if a Shareholder wish
to propose a person other than a retiring Director for election
as a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
Shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination
which shall be given to the head office of the Company within
the 7-day period commencing the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may be
determined and announced by the Directors from time to
time). The relevant procedures are posted on the Company’s
website (www.681hk.com).

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch registrar
and transfer office, namely, Tricor Tengis Limited, whose
contact details are stated in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
LRELARE

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels of
communication with its Shareholders. The Board and the
management are committed to the constructive use of AGM as
a forum to meet with Shareholders and to hear their views and
answer their enquiries about the Group and its business.

Dr. Mo Shikang, the chairman of the Board, did and would
use his endeavours to attend all Shareholders’ meetings.
The chairman of the Board did and would arrange for the
chairmen of RC, NC and AC or their alternates be available to
answer enquiries at each AGM of the Company. A member
of the independent Board committee of the Company also
be available to answer enquiries at any general meeting
of the Company, if any, to approve connected transactions
or any other transactions that are subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval.

The Board did and would arrange auditor to attend every AGM
of the Company to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Most resolutions would be passed by way of poll at each
of the general meeting of the Company. Shareholders who
are unable to attend general meetings of the Company can
appoint proxies to attend and vote at general meetings of the
Company. The chairman of general meetings of the Company
would provide explanation of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and then would answer enquiries (if any)
from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of poll. The
Company would send notice of the AGM of the Company to
the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before each
AGM of the Company and at least 10 clear business days
before all other general meetings of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.681hk.com) is maintained
for the dissemination of the Company’s announcements,
press releases and other relevant financial and non-financial
information on a timely basis.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Executive Director maintains
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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Proposed Amendments to the Bye-laws

The existing Bye-laws have not been amended since 2009.
The Stock Exchange has amended the Listing Rules, relating
to, among others, the articles of association or equivalent
constitutional documents of listed issuers under the new
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January
2022 for which listed issuers are required to make necessary
amendments to the constitutional documents by the second
annual general meeting following 1 January 2022 to bring their
constitutional documents to conformation.

In order to (i) bring the Bye-laws in line with the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules as well as the applicable laws
of Bermuda; (i) allow general meetings of the Company to
be held in the form of a hybrid meeting or electronic meeting
where the Shareholders may attend by electronic means in
addition to a physical meeting where the Shareholders attend
in person; and (iii) adopt house-keeping improvements and
amendments in line with the aforesaid proposed amendments,
the Directors propose to seek the approval of the Shareholders
by way of special resolution for the amendments to the existing
Bye-laws and the adoption of the New Bye-laws in 2023 AGM.
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Report of the Directors

EFERT

The directors of the Company (the "Director(s)”) are pleased to
present this report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the sales and distribution of fuel gas
including the piped gas transmission and distribution, cylinder
gas supply, gas distribution and food ingredients supply and fast
moving consumer goods (“FMCG") supply businesses in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC” or “China”). Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out in this annual report. All these sections form part of
this “Report of the Directors”.

SUBSIDIARIES

The activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (31 December 2021: nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

FOR ATTENDANCE OF 2023 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 13 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June 2023 (both dates inclusive),
for the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) eligibility to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 16 June 2023
(the “2023 AGM") and during which period no transfer of the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) will be effected. In order to qualify
for attendance of the 2023 AGM, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates of the Company must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited (address: 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12 June 2022.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the Year are set out in
notes 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Further details of the movement in the share capital and Share Options
of the Company, if any, during the Year are set out in notes 35 and
42 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.
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Report of the Directors
ESERY

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed under the section of “SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS” above, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any
distributable reserve (31 December 2021: nil).

PARTICULARS OF BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022
is set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted
for 2.76% and 10.53% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year,
respectively.

For the Year, the aggregate purchase attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together
accounted for 17.36% and 42.54% of the Group’s total purchase for
the Year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any Shareholder who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of
the said top five customers and/or suppliers of the Group for the
Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director)
Miss Mo Yunbi

Ms. Li Fun Replen

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Liu Junmin
Prof. Zhao Yanyun
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming

Ms. Li Fun Replen has been appointed as an executive Director by the
Board with effect from 1 July 2021, she retired from the Board at the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM and then, she was relected as Director
at the same meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out in this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall be
indemnified against all losses and liabilities which they may incur in
connection with their duties. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTATION

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Miss Mo Yunbi
and Ms. Li Fun Replen, being executive Directors, have entered into
service contracts with the Company without specific period, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation from the Board and
then re-election in the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTAT'ON (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-law of the Company and pursuant to the
Code on Corporate Governance Code annexed as Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, Mr. Fan Fangyi and Miss Mo Yunbi, being executive
Directors, and Prof. Zhao Yanyun, being independent non-executive
Director. shall retire from the Board by rotation at the conclusion of
2023 AGM but they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2023 AGM.

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of any Director proposed for
re-election (Mr. Fan Fangyi, Miss Mo Yunbi and Prof. Zhao Yanyun) at
the 2023 AGM.

DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS EMOLUMENT

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis and five highest
paid individuals (five of them are Directors) are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Director, namely, Dr. Liu Junmin, Prof,
Zhao Yanyun and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, of their independence for
the Year pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the
Board and the Nomination Committee considered all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the "Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the
“Model Code"”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, EERKRHMD MHEKRDR
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES fEHxFH 2R @

(Continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company

ARBRDFZHFR

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of ordinary Shares held ordinary
RAEBRHHUA share capital*
Personal Family Corporate Free
interests' interests interests Total BITZERS
Names of Director g BAER RGER ArER By BRE DL
Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo") Rt EET - | 2,497,782,762
((&@t]) 1,135,000,000°  3,632,782,762 40.66
Miss Mo Yunbi ("Miss Mo") EZZENMA - - 1,135,000,000°  1,135,000,000 12.70
([E/hE])
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RAAELAE 338,271,282 - - 338,271,282 3.79
Mr. Fan Fangyi EREKE 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000 0.25
Dr. Liu Junmin BHEREL 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.06
Prof. Zhao Yanyun BEERHRE 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 006 |3 *!?;
S8
Notes: Bt o 2’ m‘
1. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial 1. REAEHEESIEREREB AR ENER - ug
owner. e
2
2. The entire issued share capital of Lofty Key Limited (“Lofty Key") is 2. EBEAERAR([R@R)2YBRTRARER | 2
currently held by Renown City Holdings Limited ("Renown City"), HEBEBRERAR ([HE])FHE MUE2IME
whereas the entire issued share capital of Renown City is currently held BITRARFABEFLRA -t - B RE
by Dr. Mo. Accordingly, Renown City and Dr. Mo are deemed to be BT REBEESFRBEGRARRIERZREGER
interested in the Shares in which Lofty Key is interested under the SFO. ZIROPHEEER - BIE T AERRT 2 EF M
Dr. Mo is the chairman of the Company and an executive Director as EEREBRMEE—ES-
well as the sole director of both Lofty Key and Renown City.
3. This represents interests legally and beneficially held by Ping Da 3. URERBTFEERBERAR([FEEELE
Development Limited (“Ping Da"), a company was legally and AR AENER TEREBLTRENMNASEER
beneficially owned 50% by Dr. Mo and 50% by Miss Mo. B A50%EE

* The percentage has been adjusted, if any, based on the total number of * BOLLELIREBEARRARIN2022F12A31HE &7
ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. L E A1 4 2 (B08,934,561,203M ik 15 ) EH A
8,934,561,203 Shares). FE(A) -
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and under section headed “DIRECTORS'
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES” below, as at 31
December 2022, none of the Directors nor their associates had any
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations
which had been entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or
its holding companies was a party and in which a Director or any
entities connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS® RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouse and children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code, amended from time to time. All
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the Year. Employees, who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company, have been requested to comply with provisions of Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

ADTRA R 2 T EME

2022912 A318  RIEFHF L HAEKHIFE336
EARRB BT FEZELMARLEE ZE AL
(BREBEBEINBERRGRMD ZEZWT

Approximate
percentage (%) of

the issued
ordinary
Number of share capital*
Nature of ordinary FRiEE
Name of Shareholder Capacity interest Shares held BOBBERS
RREMH EL) EEME KAELTBEROHE BABDL(%)*
Lofty Key (e Beneficial owner Corporate 2,497,782,762 27.96
Ly ERfAA NG L
Renown City (et Interested in controlled corporation Corporate 2,497,782,762 27.96
B D REBHIRE R A7 L
Ping Da (nee 2 Beneficial owner Corporate 1,135,000,000 12.70
iz ) ERlEBEA NS (L)
(L) = long position ¥ &
Notes: BT -

(1) The entire issued share capital of Lofty Key is currently held by Renown
City, whereas the entire issued share capital of Renown City is currently
held by Dr. Mo. Accordingly, Renown City and Dr. Mo are deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Lofty Key is interested under the SFO.
Dr. Mo is the chairman of the Company and an executive Director as

well as the sole director of both Lofty Key and Renown City.

This represents the Shares held by Ping Da, a company legally and
beneficially owned 50% by Dr. Mo and Miss Mo.

* The percentage has been adjusted (if any) based on the total number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 8,934,561,203 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company any of its Associated
Corporations, which had been recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

(1) SR2FEBOTRARFHBESE MRER
AEBHTRARRR B EFLISE Mt e
REBLREES MR RIEEERREE
BBz BROPHEAER RETRARRZE
FBNREERSRNMERE —ES=-

2 HETE(HBEBLRENMNIERERERER
50%HE s 2 N E) A 2 I o

* BO LB ERIER2022F12 A31HE &EITRDE
% (818,934,561,203% i (n) fEH A (1E) »

B UA FHREEE AN 7202212 A318 - IBIEE 5
MEAEIEDIE3361KETERF 2 B MAATR R -

PN/NEINE 35 NI =R SR EI Y E =N E gl
K/ SHERG P 2 E AR AR
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or substantial Shareholders or
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report and within
the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION

Shareholders approved a resolution of adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) in the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 9 September 2016.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, nil share
option was outstanding, granted, exercised, lapsed and/or cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

Provide incentives to the eligible persons
to contribute to the Group, to enable
the Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a
long-term basis and to attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Purpose

Participants Eligible person include any executive,
employee (whether full-time or part-time),
Director (including independent non-
executive Director), consultant, aduviser,
partner, joint-venture partner, service
provider, customer and/or agent of the
Company or any of its subsidiary or any
person, who in the absolute discretion
of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group at the time when

an option is granted to such person.
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SHARE OPTION (Continued) ,ﬁ\%ﬁjf&; (#)

Price of Shares Determined by the Board and shall at ~ BRHEH HEZFEET HETEER

least be the highest of: TIzBEE:

(a) the nominal value of the Share; (a) f&1n 2 HE1E :

(b)  the closing price of the Share as (b) HEHOEREZH (A
stated in the Stock Exchange's BRXSB)BIHAE
daily quotations sheet on the date H#RERFT®wARD 2
of offer, which must be a trading WmE: &
day; and

() the average closing price of the (0 EEEHERREZH
Share as stated in the Stock A {2 5 B B A2 P
Exchange's daily quotations BHMERMMERSD
sheet for the five business days ZFHWTHE -
immediately preceding the date
of offer.

Total number of Shares 694,495,413 Shares, being approximately RAFERBEATHE 694,495,413 Kk 1H A

available for issue 7.77% of the issued share capital of the BITZROBE QAREBITRALNT.77% -
and the percentage  Company. REMAESBTR
of the issued share rEDH

capital that it
represents as at the
date of this annual

report
i
Maximum entitlement  Not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in ~ SHSEETREE NEFR2EANTEEBE |8
of each participant any 12-month period. B#Hz LR BTN Z1% ° Em
()
<=
Period within which Subject to the discretion by the Board. RIEERERBE HESFeNEETE- g
the securities must be 2 BB £
taken up under the o
option &
Minimum period for Not applicable. TEERENARE THEMA-
which an option must BzEEHR

be held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable on No amount is payable on acceptance of BABENZSE BHERETESNSE-
acceptance an offer.

Period within which Not applicable. BUkFEE EHEE TEB-
calls/loans must be Rz BBR

made/repaid

FREREMRART g7
2022F (B E2022F 12831 ILEE)



)
®

Report of the Directors
EEERE

Remaining life of the The scheme will be valid and effective
scheme until 8 September 2026, after which no
further options will be granted, but in
all other respects the provisions of this
scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in respect of any option granted
prior to the termination of this scheme
and any such option shall continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of issue.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primary in form of
contributions to Hong Kong's Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
the PRC statutory public welfare fund respectively. Details of which
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions during the Year

1. On 18 December 2019, Xi‘an Civigas Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an
Civigas”) entered into a natural gas supply agreement (“2020-
2022 Natural Gas Supply Agreement”) with Shaanxi
Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Shaanxi Natural Gas") to
renew the continuing connected transactions, pursuant to
which Shaanxi Natural Gas has agreed to supply and Xi‘an
Civigas has agreed to purchase nature gas for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
The annual caps amount for the transactions under the 2020-
2022 Natural Gas Supply Agreement for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022 be RMB187,470,000, RMB206,230,000 and
RMB226,870,000 respectively. For the year from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022, the aggregate transactions
amount was within the annual caps amount as stated in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2019,
details of which may refer to the respective announcement of
Company dated 19 December 2019.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions during the Year (Continued)

2.

On 31 October 2019, Xi'an Civigas Haihui entered into a LNG
Master Sales Agreement (“2019-2022 LNG Master Sales
Agreement”) with Xianyang Haihui, pursuant to which Xi‘an
Civigas Haihui has agreed to supply and Xianyang Haihui has
agreed to purchase the LNG commencing for the period of
three years from 1 November 2019 and ending 31 October
2022 (both dates inclusive). The annual cap amounts for
the transactions under the 2019-2022 LNG Master Sales
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 October 2020,
31 October 2021 and 31 October 2022 are RMB65,200,000,
RMB66,504,000 and RMB67,834,000, respectively. For the year
from 1 November 2021 to 31 October 2022, the aggregate
transactions amount was within the annual caps amount as
stated in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2019. The 2019-2022 LNG Master Sales Agreement can expand
and increase revenue stream of Xi‘an Civigas Haihui as well
as benefit from the economics of sales for the bulk purchase
of LNG from Shaanxi Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Yanchang Petroleum”), which is one of the four domestic
enterprises with oil and natural gas exploration qualifications
in the PRC and is also the main supplier of LNG in Shaanxi
Province. Details of which may refer to the announcement of
Company dated 31 October 2019.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions after the Year

1. On 30 December 2022, Xi‘an Civigas entered into a natural gas
supply agreement (“2023 Natural Gas Supply Agreement”)
with Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas to renew the continuing
connected transactions under the 2020-2022 Natural Gas
Supply Agreement, pursuant to which Shaanxi Natural
Gas has agreed to supply and Xi‘an Civigas has agreed to
purchase nature gas for a term of three months commencing
from 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023. The quarter caps
amount for the transactions under the 2023 Natural Gas
Supply Agreement for the three months ended 31 March
2023 be RMB79,371,000, details of which may refer to the
announcement of Company dated 30 December 2022.

2. On 31 March 2023, Xi‘an Civigas entered into a natural
gas supply agreement (“2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply
Agreement”) with Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas to renew
the continuing connected transactions under the 2023
Natural Gas Supply Agreement, pursuant to which Shaanxi
Natural Gas has agreed to supply and Xi‘an Civigas has
agreed to purchase nature gas for a term of two years and
nine months commencing from 1 April 2023 to 31 December
2025. The period/annual caps amount for the transactions
under the 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement for the
nine months and each of the two years ended/ending 31
December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2025
be RMB112,790,000, RMB206,174,000 and RMB227,572,000
respectively, details of which may refer to the announcement of
Company dated 31 March 2023.

Shaanxi Natural Gas is a shareholder of Xi'an Civigas (being a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 40% equity interests in
Xi'an Civigas, by virtue of its interests in Xi‘an Civigas, is regarded
as a connected person of the Company pursuant to chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Shaanxi Natural Gas is principally engaged in the
distribution and pipeline transportation of natural gas, the sale of city
gas, as well as the operation of gasification projects. It is one of the
leading natural gas providers in Shaanxi Province, China. Through the
purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi Natural Gas under 2020-2022
Natural Gas Supply Agreement, 2023 Natural Gas Supply Agreement
and 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement, it can stable the
supply in the region Xi'an Civigas serve.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

Xianyang Haihui is the other shareholder of Xi‘an Civigas Haihui
(being a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 49% equity
interests in Xi'an Civigas Haihui, by virtue of its interests in Xi‘an
Civigas Haihui, is regarded as a connected person of the Company
pursuant to chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Xianyang Haihui is
a company established in the PRC with limited liability and is a
comprehensive natural gas operator which focuses on natural gas
utilisation and integrates investment in and development of LNG and
compressed natural gas (CNG) refilling stations, industrial utilisation
of natural gas (Coal to Gas, Oil to Gas) projects, LNG trading and
road transportation.

In view of the highest applicable percentage ratio of the respective
transactions under the 2020-2022 Natural Gas Supply Agreement
and the 2019-2022 LNG Master Sales Agreement (collectively as
"CCT Agreements”) and their respective annual cap amounts under
the CCT Agreements be more than 5% as set out under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the respective transactions under the
respective CCT Agreements were:

(i)  between the Group and a connected person at the subsidiary
level,

(i) on normal commercial terms or better, and

(iii) approved by the Board and confirmed by the independent non-
executive Directors,

that are therefore exempted from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.101(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, but are subject to annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the CCT Agreements as disclosed by
the Group in the annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions under the CCT Agreements and confirmed that these
transactions entered into by the Group were:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(¢) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no transactions which need
to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constituted connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, they are in compliance with applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules and are reported in this Annual Report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF
DIRECTOR

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Director since the date of Company’s 2022 interim
report is as follows:

Mr, Cheung Chi Ming, being an independent non-executive Director,
on 1 October 2022, he was appointed as executive director and the
Chief Financial Officer of CDW Holding Limited, shares of which are
listed on the stock exchange of Singapore. He was previously worked
as the financial controller of OVM International Development Co.
Ltd.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Board reviews and monitors
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements in a regular basis. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

During the Year, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company
has complied with the requirements under memorandum of association
and Bye-laws of the Company, the Listing Rules, the SFO, the Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda and other laws applicable to the Company. Details
of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in the Listing Rules are provided in
the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Board and the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee"”) consider that it is good corporate governance practice
to review the audit arrangement from time to time in order to
enhance the independence of the Company’s auditor. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been holding office as the
Company’s auditor for over six years since October 2013. With the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Shareholders approved
the appointment and re-appointment of Fan, Chan & Co., Limited
(“Fan, Chan & Co.”) as auditor of the Company in the annual
general meeting of the Company held in the years of 2020, 2021
and 2022, respectively, following the retirement of Deloitte at the
conclusion of the 2020 AGM.

Fan, Chan & Co., being the auditor of the Company, will retire and
being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment in the 2023 AGM. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Fan, Chan & Co. as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 3 % BB 3R

SLRR G ER AT PR 4
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

To the Shareholders of
Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
82 to 245, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FRESFZTEERBRMANZEEAE RRER
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ?J?é%f“ﬁi%ﬁ’]%d‘ﬂ’?%é%ﬁ’]%lﬁ L
financial statements of the current period. These matters were IEXEE&TF?%J‘%%%E??SBﬁﬁ“#&i@&uﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁ—r
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ETERERN BN T8 ELSHERERNE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

REEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBFTNAHERETSRETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”)

YE BERREREHEEERE

We identified impairment of property, plant and equipment
and ROU assets as a key audit matter because the estimation
of their recoverable amounts involve exercise of significant
management judgement. As at 31 December 2022, the net
book value of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and properties under ROU assets before recognition of
impairment loss for the year then ended amounted to
RMB957,992,000 and RMB 104,720,000 respectively.

BB E - BB MR EA R E BEEENRESR &R
B EE FERRGFEATKESBEESTEEREEREH
o 102022F12A310  BREEZ A L FEREESIERF
RAEEEETH BEXEVE BERKEARYEZFER
H{E D Bl A A KR#957,992,0007T & A FR#104,720,0007T °

As at 31 December 2022, there existed indications that the
property, plant and equipment and ROU assets used by the
Group in its networks of supermarkets and a convenience
store might be impaired. Management has conducted an
assessment of impairment for these property, plant and
equipment and ROU assets of the Group to determine
whether the carrying amounts of the assets were higher
than their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the higher of the value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal.

M2022F12A31H  HFEDRET ESEBHRERNEM
WERRAZYE BMERZEREAEEETRLRBE-E
BEEY BSE2UE -BERR ﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁffgéémﬁ
ETHA NETEERAERSS N A RE £ 5 - ATk E
SHROENCAEEEARBEREERAMERNRSEES

F o

Our audit procedures in relation to the management's
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and ROU assets of Group’s subsidiaries
included:

BMEHAEEEMET EXEBMBARYE BER
BREAREREEERRBEN ENEFET B

®  assessing and challenging the Group’s impairment
assessment models. This included challenging
management’s identification of impairment
indicators, as well as considering whether the
discounted cash flow forecasts on a store-by-store
basis supported the carrying value of the relevant
non-current assets. We also considered whether
the Group’s impairment assessment indicated
that a reversal of a past impairment provision was
required;

e AKRERE EXENRENHEER  LBEEE
REBESMNAEES AREEZEURRS
= TR R 2 S'Zhifﬁf%#m@)ﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬂ%@ﬁ@
BMTER BEXENRETHEARATE
(2] 38 £ R (B 5 8

e comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including
future revenue, margins, staff costs and rental
and other lease related expenses, with the
historical performance of these supermarkets and
a convenience store, management'’s forecasts and
new operating lease terms;

e BHURREREBATMANSEZHALIE (2
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Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBETNIHERETSRETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”) (Continued)

VE - BERREREFEEENRE (&)

The value in use of the cash generating unit is calculated
from cash flow projections by using data from the Group’s
internal forecasts and as such relies upon management
assumptions, such as the estimates of future performance,
corporate expense allocation and the discount rate.

ReE4BUNEREENENRERA ES£ENEE
REEMENRESRETRN  ZFRAKERNEEENRRK
MARRRIREE  CERAI BN RBIRE-

The estimation of future operating performance of the
Group's supermarkets and a convenience store is dependent
on, amongst others, the industry landscape, overall
economic environment and the competitors in local markets.
Management assesses, on a yearly basis, whether there are
events indicating a potential impairment of the non-current
assets.
ESEBHRENENRRLEERFNGTICAR (KF 8
B)TERR BERLERRERAMMSNGEFHF -BIRE
BFEIERESFERAERDEEF EHTBERNEE-

Based on the assessments, management is of the view
that that an impairment loss of RMB11,914,000 and
RMB11,446,000 should be recognised for property, plant and
equipment and ROU assets, respectively, for the year.
ERZENE EEERRIFERDE BKEREHENU
RERAEEERSFIBRARK11,914,000T K AR
11,446,0007T & 3 E E5 18 °

evaluating the discount rates adopted in the cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against those
of other similar supermarkets and convenience
stores;

%2 R E M R T & E F S B BE 3R R AT E
ReREEBARERATERAMEIRE:

performing a sensitivity analysis of both discount
rates and cash flows and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment charge and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and
ETRRELBERENFRE DT RERRE
ERMEEANTEREEFREEAERERRH
PR R

considering the Group’s disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment and ROU assets in supermarkets and a
convenience store, including the key assumptions
and sensitivities to changes in such assumptions,
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
2ERTEAEUNNER Z8 EEENEGEEH
Bi& P A AET REENYE BB KR E
REAEEEMNRENANKE  BREFERRKXNU
REZERZEHNGRE -



The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

ERFESEFHHEHMBENRARE HUENBRET
BERFHRANER ETEREEMBRRLR
PITA L 3% H R R BREM 3R 5 -

BPEGEEMBHRRNBERAL TREELMER
BT SRS EMERNBEREATANERE

=A
amg ©

BARMERAMBREROBT RANEETE
BIEEMER LBt EEAMENS TR
RERBmRKIEMERTERTBEENER
FEERPF HEBUFFEERHERRDNE
RoBEREMEANTHIE WREMABREM
BRFHEER#HERRL RHFEREZFE-
EETE RARMATHRENER -

BERRESAARRBEESTMASHMNNE
B EER R EE D BRDIA R E R RS
BEEMAFHNEREMHRE LHERRRELR
B PSR AR BT i A ERRF S B BR T 2R
MEABRRAFAFOANIEIEEST -

ERBREMBBRRE ESAAME E5E
SELENEE N XEERBN TREEFEL
EERNER ARERABELERGTER.
RAEEZAER BEXEBRIFLEL 5
BEHOERNER TR

BERENMBRERERF-



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3 &% BB 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR TR A S b Eict
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED ERENET @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with WERIEE B AN EIRT BB EM L EIRE
governance, we determine those matters that were of most AEGAUBERERNBFSZAEE  AMEKE
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements — $|atEIHE - XN RS P HHEMELER
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We BRIEEFEERIATARBERILEFTEFIE LK
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation mERNBRT EEEEEHERMEESHE
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely EXEEMEKNNAEERSSHBEEEANA
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be BHE BT SELBER T ERSEREEZX
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences £Ig -

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited BRESTETERAA

Certified Public Accountants HEDEAD
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Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERERAEMZERGERR

Year Ended 31 December 2022 #EH ZE2022F12A31HBLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETR AREFIT
Revenue WA 5 2,867,697 2,731,601
Cost of sales and services $HE MBRIEA A (2,577,691) (2,348,949)
Gross profit E7 290,006 382,652
Impairment losses under the expected credit FBEIEEEBBERX T 2 BEEE
loss (“ECL") model, net of reversal [l 7 (1,401) (62)
Other gains and losses Hip Uz M EE 8 (21,697) (19,410)
Other income H A 9 47,502 44,836
Finance costs B 7 B R 12 (3,518) (6,935)
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAY (152,814) (159,813)
Administrative expenses THAX (102,739) (126,085)
Share of results of associates il NG e 15,264 15,629
Share of results of joint ventures EIEAECEESE 4,159 53,698
Profit before tax B 5% A1 i £ 74,762 184,510
Income tax (expense) credit FTER (FX)E R 13 (16,073) 2,543
Profit for the year ARF R 10 58,689 187,053
Other comprehensive income (expenses) for  FEEEME2EWA (%)
the year
ltems that will not be reclassified HgBTeggsEsBaz
subsequently to profit or loss: BH:
Fair value change on equity instruments BAABEFAEMEEKEZ
at fair value through other BaITAZARBEER
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (BB FEE)
net of tax 19,784 (56,091)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) for  FEEMEHEBA (FAX)
the year 19,784 (56,091)
Total comprehensive income for the FEE2HEBALTE
year 78,473 130,962
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEREAAEMZERGRR

Year Ended 31 December 2022 #H Z2022F12A31HLEE

2022 2021
2022F 20214
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®ET R AR®TT
Profit for the year attributable to: THIEIEFE R :

Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ 2SN 32,890 167,781
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 25,799 19,272
58,689 187,053

Total comprehensive income attributable to: % f&{f 2 & Ut A\ 48 %58 -
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIEZ 2SN 52,790 111,685
Non-controlling interests TR 25,683 19,277
78,473 130,962
Earnings per share FRRAR 15 RMB A R# RMB AR
~ basic —HK 0.37 cents 1.88 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBS R

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E ARET T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B K& fE 16 946,078 908,381
Right-of-use assets CRAREE 17 93,632 105,396
Investment properties "EME 18 4,540 10,720
Goodwill [EES 19 - -
Intangible assets mpAE 20 19,584 20,814
Interests in associates NN P ey 21 152,703 137,439
Interests in joint ventures REBLE R 22 1,347,107 1,342,948
Deferred tax assets EERIIAE B 34 5,264 5,649
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEARE AEMEE KR
ZiEmTHE 23 127,544 104,119
Long-term deposits RHZ S 24 22,352 48,285
Loan receivable FEUE 5K 25 - 26,133
2,718,804 2,709,884
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 26 48,925 50,993
Trade, bills and other receivables and B 5 28 NKH M E Y FRIE
prepayments LA X2 78 51 5038 27 253,155 204,644
Contract assets BREE 28 27,307 37,494
Financial assets at fair value through profit EAAREFAEBZRZ
or loss (“FVTPL") TREE 29 - 1,405
Bank balances and cash IRITER RIS 30 555,115 575,164
884,502 869,700
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 [k H A FE T 5RIR 31 266,288 245,355
Contract liabilities aHERE 28 219,632 238,453
Tax liabilities HESE 12,953 22,074
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 3,488 3,507
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE ——FRE H 33 85,020 77,000
587,381 586,389
Net current assets REBEEFE 297,121 283,311
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBAER 3,015,925 2,993,195
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMEBERAER

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

2022 2021
20225 20214F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR T ARET T
Capital and reserves BARRG#E
Share capital & s 35 564,507 564,507
Reserves HE 2,184,672 2,137,574
Equity attributable to owners of the KATEBANELER
Company 2,749,179 2,702,081
Non-controlling interests FEERES 51 233,519 235,039
Total equity 48 R 5 2,982,698 2,937,120
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——F12 35 33 500 23,250
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 11,808 14,666
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIEA R 34 20,919 18,159
33,227 56,075
3,015,925 2,993,195

AV HRREEEZEEEMN2023F3A31HitbE
MIRETZ  THUTRERES:

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed
on its behalf by:

=8
©
. . S
Dr. Mo Shikang Mr. Fan Fangyi £
Director Director £
EitEEL BHEHEEE
EF EFE
FRERERAT gg
2022F R (FE20225F12A31B L FE)



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RS EJJ x

Year Ended 31 December 2022

£2022F12B31BLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREARERR
Surplus Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed reserve Deemed Capital ~ revaluation valuation Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus fund  contribution ~ contribution reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total
Bx  ROEE  KARRE  SABR BHORE  BEER  RAKE REEMER URGERE  AHRE  REEW &t FERES #if
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e) (Note f)
(Wita) (Hitb) (i) (W) (Hiite) (Wit
At 1 January 2021 ®202151A18 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 163,278 26,628 711 121,968 20 6,657 600674 2,590,199 236,087 2,826,286
Profit for the year TERET - - - - - - - - - - 167,781 167,781 19272 187,053
Fair value change on equity instruments AR B AE B2 AR
at FvIoC LRETAZRAEED = = = = = = = (6,002) = - - (66,002) 7 (65995)
Income tax relating to fair value change £ 21 Bzt A Kt 2 E G
on equity instruments at FVTOCI JERIAIDAERS
ARZAER = = - - - - - 9,906 - - - 9906 @ 9904
Total comprehensive (expense) income A% E 27 (F3) i
for the year #8 = = = o o - - (56,096) = = 167,781 111,685 19217 130,962
Appropriations &% - - - - 35329 - - - - - (35,329) - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) WE-RHEAR (K1) - - - - - - - - - - - - 22,99% 2,998
Acquisition of additional interestina ~ WE-HHBLR 2 BMER
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 197 197 (344) (147)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 FHEA FEERER
of subsidiaries RE - - - - - - - - - - - - (42,979) (42,979)
At31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 12021128318
Ra0n%1A18 564507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 198,607 26,628 7. 65872 20 6,657 73333 2,702,081 235039 2937120
Profit for the year REFER - - - - - - - - - - 32,890 32890 2579 58,689
Fair value change on equity instruments 24 (Exf A £t 2 EEZ
at VIoC BEIAZARERY - - - - - - - B2 - - - B41 (137) 8275
Income tax relating to fair value change  ER 2% 3 A Kb 2 EE
on eqity instruments at FVTOCI LERIEZDAEERY
FBZABHR = = = = = = = (3512) = = = (3512) il (3,491)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEF2ANEAE - - - - - - - 19,900 - - 32,890 52,790 25,683 18473
Appropriations L - - - - nn - - - - - (@.211) - - -
Acquisition of  subsidiary (note 40) WEHRBAR (K0 - - - - - - - - - - - - 4013 4013
Acquisition of assets through acquisiion  ERKEMEL ARELE
of a subsidiary (note 41) (Wizka1) - - - - - - - - - - - - 14,351 14,351
Capital injection into a subsidiary A-HHBAREE - - - - - - - - - - - - 8,000 8,000
Capital reduction of a subsidiary —~FIHBARZ BREE = = = - - = = B - = = = (780) (780)
Acquisition of additionalinterestina ~ WE-FINBLR BMER
subsiciary (note 25) (Wizt2s) - - - - - - - - - - (5,692) (5,692) (22,007) (27,6%9)
Dividends paid to non-controlling fPHEARDEERER
interests of subsidiaries IR - - - - - - - - - - - - (30,780) (30,780)
At 31 December 2022 ®2022512A318 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 225,884 26,628 711 85,772 20 6,657 733244 2,749,179 233519 2,982,698
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equi

Year Ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12H31HILFE

Capital reserve was recognised as a result of acquisition of additional
interest in an associate which became a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the Company’s share capital issued as consideration in exchange for the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the
time of the Company’s listing in 1997.

The articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” OR “China”) state that they
should make an appropriation of 10% of their profit for the year (prepared
under generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each year to
the surplus reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of the paid-in
capital. The surplus reserve fund shall only be used for making good losses,
capitalisation into paid-in capital and expansion of their production and
operation.

The deemed contribution was arisen from a fair value adjustment of
imputed interest of a consideration related to acquisition of subsidiaries
from the major shareholder during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Capital contribution was arisen from the discontinuation of electrical
and mechanical engineering service operations at the time of disposal of
Kenworth Group in 2004.

The other reserve of the Group represents the effect arising from the
change in the Group's equity interest on existing subsidiary without losing
control.

B &E -

(a)

(e)

B U fE — B 2 A R R SME R (B AR — R
BAR) MERNEANGER -

B\ B fRFE RN B A 19974 T B B DA 1 LA B B
BRARMRERETZAARRDHBRAEE
HZENBARBERITZRAMERBRZ 258

ARBRAPEARKNE ([FE])ZEMLZ
MEBARzESKERARINR REASSEF
Ezad (REPR-—KRABEARUBE) 2
10%ERERHRNES BERBEIGAER
Z250% - BB A ER AN BEBSE  EXML
EPFABRUARBEREEERKE -

BIETERBRBE2015F3A318 IEFEHH
TERRBEMNBARNBHEIRBZHENRZ

NAEFHE-

i & 28 B 720044 ) & Kenworth Grouph 48 1E
BIIRRBEES-

REEz Bt FEEEASBERRAMEDQR 2K
BEY  CRAEERRELEZTE-

PRERBRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FRAERER

Year Ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225 128318 ILLEE
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2022 2021
2022% 20215
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES geEs
Profit before tax FR A5 A Al 74,762 184,510
Adjustments for: SETEE B A
Share of results of joint ventures BLEEELEERE (4,159) (53,698)
Share of results of associates BB NRIZ £E (15,264) (15,629)
Bank interest income RATH S WA (5,293) (5,819)
Interest income from loan to a non-controlling interest RE—HBAREERER 2
of a subsidiary BRI B WA (164) (650)
Fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL BAR B ABR EREE L AR BEEY 3 314
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBARZER - 561
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and HENE BERREREAREEL
right-of-use assets BB 269 9,153
Loss on disposal of an investment property HERENE BB 1,652 -
Fair value loss of investment properties BREMEDAEER 2,080 380
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—-RNB R RAZBERE KR (11) -
Difference arising on acquisition WEEE,ZS (1,405) -
Amortisation of intangible assets BBV EE 1,230 1,226
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE BEREETE 57,111 61,719
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 6,620 14,245
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant HNE BERRERRZRESE
and equipment 11,914 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of right-of-use REREEERR 2 RERSRE
assets 11,446 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill HEERRARESRE - 9,221
Premium charged for the National Equities Exchange 2EPNEERPDEZZGERELAA
and Quotations Co., Ltd (“NEEQ") status arising on ([RERE ) RAMEEZ WEEEER
acquisition - 2,854
Impairment losses (reversal) in respect of trade and other & 5 [ E b JE U ZUB 2 B E B8 (B[E )
receivables 1,401 (2,468)
Impairment losses in respect of loan receivable ERERZAEER - 2,530
Other income HA A (44) =
Finance costs BB A 3,518 6,935
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital % EE¢ZEA 2 KLBERE 145,666 215,384
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (Em) 4,610 (794)
(Increase) decrease in trade, bills and other receivables and & 5 « 245 J2 B e U 5 T8 A |2 B A 2018
prepayments (Em)aL> (44,018) 22,273
Increase in amounts due from non-controlling interests of ~ EUTP B A A 3FHE IR 5 2 ZIBHE N
subsidiaries (2,013) -
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BNEBEERD (E) 10,187 (22,091)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities ANBECRD)EM (18,821) 603
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 K Hopth e FRIEE A0 ORi ) 32,511 (17,646)
Decrease in amount due to a non-controlling interest of a & — I B 2 BIIFE R ER 2
subsidiary HIER D (16,113) (7,175)
Decrease in amount due to an associate Rk ANETE R - (46)
Cash generated from operations BEEBEERS 112,009 190,508
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BENRECEREH (25,540) (26,710)
Net cash from operating activities REEBMEREFHE 86,469 163,798




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHRERE

Year Ended 31 December 2022 #EHZE2022F 12831 HILFEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR®ETR AR®TT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE® % BE &KX H (33,319) (93,609)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEME BERZBEREREEEZ
plant and equipment and right-of-use EffES
assets (33,851) (35,534)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, including WEHB AR BRERHKA
transaction costs 40 (8,909) (3,276)
Acquisition of land use rights and other RS — IR B A R i
assets and liabilities through acquisition of ~ AR HEMEEREE
a subsidiary 41 (18) 500
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIB AR 39 - 427
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOC| BERANEFAEMEEREZ
EmITHE (150) (2,652)
Addition of right-of-use assets WM REEE (1,421) (3,045)
Loan granted to non-controlling interests A FE 12 AR 2 5 HE R - (30,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREERE
plant and equipment 7,139 8,254
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HEREMEMEHIE
property 2,448 =
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERAREFABRZEHEE (6,000) =
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEEAREFABRZEREE 6,044 =
Interest received from banks B WERTTHE 5,293 5,819
Net cash used in investing activities REZSMACHEHE (62,744) (153,116)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
New bank borrowings raised FERMBTEE 85,520 77,000
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 BRTEE (100,250) (76,166)
Capital injection into a subsidiary from non- BBIEERE R —FHHBEAREE
controlling interests 8,000 -
Capital reduction of a subsidiary — M B AR Z B AH R (780) =
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of {5 F {8 A 7] IR AR 4 =5 2 Bk &
subsidiaries (30,780) (42,979)
Repayment to non-controlling interests A FE1E AR 2 B 3K - 51
Acquisition of additional interest in a Y g — I FT BB 2 ) 2 B M 2R
subsidiary - (147)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (1,966) (1,208)
Interest paid ERHE (3,518) (6,935)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBIA RS (43,774) (50,384)
FRERERAA

20225 3R (&

£2022F12A31HLLFE)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeEBaERE

Year Ended 31 December 2022 #H Z£2022F12HA31BILLFE

2022 2021
20228 20214
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR®ETR AREFTT
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReEhBeEHEBEERDFRE (20,049) (39,702)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#H & RFEEFEEE
the year 575,164 614,866
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRAC KA SEFEEE -
year, represented by bank iRTREBRIR S 25
balances and cash 30 555,115 575,164

920 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2022 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2022)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBRRHE

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in Bermuda on 13 November 1996. On 24 April 1997, the
Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section headed "Corporate
Information” of the Company's annual report.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Lofty Key Limited, incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Renown City Holdings Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Dr. Mo
Shikang, who is also the executive Director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the piped gas
transmission and distribution including the provision of piped
gas, construction of gas pipelines and the operation of city gas
pipeline network; (ii) the cylinder gas supply; (iii) distribution of
gas and (iv) the fast moving consumer goods (“FMCG") and
food ingredients supply business including the operation of
chain stores including supermarkets and a convenience store in
the PRC. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 50.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

—REH

FRERBRAF ([RAF])MR1996511
BBBERBRETMRLEEREERA
Al A1997F4A248 AR R 2RI N EF
BBAX AR AR ([BWRAF]) iR E
MeARARFMPEEREZEEWB 2
MU R A RBFRZ [RAIER] —EHRHE

=

EERR ARBZEERERABRERE
Ram FREBEBRESEMAILZE
REFERAF ARAZZBEBRARSKRE
ZRAR AR R E B BB B
ZBREBEERR NAF 2 RRZEBTT TR
ARBMTEFREFEBRL -

ARB/—EREERAF HNB AR E
EETERE=()EENRBL BRHEE
BRR - BERREBEREERMMREE
ABA (BRI R (iDFAR D 86 R (iv)
RMHEEMESER (RREEEBm RMEF
EEANEEHE) HREIEMBARZER
h BB MY RESO ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 16

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to the standards listed
above in the current year has had no material effect on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior year and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”> (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

FERFET R&BIEFT S
B 75 ¥R &5 2 Bl (@)

EHEMERRERZHTREETEEM
3R & 2 A
AEEYEREFEAUATEBMBERNKE
MR R ERT BB M mEER

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RTFI B2 ZHRMN
EHHBEX
. HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts (including the October 2020 and February 2022 1 January, 2023
Amendments to HKFRS17)
BB B EERE 7R R AL (EIE2020F 108 R2022F2 A & 55 & 28 2023F1A1H
BIE 175 BEETA)
. Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BB B EERE 10 REBRFERE28% (5574 ) REZ AR E N A5k FE

RETEZANEELEXTE

o Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

1 January, 2024

B BHEERE 165 (BFF) ERHEMHER E 20241 A1H
o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current and 1 January, 2024

related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
BEEEERE 1S (BFTX) EHEESER B R R
BEZBEES (1£5]4) (20204 )

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

20241818

1 January, 2024

BEEETEAZE 19 (BT R EwE B fE 202451 A1H
o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting 1 January, 2023

Policies

BBEETERE 19 R BB EHEERERERE29 (55T ST HR B 5 2023F1A1H

o Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January, 2023

BB EFTEREST (55T ) Bt 65 T & 20231818

. Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 1 January, 2023
Single Transaction

BBEFEAE 129 (BFT X)) BE—X ZEXHEER B EF B ELENE 2023F 1818

FRERERAF
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”> (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of the above new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristic of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

FEESITHE @

RAAEIRAERRTHEL2EEREKRF
RPFHEEEAN MRS ERAGAXN
MER M Im%ERETEZRABENA
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BENES AIRKERGFEEXAEN
MREREEEZEELBBENREC LS
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DNREDRLEEETF  HEBREBVBER
& RS2SR [AR D S ERN K] BEH
BN /RERNRR S REEMBREE
165 [HE] ARMNEER S A HE
RAEBDRUELIFARENTE (WE
AERTERIE25 (78] RAyAT R EX
ARG ERIF36H [EERME] NERE
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N 25 2 BE
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

. has the power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components
of equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group's and the non-controlling interests' proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS9 “Financial
Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date, and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS
9 would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'ClES (Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

FESFTEE @

I 48 AL R H5 2 B B X B AR

AEERBE-ALTEX-BAEBLEE
AER BAERAAEIEBEEES
MEENERBENZSRERSKE 2
BRI RAIEERDAERE MEEEZ
BREHRERAREERSRZAYAARE
PEEHMERABAIEERAE AR
HTEELHEBAREBEE RS-

HE

Ui S E A MR B AR BB 75 B IR0 RK
A (R EXEFBR)BRFTRERE (10
BN

RETRENR BEEOEIAKEAE
AHEEE RURB AT R i R s 2 SR A
SEZRcELABUNREELEUAER -

BORMECREELBENGEFRME
BENSBNZA B LS EEREREA
THEITRER A - B s B U
EEZEE EoEBBCRecELEMS
EZRERBERZAETRERNH - MRS
EABM A RESELRRESRE  BE
BREEEPRIEINZEML ZEEZR
TR ARERZRCELEN I ZHE
ERASRZLP - SREBRZHBBIE
BBz EMEE - ERERIRE &R
AREmD AEEEIANREBEETERE
®EARE D -

REERBRSELENK BEEHESHE
REEHLERNBRSRERTAEA-

FRERERAF
2022F (B E2022F12831H L EE)

=
i
v
c
©
=
'S

101

B8




The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associate and joint venture is described below.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control" of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

3 the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:
1) Piped gas transmission and distribution

The Group supplies natural gas to customers through
pipelines, including both residential households and
commercial and industrial customers. Revenue is
recognised when the piped natural gas is transferred to
and consumed by customers of which the volume of gas
sold is measured by gas meters installed at customer sites.

2)  Construction and installation

The Group provides construction and installation service
under construction contracts with its customers. Such
contracts are entered into for customers to gain access to
the Group’s gas pipelines. Revenue is recognised over time
based on the completion status of respective construction.
The construction period is typically less than one year.
The management considers that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(Continued)

3)  Cylinder gas supply

The Group sells liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") to
customers by tank containers, including both residential
households and commercial and industrial customers.
Revenue is recognised when control of LPG has
transferred, being when the LPG has been bulk delivered
to the customers’ specific location.

4)  Gas distribution

The Group sells liquefied natural gas (“LNG"”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG"”) to commercial and
industrial customers. Revenue is recognised when control
of CNG/LNG has transferred, being when CNG/LNG has
been delivered to the customers.

5) FMCG and food ingredients supply

The Group also sells merchandise to customers through
supermarket and a convenience store. Revenue is
recognised when control of the merchandise has
transferred, being when the goods has been passed to
the customers.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted for on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of various offices, warehouses, equipment and
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

FEESITHE @

ERAITRED A WAKEAEENRA
BEEARENESANHEE @R AR
EHG AV B RR IV ELRENERR
AEERUEE s HERESEEA K-

EHEE

AEEREREHERRRCEARESNA
Fia BHERIEARNATATBEEE
BERZARARAE BE RiBAAEH
E-RHMEZHENRRNEENERNEZE
BMEX S RBREAEEERARFX

EHEERE

EREEEZKRABE:

s HEREBEMIRITESHE:

o MNEBAMAZAFELNEMREN
FoOREMBREHEERS: &

s AEBEANEMIAERKA-

EREEERKARBEMRAFTERRE

BEFTE YEMBEERBEZEMEE

HFE-

EREEENEGAAEAFHLREEN
BZBEEANBRETE:

AEEKEREEENRSMBERRRER
25 5BIIRA -

PRERBRAE

2022F R (FE20225F12A31B L FE)

&
]
(5}
(=
©
=
ic

107

B8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEBERRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 "Financial Instruments" and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

108 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2022 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2022)

FEESITHE @)

HE (&
WREOHEEEE

EXNzAREAEERSRBEETLMBEH
SENFESR [ERMT A ARKINRRAAR
BFtE - HIRER AN B2 ABRKIERE
SMEAEN RIFT AEREEEKA

HEER

REERKBE R NEEZRNE B HARZ
ZHENRZBREERLAERERE -1
AAEHEENRCRER  AREERNEE
FtH A HI B EERA R -

HE R B B E N BB ] R &2
o

KK BERE HERERREFFNELEE
R TFIATE -

HEGRELESR AKEENTEM

SRR (UHRAMEREEEFLHARS
) -

AEEBEERENSEEMBRARBERE
S RBIIRA -

HEET
BAKBEAATRETANH TR

=
FHEAESERI HHRATER &
BRHEERELS - REBHEAK:

&
S

e  RZAEMEBEIER —ANZ AN
MEEZHENBEAEERE: X



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if: (Continued)

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022/2023; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Lease for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or fair value as deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, pipelines and other assets in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or deemed
cost of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal and retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amounts of
depreciation charges on the leasehold lands classified as right-
of-use assets recognised during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as "right-
of-use assets" in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property, plant
and equipment because its use has changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the property's deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss rising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset (which comprises the
gross carrying amount less any impairment allowance) from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9)

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on financial assets (including trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and bank balances) and other items (contract
assets and financial guarantee contracts) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets from initial recognition until derecognition.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for the credit
impaired balances and based on provision matrix for the
remaining balances.
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For all other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PO LlC | ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed
for ECL on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEBERRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. T EESFTBEER @

PO |_|C | ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset
(which is the gross carrying amount less any impairment
allowance).

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to an associate, bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is initially
measured at its fair value and if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation. Amount initially recognised is
amortised over the duration of the guarantee using the
straight-line method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group's investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation
in relation to the Group's investment properties has been
measured based on the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts entirely through use.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 "Income Taxes" requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess
of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) and the retirement funds scheme managed by local
social security bureau in accordance with the government
regulations of the PRC are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
directors are measured at the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

A person or an entity is related to the Group if:
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on the historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over
their economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful life of an item of property, plant and equipment
is a matter of judgment based on the experience of the
Group, taking into account factors such as technological
progress, changes in market demand, expected usage
and physical wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness. Due to long lives
of these assets, changes to the estimates of the useful
lives can result in variations in their carrying amounts
and depreciation charges recognised in respect of the
assets. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB946,078,000 (2021: RMB908,381,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
exist that may affect the recovery of the asset’s carrying
value; (2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, and in the case
of value in use, whether the net present value of future
cash flows are estimated based upon the net cash inflows
expected to be generated from continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including estimation of
future cash flow projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are approximately RMB946,078,000
(2021: RMB908,381,000) and approximately
RMB93,632,000 (2021: RMB105,396,000) respectively.
Impairment loss of approximately RMB11,914,000 and
RMB11,446,000 were recognised for property, plant and
equipment and right of used assets respectively during
the year end 31 December 2022 (the “Year") to the
consolidation financial statements of this annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

(c)

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost with
significant balances or which are credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL. In addition, the Group uses provision
matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of
each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to the changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Groups' trade and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 37(b) and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.

5. REVENUE
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5. WA

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () FEFEANBADN
customers
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Types of goods or services EmS R ER
Sales of piped gas EEMREE 833,924 798,794
Piped gas connection B EMRER 120,317 154,243
Cylinder gas supply T 55 R SR 743,744 895,452
Gas distribution KRR 5 3 1,051,239 774,882
FMCG and food ingredients supply BRMHERES 118,473 108,230
2,867,697 2,731,601
Timing of revenue recognition WA B R P
On point in time basis SR 2h 2,747,380 2,577,358
On over time basis HHFEL 120,317 154,243
2,867,697 2,731,601
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5. REVEN U E(Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRe MR T EE

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the segment revenue
amounts disclosed in the segment information.

A ca)

() FEFEHNBADH (&)

BEPAHMBAED FFER D ED
BB A S BRI

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFIT
Segment revenue 2 EBULA
Piped gas transmission and distribution & & A R AC
Sales of piped gas BBMRIEE 833,924 798,794
Piped gas connection BB RER 120,317 154,243
954,241 953,037
Cylinder gas supply I 5 R SR A 743,744 895,452
Gas distribution KRR 9 $H 1,051,239 774,882
FMCG and food ingredients supply BRMHERES
— Retail and wholesales of merchandises —Z& & #E35 & 118,473 108,230
2,867,697 2,731,601
All the revenue from contracts with customers are derived EPERANFAERAERERE-

from the PRC.
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The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

(a)

Sales of gas and merchandise

For the sales of cylinder gas, a receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued.

For the sales of natural gas, the Group would
require advance payment before the delivery of
gas for certain customers, any shortage against the
periodically actual delivery of the natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days to its customers
for the invoices issued.

The Group sells merchandise directly to retail
customers within supermarket and a convenience
store. Revenue from sales of goods to retail
customers is recognised when the product is
transferred to the customers upon sales. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchases the goods. The payment is
usually settled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sell merchandise to wholesalers.
Revenue from sales of merchandise to wholesalers
is recognised when the control of the merchandises
has transferred, being when the merchandises
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales
of merchandises not yet delivered to customers
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when goods are delivered
to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVEN U E (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contract with customers

(Continued)

(a)

Sales of gas and merchandise (Continued)

For the sales of piped gas, the Group would require
advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual usage of natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its
customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for
future usage of natural gas supplied by the Group.

In addition, the Group requires advance payment
before the usage of the natural gas through prepaid
card for certain household users. The charge of the
actual usage of natural gas will be deducted directly
to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers
can only consume the natural gas up to the balance
of the prepaid card.

Construction

The Group provides gas pipeline construction
services under construction contracts with its
customers. Such contracts are entered into before
construction of the gas pipeline begins. The Group’s
performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs. Revenue
from construction of gas pipeline is recognised
over time on an input method, i.e. based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs. The directors consider that this input
method best depicts the Group’s performance
in transferring control of services and hence is
the appropriate measure of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations under HKFRS 15 due to its accuracy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

5. REVEN U E (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contract with customers
(Continued)

(b)  Construction (Continued)

The Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits before the commencement of
the construction which will give rise to contract
liabilities until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contracts exceed the amount of the
deposits. The Group is entitled to invoice customers
for gas pipeline construction upon completion
of construction works. The Group recognises
contract asset for any work performed in excess of
payment from customer for the same contract. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables upon completion of
construction works. The Group allows an average
credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers and
extending to 180 days for major customers.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All the contracts for sales of gas and merchandise,
and gas pipeline construction are for original expected
duration of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), being the managing director of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
sold or services rendered which is also consistent with the basis
of organisation of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group currently organises its operations into four operating
divisions, which also represent the operating segments of
the Group for financial reporting purposes, namely (i) piped
gas transmission and distribution; (ii) cylinder gas supply; (iii)
gas distribution and (iv) FMCG and food ingredients supply.
They represent four major lines of business engaged by the
Group. The principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

(1)

Piped gas transmission and distribution — sales of piped
gas and construction of gas pipeline networks under gas
connection contracts;

Cylinder gas supply — sales and distribution of gas using
tank containers to end-user households, industrial and
commercial customers;

Gas distribution — sales of natural gas to industrial and
commercial customers; and

FMCG and food ingredients supply — wholesales and
retail of merchandise (including but not limited to rice;
meat; fresh food; FMCG) through supermarkets and a
convenience store.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the
reportable segments for segment information presentation.
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31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

6.

AN 2R,
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER @)
Segment revenues and results DEHBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results NTAREEERERREED O E K
by reportable and operating segment. AREEDHT -
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31HILFE
Piped gas FMCG
transmission and food
and  Cylinder gas Gas  ingredients
distribution supply  distribution supply Total
RATHE
BERRAE HEAKME MRS RES @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Trn AR%TR AR¥Tr AR%TR AR%Tx
Segment revenue from external & B MEE F #)
customers 2 ERA 954,241 743,744 1,051,239 118,473 2,867,697
Segment profit (l0ss) DEER (B18) 62,017 17,105 4,472 (25,524) 58,070
Unallocated income RABEBA 7.373
Central administration costs R R{THEAX (6,586)
Share of results of associates ~ fEfE & DA 2 ¥ 45 15,264
Share of results of joint ventures [EfFA AR EXE 4,159
Finance costs AR (3,518)
Profit before tax BBt AT & Al 74,762
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Ny 9=~ N SN
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER @)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBMARKE (F)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results LTAAERREMEEED B E 2K
by reportable and operating segment. (Continued) ARFEEDWT (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A318IEFE
Piped gas FMCG and food
transmission Cylinder gas Gas ingredients
and distribution supply distribution supply Total
R
BEMREE BEERRERE RS RE% @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT ARBTRE ARETT ARET:E

Segment revenue from external & 5 9MNEEE F #)

customers 2 EMA 953,037 895,452 774,882 108,230 2,731,601
Segment profit (loss) PEEM (F]) 120,874 (5,593) 3,474 (9,227) 109,528
Unallocated income RO 19,923
Central administration costs ~ FR{THFX (7,333)

Share of results of associates ~ JE{REE & A7) 2 £4& 15,629

Share of results of joint ventures [E{E A BN EEE 53,698

Finance costs IR A (6,935)

Profit before tax BREL AR A 184,510

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated EXEFR 2D BRAGREIINEBES

from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in W E N D PR SH S o TE%

both years. §
=
£

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating ERREED B 2B BREREFBRAK

segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies Fir A M HRER WA 2 S5 R AR

described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of Blen BB S DM (EE) 2% H

this annual report. Segment result represents the profit (loss) (B8 M ESREIEE AR EE &

earned by (incurred by) each segment without allocation of HEERFEHEE PRITHAX  BBKAR

share of results of associates, share of results of joint ventures, NE T EAMUA o 1t Tt EIR 5 Be R R IR

central administration costs, finance costs and certain other HMEELERREZWMIGFEAA -

income. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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6.

P BTN
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER &
Segment assets and liabilities PTHREERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities NTAREEERERREEDTDHZE
by reportable and operating segments. ENBESH-
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Segment assets ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ
Piped gas transmission and distribution B A i 894,421 869,775
Cylinder gas supply fu&s R SR PR 294,324 357,563
Gas distribution KRE 5 88 51,186 35,431
FMCG and food ingredients supply BRMHERES 37,969 53,175
Total segment assets DEEEBE 1,277,900 1,315,944
Investment properties REME 4,540 10,720
Interests in associates RN 152,703 137,439
Interests in joint ventures REBEZH#ER 1,347,107 1,342,948
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAREFF ARG s EamT 127,544 104,119
Deferred tax assets IRIERIIAE EE 5,264 5,649
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEIRFABE SREE - 1,405
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRE 555,115 575,164
Other unallocated assets HEfARDBLEE 133,133 86,196
Consolidated assets REBE 3,603,306 3,579,584
Segment liabilities PEBEME
Piped gas transmission and distribution BEHEM R E A 299,519 312,408
Cylinder gas supply R R LR 124,948 117,322
Gas distribution KRR 5 88 29,471 10,205
FMCG and food ingredients supply BRMHERES 41,580 44,314
Total segment liabilities SEEEEE 495,518 484,249
Bank borrowings RITEE 85,520 100,250
Tax liabilities HMEEE 12,953 22,074
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEEE 20,919 18,159
Other unallocated liabilities HEARDBEEE 5,698 17,732
Consolidated liabilities magE 620,608 642,464
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEF @

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREME (E)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BABEZSHARBEMRDHEIEEIR

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e KBREWME RBMEARZHES KE
investment properties, interests in associates, interests BhXoEE HAAEFARME
in joint ventures, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred mas 2 e T A RERAEE %
tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and NREFAERZEMEE FRITH
cash, certain property, plant and equipment and other MEBRS HTYE BEMREAR
receivables; and HibhEYCRIBSN - B EEHE HEC

TEEEDE &

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e RIRTEE BHEEE BEEMIEBARE
than bank borrowings, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities BoE THAME M RIESN B RES
and certain other payables. BN T EEEDEL

Other segment information Hihn HER

Piped gas FMCG and
transmission and Cylinder Gas food ingredients
distribution gas supply distribution supply Unallocated Consolidated
EERREE .
k3% EEMRRE REs¥ BNEERES AR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AE®TR N AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AE®TR

For the year ended HZIME1BNALEE
31 December 2022

Amounts included in measure  HEABRATHEN
of segment profitorlossor ~ FAEEBTRZEE:
segment assets:

Depreciation of property, plantand 912 BE k&G E
equipment 34,125 15,725 994 5,954 313 57,111
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEENE 1,180 2,436 - 2,250 754 6,620
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE BERREL
plant and equipment (W) BB () 466 - (522) 38 269
Amortisation of intangible assets B SEEF EE 1,230 - - - - 1,230 2
Impairment loss recognised in respect 415 B Rk &I R S =
of property, plant and equipment  FREEERT &
and right-of-use assets HEBE - 3013 - 20,347 - 23,360 £
Net allowance (reversal of HEHREMENTE
allowances) made in respect of R (BERR)
trade and other receivables BEve 799 (330) (36) 7193 175 1,401
Additions in right-of-use assets PERREARE - 7329 - - 217 7,546
Capital expenditure in respect of ~~ BEME  HE R E
property, plant and equipment LBARY 51,766 20,59 - 58,693 869 131,022
Amounts regularly provided to  EHmEEEERRE
the CODM but not included in ~ E2BRH B HEH
the measure of segment profit  HERAHTEER
or loss or segment assets: BEHR2EH:
Interests in associates REBEAR ER - 152,703 - - - 152,703
Interests in joint ventures RAECE BH 1,347,107 - - - - 1,347,107
Share of results of associates ElBERR £ - 15,264 - - - 15,264
Share of results of joint ventures ~ E(FAELEEE 4,159 - - - - 4,159
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PNy | (=20 (RPN
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. T EPEF ()
Other segment information (Continued) HihnHER (48)
Piped gas FMCG and
transmission and Cylinder Gas  food ingredients
distribution gas supply distribution supply Unallocated Consolidated
EENSE |
Ro# BRORLE KRN ARWEERES AR aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

N R ARETT ARETTR ARETT ARETTR N R

For the year ended 31 December ~ EZ2021512A31A L5 R
2021

Amounts included in measure  #EA BEADFEEIHS
of segment profitorlossor ~ BERHEZEH:

segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% B R BT E

equipment 34,271 23,806 2,19 1,005 441 61,719
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  fFEEEENE 97 6,703 86 6,376 153 14,245

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, (HE%%  MEMRER
plant and equipment and FREEE, (W& BB

right-of-use assets (1,272) 9,330 - 1,028 67 9,153
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ BEEREE 1,226 - = - = 1226
Impairment loss recognised in -~~~ SEERAZAEEE

respect of goodwil - 9,221 - - - 9,221

Net allowance made (reversal of ~ #1 &5 REMERTEZ
allowances) in respect of trade ~ FHIEA R (EEARE)FE

and other receivables 9,406 8,897 (874) 105 (20,002) (2,468)
Additions in right-of-use assets ~ FEFFEAE 700 1,621 616 - 376 3313
Capital expenditure in respect o~ EBHE BER&EZ

property, plant and equipment  EAEY 59,987 43,718 - 9,936 259 113,900

Amounts regularly provided to EHETEEERKERE(E
the CODM but not included in W3t E 4 SR HEE
the measure of segment profit A HEERLEH 2

or loss or segment assets: 8!
Interests in associates REERR ER - 137,439 = - = 137,439
Interests in joint ventures RAERE R 1,342,948 - = - = 1,342,948
Share of results of associates NG S = 15,629 = - = 15,629
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EMEAEAEEE 53,698 - = - = 53,698
Geographical information 1h & & R
All of the Group's revenue was generated in the PRC (place of AEEBRMERATIRNARE (SEEEBEESK
domicile of the group entities that derived the revenue) and over A2 G 2h) =4 R A EEEIEI0% /I FE
90% of the Group's non-current assets were also located in MBEENMIATEH (EEERFEZEE
the PRC (place of domicile of the group entities that hold such EZ M) - Bt - BIE 25 MR &R o
assets). Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.
Information about major customers EBREXEEF2EH
No individual customer of the Group had contributed sales of RREEE  SHEANEE 2 ERE - ERHE
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years. ERBaAEEBKRARI0% o
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER THE 7. BEHEERFEEREXN T Z

ECL MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL EEE  HIREE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Impairment (loss), net of reversal BE (ER) M EE
Trade receivables from contract with customers X BEEE A 7 B ZIE (1,250) (5,953)
Other receivables H b fE W 5k IE (151) 8,421
Loan receivable (note 25) FEUE K (Hi7E25) - (2,530)
(1,401) (62)
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hitth#m Kk EHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BE REEARERRE
and equipment and right-of-use assets BEZER (269) (9,153)
Loss on disposal of an investment property HEREME BB (1,652) =
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRZCRHEE
(note 29) DR EREE (:F29) (3) (314)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) HE—RKT B ARz EE (H5E39) - (561)
Net foreign exchange gain B 72 W o 5 R 4,251 3,073
Fair value loss on investment properties (note 18) #H&WME A # EEE (HE18) (2,080) (380)
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of WEHEB AR ZBEWRENE o
a subsidiary (note 40) (Kt3E40) 1 S5
Difference arising on acquisition (note 41) IR E A 2 =8 (K1) 1,405 §
Premium charged for the NEEQ status arising on &8 R &k E £ 2 ic
acquisition (note 40) WiewEER (MizF40) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RUATSERR ZREER
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BER&E (11,914)
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE (11,446) =
- Goodwill -BE - (9,221)

(21,697) (19,410)
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31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

9. OTHER INCOME

9. HAbt A

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR® T AR¥BTT

Bank interest income RITHBUA 5,293 5,819
Imputed interest income from loan receivable & & 2k~ # & F| B U A 164 650
Rental income, net e WA FE 8,664 6,249
Covid-19-related rent concessions FERSEEEBEEeES - 498
Repair and maintenance services income HIERERBIA 1,635 1,753
Sales of gas appliances, net HEMRZEFE 22,771 18,576
Incentive subsidies (Note) B AL (P 5E) 1,387 4,876
Others Hh, 7,588 6,415
47,502 44,836

Note: The amount mainly represents incentives related to the Group's
operations by the government authorities in the PRC.

10.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

EBHREZER-

10. R FEERA

i RERIBETRBRTRER T ASEE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Directors' emoluments (note 11) E5Me (MIEE11) 5,724 5,245
Other staff costs (excluding directors) EMEIRAN (TEEES)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —#r&  EZEE R EYH = 130,987 147,593
— Retirement benefits scheme —iRRAE FET B R
contributions 18,361 19,158
Total staff costs B TRA 155,072 171,996
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R AR = 2 F &R A 2,518,172 2,297,793
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &
— Audit services —FBZ R 1,000 1,000
— Non-audit services — R 5 =
Depreciation and amortisation e R
— Property, plant and equipment (note 16) —#1% - B/E k& & (H&E16) 57,111 61,719
— Right-of-use assets (note 17) —EAEEE (M:17) 6,620 14,245
— Intangible assets (note 20) —Em A E (MI5E20) 1,230 1,226
Contract cost recognised as expense in MRREBREZEOERAR S 2
respect of gas connection construction BHKA (FFAHEEKA)
contracts (included in cost of sales) 59,519 51,156
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11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NESEZMERAVES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES FNE T
(a) Directors' emoluments (a) EEZEHE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 8 (2021: 8) Bk EMSE (2021F :8R)EBEEZ
directors were as follows: B & 20 -
Performance
related
Directors’ Salaries, incentive Retirement
fees allowances  payments benefits Total
3L
EENE FHeEW  REAX BARER @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TR AR®Tx

(Note (a))
(K@)
For the year ended HZ2022%12A31H
31 December 2022 LtEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr. Mo Shikang R RET - 1,463 196 - 1,659
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RMELE - 1,237 147 - 1,384
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHREE - 667 15 34 716
Miss. Mo Yunbi RZEZ2/\\E - 668 58 50 776
Ms. Li Fun Replen (Note (ii)) gL (BFEG) - 670 - 15 685
Independent non-executive directors: B FFH{TE S -
Mr. Liu Junmin BISER 168 - - - 168
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HBEEHK 168 - - - 168
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming REAEE 168 - - - 168 2
.g E{'
504 4,705 416 99 5,724 uE_
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11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NESZHMERANVES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES FMET =
(Continued)
(a) Directors' emoluments (Continued) (a) BEEZHE (B)
Performance
related
Directors' Salaries, incentive Retirement
fees  allowances payments benefits Total
KA
EEHe Fe 2R BB K RIKEF FoE

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

(Note (a))
(Pi7E())
For the year ended 31 HZ2021%12A318
December 2021 LtEE

Executive directors: HITES:

Dr. Mo Shikang Rt RET - 1,427 180 = 1,607
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RMELE - 1,199 137 = 1,336
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHELE - 658 - 38 696
Miss Mo Yunbi BREZE - 653 50 61 764
Ms. Li Fun Replen (Note (i)  ZEiZ&+ (Kiz(i) = 349 = 7 356

Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

directors:

Mr. Liu Junmin BEHREE 162 - - - 162

Prof. Zhao Yanyun HBEEHK 162 = = = 162

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming RERLE 162 - - - 162
486 4,286 367 106 5,245

Notes: Bt 5 -

()  The performance related incentive payments were () REHBRBNRDSLEZEEZHE
determined by reference to the individual performance ARREE  WEARNRARAFWNEES
of the directors and approved by the remuneration RESZGHE-
committee of the Company and the Board.

(i) Ms. Li Fun Replen has been appointed as executive director (i) FEBXIEEZAABTES 8
with effect from 1 July 2021. 20217 A1 BB ER -
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11.DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors' emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during both years.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, all are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the above disclosures.

12.FINANCE COSTS

ReMBERRNE

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

NESzcHMERANES
HFME L »

(a) EEZHM= (&)

EXFRRATEEME DERRSE
BARRRAEEEL 2RI -

EXFRRBILIFNTEEHE A
BEERARRERT Z R

R EFE A I &R EERITE
REBMELARAERAREMAFHN L
HEe

(b) EfUESHFMAL

AEERAUESHFMALREARRE
E HEME2ERN EXHE-

12. 81 & B AR

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREF T

Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFNE 2,577 5,925
Interest on lease liabilities HESEHE 941 1,010
3,518 6,935

=
o
o]
f=
(]
=
i
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PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"):
— Current tax
— Over provision in prior years

—BIHAR IR

Deferred taxation (note 34) EIEFRLTE (Fi5E34)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for both years.

The EIT rates applicable for the Group's PRC subsidiaries ranged
from 15% to 25% (2021: 15% to 25%).

Following the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in Western
Region which was promulgated by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC in 2014, certain
subsidiaries which are operating in the Western China region
are granted a concessionary tax rate of 15% by the local tax
bureau.

Income tax credit for small-scaled minimal profit enterprise

In accordance with the announcement no. 12 of 2021
regarding (EAREM/NMAECENMEEIEFMSHESRHRE
A% ) (“Implementation of Preferential Income Tax Policies
for Small Profit Making Enterprises and Individual Industrial and
Commercial Household*"”) issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Taxation Administration, for the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2022, in respect of the portion
of taxable income for the year of less than RMB1 million
derived by the Group’s small profitmaking enterprises, the
enterprise income tax shall be levied at a further reduced rate
of 50% on the basis of preferential policies stipulated in Article
Two of the Cai Shui 2019 No. 13 Document.

*  For identification purpose only

—BEFEBERE

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFIT

FRISEMEN ([REMRFHR])

19,961
(16,909)

(5,595)

(2,543)

HRAEERAFELENETBEETM
JERBU A - B W BALR S M B HERAE
BRS B IR B -

AEBAHBEKMBEARAEBCEMSHRE
N F15%Z%25% (20214 : 15%E25% ) °

REBRZERMUERBGEAN20145F
Bame (OMeEEBBEEXBE)  RF
BRAMEENE THBARCSEE LN B
RMTRBREB BERETNECEMERS
15%

IREERFEHRER

BETERBERERBEEEMRZ AE
2021125% R ERE/ MR EFEEE TRy
FEERERBRNODE) » 2021F1A1H
F2022912A31 8 I B SEASEE /)
TCEEEMNARE—ABETUTHFEER
R AZS S - BIEE 20191358 {55 =
16 E B R EUR » # — P IR50% 5 Bt B &K
W E TS -
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31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 1BEHRAX (ER) @
(Continued)
The charge (allowance) for the year can be reconciled to the AEERX (BB BEeBaRkAMEH
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or W 2 ¥ 2= P9I 89 R B AR A SRR AT -

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBETT

Profit before tax B A% A1 4t A 74,762 184,510

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% 1% 7N 3 B 15 54 58 25 %

(2021: 25%) (20214 : 25% )7t & 18,691 46,128
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures FE{R & & P EEBE 2 HET E (1,040) (13,425)
Tax effect of share of results of associates ~ FE(REEE AR EE 2 HRIEFE (3.816) (3,907)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax AR A 2 BT &
purpose (2,172) (9,258)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A #0754 5 sz 2 i 75 5 22
purpose 17,612 13,144
Tax effect of profit which are under tax MIERRIE a2 RB e
concessions (26,344) (25,710)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIAEIE 2 MG & 11,494 7,321
Over provision in prior years BEFEBERE (484) (16,909)
Other Hit 2,132 73
Tax charge (allowance) for the year AEEHIAH (BHE) 16,073 (2,543)
Note: The tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) represents EIT which is M ERMABHMRBXERANALEEAE
applicable to most of the Group's operations in the PRC for the REFERFBEZKEH EH (20214 f_g§
Year. 25% ) ° £
.E
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RmERR ASERERARIBERE
unused tax losses of approximately RMB265,738,000 (2021: %43 AN R #265,738,0007T (20214F : AR
RMB219,762,000) available for offset against future profits. 219,762,0007T ) Al RSB AR A=) o B
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the BOEMMFT AR Z A A O Rt % S B 1R i
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. These RIEETIREE - 2 S AR ERMIBBEIR
unrecognised tax losses will expire in various dates up to 2027 ARIBHER EE20274F (20214 : 2026
(2021: 2026). F)e
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31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

14.DIVIDEND 1418 2

No dividend was paid, declared, or proposed during the Year REERNFEATES [ BIRSEZZST
(2021: nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the end ARE (20214 - £&) - BWEHARASRIN A2
of the Year. FEEAEMRKRE -
o
15.EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.8KRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RATER AEEERERZR THRE A
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEEETE
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit BRERNBMNDEARRBESR A EIEER
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted BRARFEEANE BITERAR 2 NETIEE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the Year. FE -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETTT

Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RNREIHEH A E1hAFE
of the Company and for the purposes of w A R BET E B IRER AR

basic earnings per share 32,890 167,781
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
Number of shares R&OHAB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A {E&t & & AR E A & R 2 HnfE
for the purpose of basic earnings per 19 3 i AR
share Qe 8,934,561,203  8,934,561,203
No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as MEFE TR GREERTN  HRl &
there was no potential ordinary shares in issue. EREHTHEEL B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

16.M% -HMEKZE

Furniture,
fixtures Plant,
Leasehold  and officc ~ machinery Transportation Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  and pipeline vehicles in progress Total
B GAEE  EG 82 )
E7 NELE RBLZRE RE#E EREH HEIR @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
cost A
At 1 January 2021 R0211E1A1H 215,253 12,949 31,924 873,499 68,961 44529 1,247.115
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) ~ WEERHB &) (Hf3£40) = = = 23 = = 23
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHELA 2 (78) (55) 41 (574) - (750)
Additions RE 30,952 - 9,576 21410 3,645 8317 113,900
Transfer 2% - - - 56,597 - (56,597) =
Disposals/written off HE/H (4.979) (1,585) (614) (12,947) (1.278) (14) (27,417)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 241,224 11,286 40,831 938,541 64,754 36,235 1,332,871
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40)  ARE KB /A & (H13£40) 7901 - 5 2739 A - 10,966
Acquisition of assets through FRKENBLARNEEE
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) ~ (Ff&41) 33 - 2 - 44 9,649 9,728
Additions RE 47,585 1232 5018 39,652 2,725 15,016 111,228
Transfer 85 - - - 32,152 - (32,152) -
Disposalsfwritten off HE/His (2,920) - (18,559) (3.193) (9,535) (867) (35,074)
At 31 December 2022 #022%128318 293823 12518 27347 1,009,891 58,259 27881 1429719
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION B3t HiERHERE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2021 R021%E151H 49,102 6,907 16,324 263,181 42,526 - 378,040
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR 2) (70) 3) (30) (539) = (684)
Provided for the year REERE 15,41 785 357 38,666 6,490 - 61,719
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten off (& /M $aF 4144 (3818) (1,228) (304) (5124) (4111 = (14,585)
At 31 December 2021 #2021512 8318 60,703 6,394 16,334 296,693 44 366 - 424,490
Provided for the year TERRE 12,572 933 105 38,166 5,335 = 57,111
Eliminated on disposalshwritten off 11 & /i34 i3 (1,435) - (681) (1,356) (6,402) - (9.874)
Impairment (note (a)) A (F3Ea) 1949 5,183 1,752 2676 354 = 11,914
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 73,789 12,510 17,510 336,179 43,653 - 483,641
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 220,034 8 9,837 673,712 14,606 21,881 946,078
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 180,521 4892 8491 641,848 20,388 36235 908381
FRERERAF
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Note:

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets which are used in the Group’s retail business
of merchandise through supermarkets and a convenience store,
in view of the unfavorable operating results from that business.
The management estimated the recoverable amount of each of
the supermarkets and convenience store, each representing an
individual CGU, to which the assets belonged. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on value in
use calculations. The discount rate in measuring the amount of
value in use was 11%. Based on the results of the impairment
assessments, the management estimated that the supermarkets
and a convenience store would not generate significant amount
of positive net cash inflows in the future and hence the
recoverable amounts of the relevant leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and office equipment, plant and machinery
and right-of-use assets belonging to these supermarkets and a
convenience store were insignificant. Accordingly, impairment
losses on these assets used in the Group's retail business of
merchandise of RMB8,901,000 and RMB11,446,000 have been
recognised on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets respectively for the Year and included in “other gains and
losses”.

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office

Over the shorter of 40 years or
the remaining terms of leases

Over the shorter of 5 years or
the remaining terms of the
leases

20%

equipment

Plant, machinery and pipeline
Transportation vehicles

3.3% - 20%
12.5% - 20%

The buildings are situated in the PRC, and are for own use
under medium-term lease.

B - BE k&

RBEBRR ERNERTEXEBIAOL
EEE ARARESEHASERBET
LEMNERARZESFANYE BE X
R REREEERAIE S EETRE
A - BEEMFTSBmEENE (FER
REAEAMBNEANRSEESEL) WA
@ﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁi%iﬁﬁm—wﬁll@f%ﬁﬂﬁ
BEREBEFEEE -FFIEFREBESHE
BRI ER11% - RIBRENGEER B8
EBsrBmREMNERRTIEEERNELE
RERAFRE WEBZSBTRZEF
EZEBEEMEEE R HBRFA
ERE BMEREEURGEAEEENT
Wl AW AEKX B REFZE D HIF
AEENMTEEBMAZSEERRR
BB A R¥38,901,0007T A M 5t ¥ % - &
BREZEARERAEEERRREESEEA
R%11,446,0007T » AT A [ E Ath 2 & &5
Bl

SHEEE (FE2TRERSN)

TIABE SRR T O FRIFE

BF A0F SRR EFH
(AR HE A%E)
HEMHEEE 54F sk | o4 7 & F B
(AR HE A%E)
R EE R 20%

BAER

BE #eShEE 3.3%-20%
i &) B 4 12.5% - 20%
BFANRFBE DREPHEANEEES

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEHREME

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 % -BENZ®E »

(Continued)

The Group has pledged certain property, plant and equipment AEEDEFREEBEL ARK64,475,000
with carrying value of approximately RMB64,475,000 (2021: gL (20214 : A R#64,536,00070) (&1
RMB64,536,000), comprising buildings of approximately F 4 ARB25,015,0007T (20214 : A R#E
RMB25,015,000 (2021: RMB22,930,000) and plant, machinery 22,930,0007C) M5 - #EFMEELH AR
and pipeline of approximately RMB39,460,000 (2021: #39,460,0007T (20214128318 : AR
RMB41,606,000) to secure certain bank borrowings granted to 41,606,0007T) 2 & T2 B E K& & A
the Group as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial ERBETASEE THRITEE 2R (RE
statements of this annual report. RANFE bR & I R M 5547) ©
17 .RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17TERAREEE
Leasehold Transportation
lands  Properties  Equipment vehicles Total
HELH /S #E EHER @it

RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTE AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2021 R2021%51 418 74,367 27,854 148 803 103,172
Acquired on acquisition of UG B 8 8 ] B L B

subsidiaries (note 41) (Kizka1) 23,000 - - - 23,000
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39)  H%&E —RH B2 A (KI3E39) = (201) = = (201)
Additions NE 268 3,045 - - 3,313
Depreciation mE (8,972) (4,871) (38) (364) (14,245)
Disposal RE (4,575) - - = (4,575)
Derecognition KRIFHER = (4,958) (110) = (5,068)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 8318 84,088 20,869 - 439 105,396
Acquisition of assets through BERBENBLARKEEE

acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41)  (Bi#¥41) 6,125 = = = 6,125
Additions NE - 1,421 - - 1,421
Depreciation e (1,936) (4,603) = (81) (6,620) "
Impairment loss (note 16(a)) BEERE (MF16() = (11,446) - = (11,446) 1 §
Disposal RE = (333) - - (333) £
Derecognition IR IFFERR = (911) = = CINE =
At 31 December 2022 $2022%12 8318 88,277 4,997 - 358 93,632

FRERERAF 155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEBERRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17 EAEEE @

2022 2021
20226 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARET T

Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHEEERAC AL 2,463 2,953
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRESRLAR 4,637 4,546
The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment and $%$ﬁf‘§f%$§%‘u\* BB RENER
transportation vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts were $Fﬁ5@@% ° fﬂ%é?ﬂ;zmiﬁ,ﬁ,ﬁ?%ﬁw
entered into for fixed terms of 1 year to 15 years. Lease terms FEIN AR VIR A B ERERER - WHA S
are negotiated on an individual basis and contained a wide BT R R AR 1 - REE L HI R AHE
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the ARESRENRER AKREERAEONE
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable W EE S KR8 BIFATTAH IR

period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Leasehold lands are upfront payments for leasehold lands under MELTHEARELHAMTBAR  HR4
medium-term leases in the PRC for own use properties. MTRHBEE NMEERYR-

The Group entered into several short-term leases for various AEEREERAE BE RELEHSE
offices, warehouses, equipment and transportation vehicles. As I E TREMEE-X2022412A4318 -
at 31 December 2022, the total outstanding lease commitments REBHERELELSNARE227,0007T
were approximately RMB227,000 (2021: RMB1,426,000). (20214 : AR#¥1,426,0007T) °

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. 1k EY =

RMB’000
ARBTT

FAIR VALUE D RE
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1 418 11,100
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss REZERZ AL EE (380)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 10,720
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RERBERZ AR EED (2,080)
Disposal k== (4,100)

At 31 December 2022 12022512 831H 4,540
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The above investment properties are situated in the PRC, and
are held under medium-term leases.

The investment properties are under Level 3 fair value
measurements. At the end of each reporting period, the senior
management works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs. Discussion of valuation
process and results are held between senior management and
the directors of the Company at least twice a year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by P&W Surveyors Limited, an independent valuer, who holds
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations and category.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were determined
based on the income capitalisation approach by capitalising
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the yield
rates observed by the valuer for the similar properties in similar
locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge of the
factors specific to the respective properties. In the absence
of observable market transactions for comparable properties,
income approach is adopted.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

EFREEYEMRPE - RRIEHABEOR
5o

RENERE =R A EFE -NERE
R sREEERBYAERFEXMAEM
BYAE NEY METF G ENEERM R
BWARE - SREEEELARRESTEFE
PRRTwmEBEERFRER-

Rt EZ AR ER  ZEVWENRAKL
RERGAHIBERS-

72022912 A31H K%2021%12A31H &
SEEREMEZ AR BTIREE L (GER
P&W Surveyors Limited7E A8 % B Bl 17 2 1%
BEESL EAGHBEEEARERNIIEHE
B2 2 B 2 R ARV T E 2 5 -

MR20224F12A318 k20214128318 &
EEREMENLAABESERBAER
{bEXE BWERMEULAEMHESE
b 2EMIGABEN HAEN KA HE
BB M T EmIELUE - E R E
REEMIEE LIRS ALY TR
B WRERGEEME S EDESERERA
HEITABRRE G IR - HEMESED
ERTEARNTHRETHE -ELETLER
REIMATERMISER ZHIERT - AWA
ko

AEERBFAARRESBAKIEER
BERGZMERGEENAABREAAE
YD ERREMEAIR-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group leases out the investment properties as retail stores
under leasehold interests with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain any residual value guarantees or
lessee’s options to purchase the property.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, are as follows:

18. I E Y )

AEBERBHERSHEARENERTE
EHeRAEARN - HE-RODTRH—
ERF-

HRAAHENGEEER CHENEEE
FHE - ARSI T E 2 Bk NS R
B HESNL T BREMBEREEREX
AHABERBAYE ZEEE-

AREBF20229F12A31H k2021512 A31
B2 EMEFBRALBER ZERHH
FanR

Fair value Relationship of unobservable
Commercial properties in the PRC hierarchy Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
REEZERNE MEER  fERE EXTTRERANE TIBRAAHBEAAEZHE
31 December At 31 December
2022 2021
W2F128318 RONF12A31A
RMB4,540,000 RMB10,720,000 Level 3 Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation

AR®4540,000m ARK107200007 £=8
The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rate
(2)  Market rent per square meter

capitalisation of the net income potential, nature ~ rate, the lower the fair value.
of the property, prevailing market condition, of
3.5% (2021:2.5% to 4.5%) The higher the market rent, the

higher the fair value.

Market rent, taking into account direct market

WABRIE comparables within the properties ranging from ~ EAfLk RiE A EHE:
RMB13 to RMB38 (2021: RMB13 to RMB50) per

IEGAEEA: square meter per month. mEheds AAERR-

(1) EMrsE

2 BEpRTERE EHAENMUSUAR D MEHEE RATR

BRI EB35% (202151 2.5%%245% )

EHANERZERTAALRNE mHEE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEHREME

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

19.GOODWILL 19828
RMB'000
AREFTT
cosT R A
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 MR2021F1 818 2021124318 &
and 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 42,202
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSS 2 REESE
At 1 January 2021 M2021E1H1H 32,981
Impairment loss recognised B R R EEER 9,221
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 720214 2022412 A31H 42,202
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H -
At 31 December 2021 720214124318 -
The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and RNEEGE R IR 2 B ORI
in the financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or BRE METRBTNYENEDRE:"
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be RIS A= TR o
impaired.
For the purposes of impairment testing, the carrying value of BETRENG  LiEE 2 FEEE SR
the goodwill set out above has been allocated to the respective EREEENRAHES BN SR ECEEES
CGUs which operate in the cylinder gas supply segment. i o
2022 2021
20224 2014 ks
RMB’000 RMB'000 | =
=
=

ARBTR ARET T

Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to  IRE&EABM 2 H L FEERAEE:
CGU in:

Cylinder gas supply segment EEMREEDE - =

FRERERAF 159
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As at 31 December 2021, goodwill of approximately
RMB9,221,000 before the prior period’s impairment loss was
allocated to an individual CGU within the cylinder gas supply
operation. The recoverable amounts of the individual CGU
within this operation have been determined based on the value
in use calculations of the CGU using the following assumptions
for the year ended 31 December 2021:

Period of cash flow projections 5 years

Growth rate within 5-year period in = 6%
the financial budgets approved by
the management

Growth rate beyond 5-year period 0%
extrapolated in the financial
budgets approved by the
management

Discount rate 12.5%

The growth rate within the 5-year projection period of
3% is based on the relevant industry growth forecast and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined
based on the CGU's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment loss
of goodwill of approximately RMB9,221,000 related to the
CGU which was acquired by the Group in that year, and
mainly engaged in sales and distribution of cylinder gas in the
Yunnan Province. The impairment loss was recognised due to
the lower recoverable amount calculated for the CGU which
resulted from the directors’ reassessment that the estimated
future business performance of that CGU might not achieve
the previous expectations of management taking the budgeted
gross margin and estimated growth rate of the sales revenue of
the CGU into consideration due to the increased competition
amongst the suppliers in the market experienced during the
current year. The management estimated the recoverable
amount of the CGUs, to which the assets belonged, to be
RMB56,618,000. The impairment loss has been included in
other gains and losses in consolidated profit or loss. No other
write-down of the assets is considered necessary.

MR2021F 124318 - Mk £ —HE 2B E
BB R 2 A2 AR 9,221,000 5 AL T
R RHEER AN 2 [RIE S EEEN -
WEBARBIRSEEBMN 2 U E S
BEFEREE T -_—4Ft+_-_A=+—HIt
FEZATBIBERCEEEM 2FEA
BEFTEET:

RemeTE8Hm 54
EREENIKEE 6%
TFEPRAZERE
HEEEEIRESFH 0%
VBREEMEE

BRX

BRI & 12.5%

FRAISF AR R ER3% I ABRRITRIE R
BAREERTEBREBTEZFHRY
BEX-FREEMHENEZSBEIER
RSAEEMNR - HNRESELEM 2B
ERRLEEBUMBERIHEET -

RE 20215128318 ILFE  EAREEH
RZFERBrReEEEMN (FEXEEN
EREERMRRNBEENSHE) B2 EE
B E B4 AR #9,221,0007T ° B ARG
EmisHEm BRI ME  EEEHMT
HZACEEBEM AT RREBREA
REAENEREELANER (ZERIZRS
EEBU s BEENEREEWAZGEE
BER)EHRZRASEEENTERN A I
O & ER D WERREEE - EEE M
BEMBRSELESEM 2T KEISERA
R#56,618,0007T B EFEE T ALRE B
mPREMEEREE R ADAREE
1B H L i R ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMEHREME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20EBLEE
Exclusive
Water Exclusive rights of
Construction drawing rights operation of
permission permit of purchase  piped gas Total
BX BREE
BEMSX HBUKFTE RBER RRgeEn #st

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL AREBTR ARBTT ARETRE ARBTRL

cosT B
At 1 January 2021, M2021461 818
31 December 2021 and 2021128318 K
31 December 2022 2022€128318 187,314 162,633 10,000 37,061 397,008

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Zit##iRmERFE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS

At 1 January 2021 M2021F1A18 187,314 162,633 10,000 15,021 374,968

Charge for the year FRLH = = = 1,226 1,226

At 31 December 2021 M2021%12 4318 187,314 162,633 10,000 16,247 376,194

Charge for the year FRLH = = = 1,230 1,230

At 31 December 2022 M2022%12 4318 187,314 162,633 10,000 17,477 377,424
CARRYING VALUES FREE

At 31 December 2022 M2022%12 4318 = = = 19,584 19,584

At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H = = = 20,814 20,814
The exclusive rights of purchase related to the exclusive right BT 2 BN EE B R AR A S
of purchasing natural gas acquired separately, while the KRN MEBEM Y BKFAIBEERE 2
construction permission, water drawing permit and exclusive BRI IR ERESHPEE=H -§§
rights of operation of piped gas were acquired from third W FtE EEGIETAERER % [ &
parties in business combinations. The above intangible assets EmLEAEN Ty EEI E G EE# i

have finite useful live. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Construction permission 20 years R 20%F
Water drawing permit 9 years HR K EF Al 7% 9%
Exclusive rights of purchase 20 to 25 years BRERIERER 20Z 254
Exclusive rights of operation of 30 years BREEMALEREN 306

piped gas
Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas represent the BREBMRAKLEENEERBIE T
rights to operate gas pipeline infrastructure and piped gas AR TERERAESERRER
transmission and distribution granted by local government in RIEBEBERA HER -

various cities in the PRC.

FRERERAF 161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

271.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21 REE R B 2B

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREEF T
Cost of unlisted investments FELETIRE KA 68,799 68,799
Bargain purchase gain EEBEE W= 22,330 22,330
Share of post-acquisition profits and other &5 U i %= 18 18 )% | &2
comprehensive income, net of dividends Efh2mEmKas  NRE WKk E
received 61,574 46,310
152,703 137,439
The Group had interests in the following associates: REBNTYBE AR A RER

Form of business

Place of
establishment

Proportion of nominal value
of registered capital held by

Name of company structure and operation the Group Principal activities
BIREE AEEREZ
NRER EBRBERA PRt it & A fE A TEXRH
2022 2021
2022 20216
Southwest Panva Gas Co. Ltd.*  Limited liability PRC 49.90% 49.90% Cylinder gas supply
("Southwest Panva") company
BIRERRARAT AREEARA H BRMRLE
(BIAEm])
Yunnan Panva Gas Co. Ltd.* Limited liability PRC 20.12% 20.12% Cylinder gas supply
("Yunnan Panva")* company
EMBINABRAA BREEAR R BRMRLE
([EfmBEILl)*
i Yunnan Panva is a subsidiary of Southwest Panva with 56.94% # EEHLIARLIABZMEBAR  B/LA

of its registered capital being held directly by Southwest Panva.

*  For identification purpose only

162 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2022 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2022)

P58 £56.94% & 72 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ReMBERRNE

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 REE RN R 2 E® @)

Summarised financial information of associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Southwest Panva Group (including Yunnan Panva as its

BEQNT 2MBERBRE

ERAAEEEABERRZHBENGLE
T - TG EMBEERBRERINTZ
SRERBERBYBHREEARH - EX
FRERRRAEDETARKE ZES
B R -

BIAmEE (BEER B TIERANEAR])

subsidiary)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Current assets MBEE 212,528 180,298
Non-current assets ERBEE 207,381 193,623
Current liabilities mEaE (92,569) (92,700)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (19,564) (5,470)
Net assets ZEFE 307,776 275,751
Equity attributable to owners of BITaE%ES AEhER
Southwest Panva 244,354 219,437
Non-controlling interests JEIE I = 63,422 56,314
307,776 275,751

=
o
o]
f=
(]
=
i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 REE N T 2w @

Summarised financial information of associates BEABENRZHBEERNBE ()
(Continued)
Southwest Panva Group (including Yunnan Panva as its BImERE (E1EZRE ITIERANEAF])
subsidiary) (Continued) (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Revenue WA 1,675,560 1,303,653

Profit and total comprehensive income for T~ %] & 15 7% 4F & 3% FI| &2

the year attributable to: ZHWRERE:
Owners of Southwest Panva ERNil=E 2PN 24,917 26,232
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR 2 7,108 2,571
32,025 28,803
Dividend received from the associate NF B U QR E
during the year - =
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial FHGETHEERNBE RN GE P EHRE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Southwest PR B LA ER  REE SR
Panva recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Equity attributable to owners of BITEEEEE ARGER
Southwest Panva Group 244,354 219,437
Group's share of equity of Southwest Panva ZN& B 7 BT/ 249.90%
at 49.90% (including 28.41% Group's DihEZE (BEAEER
indirect effective interest in Yunnan Panva) = A;128.41% 2 B
BERER) 121,935 109,500

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ANEBR EIAMER 2 #Exm 2
Southwest Panva Group BRmEE 121,935 109,500
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 R E N R 25 o)

Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva REEBIZEEfMEEER
Yunnan Panva EHAL
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Current assets mENEE 81,459 62,265
Non-current assets ERBEE 116,017 104,146
Current liabilities mEBAE (28,003) (24,155)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (16,554) (3,403)
Net assets ZEFE 152,919 138,853
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Revenue A 655,344 427,802

Profit and total comprehensive income for 74 & i Al &2 & 8 W &5 44 58
the year 14,066 12,620

Dividend received from the associate during N4 & B U8t & A &l i% &2
the year - -
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

271.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva (Continued)
Yunnan Panva (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

the carrying amount of the interest in Yunnan Panva recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

21T REEERNRZER @
REWEI 2 EEFE RS (8)
B ET ()

LRI HERRE RS MR R
REFBA IS ZREEZHE:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Equity attributable to owners of EMEIEA ARG ER
Yunnan Panva 152,919 138,853
Group's share of equity based on its direct ANEE S (HRE (RERAEBREL
ownership interest in Yunnan Panva at BEEMBREERL$120.12% )
20.12% 30,768 27,939
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in  ASEBEREE B I #z= 2 KEE
Yunnan Panva 30,768 27,939

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETF T

Cost of unlisted investments (Note) JE FHIRE A (KisE) 303,929 303,929

Share of post-acquisition profits and other 15 4 1% =5 1B 14 % FI| &

comprehensive income, net of dividends B2 E A - HER B MR R

received 1,043,178 1,039,019

1,347,107 1,342,948

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

Note: The cost of investments includes goodwill amount of
RMB76,846,000 (2021: RMB76,846,000).
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31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES NDNEELHE 2T -

(Continued)

Details of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: REEEEREFBHOT:
Place of Proportion of nominal
Form of business establishment value of registered capital
Name of company structure and operation held by the Group Principal activities
rEEEEZ
NAEM EBREBEA B REE T & A E Bl TEXK
2022 2021
20226 20215
(Fujian Province An Ran Gas Limited liability PRC 51% 51% Investment holding in subsidiaries
Investment Co., Ltd.*) company which are engaged in distribution
(“Fujian An Ran") (Note) and supply of piped gas and
installation of gas distribution
facilities
BRAZAMAREERAR AREEAA FE REEPHREBRRBEARER
(MegzRl) MREBRMEMBARRETRE
(BE) ol
Note: The relevant activities that significantly affect the return of Fujian Mz HEELABRBREEAZECIEHE
An Ran require unanimous consent from the Group and the EHEERERELRB T49%M%
other joint venture partners holding the remaining 49% equity AigEZ 2 EMEBLEBMNE Y —
interest in Fujian An Ran. In addition, the joint arrangements A= I HREELTHI T gE
does not result in either parties having rights to assets and HEM—FHEEBEEEAZEERES
obligations to liabilities of Fujian An Ran, hence the Group has EANRYEaEESSEE AN
accounted for Fujian An Ran as joint venture. EEEBRELZAIERE B
Ak

B8

v
]
(5}
(=
©
=
ic

*  For identification purpose only

FRERERAF 167
2022F R (FE20225F12A31B L FE)



)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES D NREELHE T =

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures EELECUKEENEE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's FARSEEECECHEEMBERBE
joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial AT o NI BEREERRIIT 2 &5
information below represents amounts prepared in accordance ERBEBMBRELARH - SEBER
with HKFRSs. The joint ventures are accounted for using RERETARNER 2 RE M BHRE -
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran BELARENE ] (A [1EELA
Group”) £E])
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Current assets mEEE 994,974 1,087,905
Non-current assets EMBEE 3,610,935 3,519,906
Current liabilities mENE R (1,360,662) (1,456,636)
Non-current liabilities EmRBER (501,606) (430,289)
Net assets BERE 2,743,641 2,720,886
Equity attributable to owners of RETAEEHEEARLZ
Fujian An Ran Group s 2,472,658 2,462,998
Non-controlling interests I I = 270,983 257,888
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

(Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran

Group”) (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

following:

= & M ¥ 8 R0 &E

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H
A AN S, 3L
DREEBELEZER @
CELECHBERNBE (B)
IBRELTAREANE NG (BTEA [15ELZA

£E5]) (&)

tREERABESEBRE NIISE:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Trade receivables

Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables)

Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding other payables)

RekRLFEER

E R G

EREEE

B 5 KR

AHMemaE (TeRFE
H A fE 5 5RIR)

FAHEeRmAE (TR
HAh 85 5RIR)

449,498 364,358
3,329,105 3,195,587
18,953 15,169
69,751 143,862
5K
(210,388) (225,800)
(418,685) (364,178)
FRERERAA
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R & M5 RME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures
(Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran
Group”) (Continued)

NDRAREELEZER @

RELEZUMBENRE ()

WELXAREN B LR (%R [1EELA

£E5]) (&)

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR® T AREETFTT

Revenue WA 2,885,241 2,417,255

Depreciation and amortisation Pree Mg 109,456 168,047

Interest income ISV ON 5,545 10,738

Interest expense FMERAX 8,279 11,850

Income tax expense FriSfif X 46,919 64,031
Profit and total comprehensive income for T~ %] & 5 7% 4F & 3% FI| &2

the year attributable to: SE WA :

Owners of Fujian An Ran Group REZASEHEEA 9,660 105,290

Non-controlling interests JEVE AR 2 13,095 54,894

22,755 160,184

Group's share of results of the joint venture AREBEEA EDEELE 4,927 53,698

Other expenses HmxZ 768 =

Share of result of joint venture DB ELEEE 4,159 53,698
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fRe MR T EE

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

m == N\ /7 /

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2. NEeELEZER

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures EELECHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran EELZARANB AR (ZHAR 1EELA

Group”) (Continued) £EH]) (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LS ER B E RN ERE B R R R

to the carrying amount of the interest in Fujian An Ran Group RERLASE D 2 REEHEK:

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Equity attributable to owners of BRETASEHEE ABL 2 ER

Fujian An Ran Group 2,472,658 2,462,998
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBERBRELAEE

interest in Fujian An Ran Group at 51% A 251 % 2= bk 1l 1,261,056 1,256,129
Goodwill [ 76,846 76,846
Others HAit 9,205 9,973

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in  RNEBRBELAREEH 2
Fujian An Ran Group w2 REE 1,347,107 1,342,948
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

23.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 23. % AREFTAEMEER

Wz Em TR

RMB'000

ARETF T

At 1 January 2021 7202141 418 167,780
Addition NE 2,652
Transfer to interest in subsidiaries (note 40(a)) LK E AR s (3E40@)) (318)
Fair value change recognised in OClI BREAMPEREN AL BEEED (65,995)
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A831H 104,119
Addition NE 150
Fair value change recognised in OCI BREHMZEREOAAEBEEED 23,275
At 31 December 2022 72022412 HA318 127,544

Note: The above investments represent equity interests in certain

=

f5t: ERMRERRBBERZIZETAATE

private entities established in the PRC. These entities are mainly
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of glass products,
banking, sale and distribution of cylinder gas and gas appliances,
sale and distribution of cookware and FMCG and food
ingredients supply business. These investments are not held for
trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors have elected to designate these investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that these
investments are not held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. Details of the investments are disclosed
in note 37(c) to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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24.LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

25.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

2 REfE <

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®T T
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WM  HE & & X E A
plant and equipment and right-of-use BEEBNERE
assets 22,352 48,285
£ %
LOAN RECEIVABLE 25 B E K
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREF T
At amortised cost b Xi=) DN - 28,663
Less: Allowance for credit losses (note 7) i : {5 & BB & (MizE7) - (2,530)
Non-current IERE - 26,133

In January 2021, an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, EE RBEHEXHFMR A (Chongging Jingtong
Xiye Industrial Co., Ltd* (“Chongging Jingtong Xiye")), entered
into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) to provide
a loan in the amount of RMB30,000,000 to EFSRE X
(%£®) B[R A7 (Chongging lingtong Industry (Group) Co.,
Ltd.* (“Chongging Jingtong”)), a non-controlling shareholder
of its subsidiary (previous sole shareholder of Chongging
Jingtong Xiye). The purpose of the loan is to provide financial
assistance to Chongging Jingtong to discharge the mortgage
of a leasehold land held by Chongging Jingtong and transfer
the tittle to Chongging Jingtong Xiye. The repayment of loan
receivable is RMB30,000,000 on 12 January 2024. Details are
set out in the Company's announcement dated 12 January
2021.

*  For identification purpose only

R2021F1 8138 ARz HEIEE2EHK
BRREESBEFEXERAA([EE
SBEFDITLERG®E ([ERmE]) -
LMEMRBARZHEZERBRR(EESB
BFE2AM—RR)EESBEE (£E)
ERAR([EESBREBEERARK
30,000,000  EREEREE S BIRHEN
BEE UBREESBFACHEL Y
BHENEESRETFEEEE - BRINER
AR #30,000,0007T 2 (838 B H £20244 1
RA128 - FBEN A E HEA2021F1 7
12BZ R %E-
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

25.LOAN RECEIVABLE (continued)

In March 2022, Chongging Xiye and Chongging Jingtong
entered into equity transfer agreement to acquire 39.66%
equity interest in Chongging Jingtong Xiye. The fair value of
39.66% equity interest in Chongging Jingtong Xiye as at the
date of completion of the transaction was RMB27,699,000,
which was settled by loan receivables of RMB26,297,000 and
financial asset at FVTPL of RMB1,402,000. The difference
between the fair value of 39.66% equity interest in Chongging
Jingtong Xiye and the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest of Chongging Jingtong Xiye was RMB5,692,000 as at
the date of completion of the transaction.

*  For identification purpose only

26.INVENTORIES

5. BINE R &)

R2022F37 EEREHEEES B VK
EEEHEARBERE S RE39.66%%
K -EESBEF39.66%REMN DA
BERRSTHK BB A ARK27,699,000
IC A EE A R #£26,297,0007T R IR A
REFTABEZ EBEE ARK1,402,000
THEE-RRXSEXBH EESBEY
3066%REZ AL BEREESBEY
FEERENEAEAEZEEAARE
5,692,0007T °

2678

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Materials and consumables Ykt I FE
Gas appliances Mm s A
Merchandises 74 on

Gas %=
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fRe MR T EE

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

27.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER 27.B5 - ZEE R HMAEWRR
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 18 LA K FE 43 FR I8

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 rW A 73,120 65,233
Bills receivables =R e W ETE 6,965 14,340

80,085 79,573
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (13,548) (12,308)

Total trade and bills receivables (net of ECL) 2 5 M= 1% fE W sk 4458

(MMBRFEHREEERE) 66,537 67,265
Deposits paid for purchases of natural BERAR BERR ARk
gas; cylinder gas; merchandises and IEMEENES
construction materials 101,946 81,832
Rental and utilities deposits and prepayments & & A S EiL ¢ AN HIE 4,058 1,997
Other tax recoverable H M A] i B £ I8 13,720 4,934
Amounts due from non-controlling interests [& U JE#22 A% 4 25 7B 25,385 23,372
Other receivables and deposits E b JEBGRIA R IE € 65,343 51,007
Total other receivables and prepayments F b FE YR IE R TR FRIB B 5 210,452 163,142
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (23,834) (25,763)

Total other receivables and prepayments o4t fE W ERIE R T RIE A2 RE
(net of ECL) (MMBRFEHREEERE) 186,618 137,379

B8
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FeMEBERRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

27.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER 27.B5 - ZEE R HMEWRR

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period ranging
from O to 180 days to its customers. Longer credit period
is also allowed on a case by case basis. The following is
an aged analysis of trade and bill receivables, net of ECL,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the
revenue recognition date for sales of gas and the respective
construction contracts completion dates, as appropriate:

B A RFENFRIE @)

8 5 BWRIRE

AREBEHERRBETHEF FH0E180H
MEEH - BFEFNER AEETH TR
ROEEH -RERHH (HHEERREA
REBREENELIA R B (anE
R HEE)FERE S REREKFIR (FRTE
HEEER) NREITOT

2022 2021

20225 20214F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T Tt ARETF T

0 to 90 days 0%290H 48,099 49,891
91 to 180 days 912 180H 5,750 987
Over 180 days 180H A E 5,723 2,047
Trade receivables B 5 e A 59,572 52,925
0 to 90 days 0%290H 2,766 10,807
91 to 180 days 912 180H 2,199 2,741
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 2,000 792
Bills receivables EE eI B 6,965 14,340

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB5,723,000 (2021: RMB2,047,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. These past due balances
have been past due 90 days or more and are not considered as
in default based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit
loss experience of the existing debtors and available forward-
looking information, including but not limited to the expected
economic conditions in the PRC and expected subsequent
settlements. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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27.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2022, included in other receivables and
prepayments, there are deposits and advance payments
to suppliers of approximately RMB101,946,000 (2021:
RMB81,832,000) in relation to the purchase of natural gas;
cylinder gas and merchandises, which will be delivered within
one year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, included in other receivables and
prepayments, are amounts due from non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries of approximately RMB9,285,000 (2021:
RMB18,087,000) in relation to the sales of natural gas, cylinder
gas and merchandise. Out of the balances, approximately
RMBnil (2021: RMB344,000) have been past due 90 days or
more.

As at 31 December 2022, included in other receivables and
prepayments, are amounts due from non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries of RMB16,100,000 (2021: RMB5,285,000)
which are of non-trade nature, unsecured, non-interesting
bearing and repayable on demand.

The other receivables and deposits mainly include deposits of
bid submission, gas supply and pipe installations, staff cash
advance and receivable for compensation from government.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

7.8 5  ZiE R AR

B LA RFENFIE @)

Hib B IE R AN KA

R2022F12A318 - EE W KIA K B
NREBREEEBRAAR EEAR
kEmzRe k THER 2 EMZIEL
AR #101,946,0007C (20214 : A R#&
81,832,0007T) * FRIAE S B T H HAR#E —
FRARM -

R2022F12 4318 - Efth U sk 1B X T8 1
HIEBIEEBHEERAR BERIKE @
2 FEWHI B A R SEERR A S 2 B AR
9,285,0007T (20214 : AR #18,087,000
TL)  ERMFROAREEIT (2021F : AR
¥$344,0007T ) B 8 #A90H s A = -

R2022% 12 4318 » H it fE Y5k 18 & T8 f+F
KI8T B UK B BB A R 4R AR M 2 2 K08
£ AR ¥16,100,0007T (2021F : AR
5,285,0007T) BB S HE - |MER 28
NERBNREE-

Hitp WA Ze T ZBERE HER
EETENRES BIEXIRESUARBA
I E RS -

B 5 KE b WG IER B AT (4 2 FE B ER
RERIRE P MERME37(0) ©
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FeMEBERRME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

28 . CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 285 HEE AR

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Contract assets — current EHRNEE-RD
Construction contracts in gas pipeline MAEBHRENERS L
construction 27,307 37,494
Contract liabilities - current EHNEEBE-RE
Sales of piped gas BEEMRREE 164,474 179,256
Cylinder gas supply 2 R SR B 10,362 6,438
Gas distribution AR5 88 15,438 8,039
Retail and wholesale of merchandise TE R EE R - 2,400
Piped gas connection construction contracts EEMBEREZELS LD 29,358 42,320
219,632 238,453

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration for work completed because the rights are
conditioned on the Group's future performance in achieving
specified milestones at the reporting date on contract work.
The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets and contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts in respect of gas pipeline
construction

The Group's revenue from construction contracts is measured
by input method. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits before the commencement of the
construction work as part of its credit risk management
policies.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle
and in the next 12 months.

When the Group receives a deposit before the construction
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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28.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas
destitution and merchandise

The Group would require advance payment before the usage
of the natural gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual charge for the actual usage of natural
gas will be billed by the Group accordingly. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for future usage
of natural gas to be supplied by the Group. The Group also
requires advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas through the prepaid card for certain household users. The
charge of the actual usage of natural gas will be deducted
directly to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers can
only consume the natural gas up to the balance of the prepaid
card. This will give rise to contract liabilities until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
advance payment.

The Group sells cylinder gas to its customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of cylinder gas not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities. Revenue are recognised when cylinder gas are
delivered to customers.

The Group sells LNG/CNG to its customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of gas not yet delivered
to customers are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when gas is delivered to customers.

The Group also sells merchandise to wholesalers. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales of
merchandises not yet delivered to customers are deferred and
recognised as contract liabilities. Revenue are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current period relates to carried forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

& M35 R M
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N-REMETERAFME  AKEITR
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ERERF/AENEE BERMEAINTER
Ry FE BRI
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

28.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

m/\ FE// ﬁﬁ(#

Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas HERDHEHEERR  BERR BRI H
destitution and merchandise (Continued) kEm (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31HILFE
Piped gas
connection Retail and
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas  wholesales of
piped gas contracts gassupply  distribution  merchandise
BERR EERRER BERE BER
HE BEEH fitpe RRD HEBR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥Tr AR%TR AR®TR
Revenue recognised that was B EEFA N B ELEH
included in the contract ERRARA
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 179,256 33,201 6,438 8,039 2,400
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12 318 IEFE
Piped gas
connection Retail and
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas  wholesales of
piped gas contracts gas supply distribution ~ merchandise
EEMR EEMRREH BEMRR ZER
HE RESH e R 8 HEBR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR AR%TR
Revenue recognised that was BEEFHNANEELEH
included in the contract ERRARA
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 161,116 46,988 13,231 8,224 3,693
Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the REYVYHNENDBBEBESGR HAREK
year, approximately RMB9,119,000 (2021: RMB4,598,000) was 9,119,0007T (20214 : A R % 4,598,000
not recognised as revenue during the Year mainly due to the TIREBEREEL RERZABKA  FTER

delay in the construction work.
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31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

29 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 9. AREBEFTFTAERZE

N
>
& =
2022 2021
20226 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

N ARETTT

Financial assets measured at FVTPL BRARBEFAERIERMEE

Entitlement of Shareholder’s Rights of a ZE—RFTENBRARZ

non-wholly owned subsidiary (Note) PR R A (B EE) - 1,405

Analysed for reporting purpose as REWE DT

Current portion BV ERE8 5> - 1,405
Net unrealised loss included in other FTAHMKEREEBZ

gains and losses REREBEEFE 3 314
Note: Bt o
According to the Loan Agreement mentioned in note 25, Chongging BIEK F25E R Gl EES® ((ERAET
Jingtong (as the Entrusting Party) and Chongging Xiye (as the Entrusted FIRBERET (ERXTEH ) LRRERET
Party) entered into the Shareholder’s Rights Entrustment Agreement, M BUHEESBRERERBABEMSER
pursuant to which Chongging Jingtong agreed to entrust all RiBEH39.66%Emm 2 MRREF EZELE
Shareholder’s Rights of its interests of 39.66% in Chongging Jingtong BRHZERIEREETRABRREAS ZIEE
Xiye to Chongging Xiye for all its entitlement and exercise including R S WER R B, 2 #EF o AN 52 B 3t A B ME 2 FE AR /3
but not limited to voting rights in shareholders’ meetings, and rights BRAREFABRzeREE BEASEREH
to request and receive dividends during the loan period. The Group BN AREFENREEESRETH T HR
recognised such entitlement as financial assets at FVTPL and the fair BARIRER S TER - SLARIRIR SR EEAEE -

value measurement of such entitlement of the Group was determined
using discounted cash flow technique, based on projections of future
dividends to be declared by Chongging Jingtong Xiye.

28
.E§
v
Details are set out in the Company's announcement dated 12 January HEHNARARR2021F1A12B 2 A% - =
2021. £
In March 2022, the Group and Chongging Jingtong entered into equity R2022F3F8 ASEBREE S @B UIREEE
transfer agreement to acquire 39.66% equity interest in Chongging R A E BB R @R 39.66% R AN R - 1K
Jingtong Xiye at the total consideration of RMB23,000,000. The 8 5 AR %23,000,0007T ° B AR B AEBRZ
financial assets at FVTPL are considered as part of consideration of CRIZESRAWE—HBAREIMER 25D
acquisition of additional interest from a subsidiary. (-
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

30.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30.R1TH B KRIE S
Interest rate 2022 2021
F = 20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETTT

Cash at bank and on hand 0.25% to 1.70% 555,115 575,164
RIBITRFERS (2021: 0.30% to 1.45% per annum

FERZEO.25%F1.70%
(20214F - 0.30% % 1.45% )

As at 31 December 2022, the bank balances and cash of the R2022F 128318 REB U A REE
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB543,579,000 ZRITHEBREE € AN ARKES43,579,000
(2021: RMB556,051,000). 7t (20214 : AR#¥556,051,0007T) °

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies in the PRC. ARBRABRTA B BB AEAMINE - 1R
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and B R B INE B IR R0 I 45 B - S0 RASEE
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign EHRTE - AN B/ AR M A 5 TN ZE 7S
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB ZRITHIEA R S AN -

for foreign currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Included in bank balances and cash, the following amounts are RITHEBERSBETIUAREUIINE
denominated in currencies other than RMB: B2
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") ot 11,536 19,113
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31.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade
trade

and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for
purchases and ongoing costs with the average credit

period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The following is an

aged

analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

date at the end of the reporting period:

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

31.E5 R H B FKIE

BOREMENREAREESRBLESE
KAz AN EE REERZ FHEER
HIR90H - TSN EMARRBEHTZA S
2B HRMNFTIBZ RO

2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
0 to 90 days 0%90H 89,621 74,421
91 to 180 days 912 180H 4,547 15,605
Over 180 days 180H KA E 15,238 7,796
Trade payables =) e 109,406 97,822
Bills payable AN 4,000 =
Piped gas customers deposits EWEERARFIES 15,348 20,862
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE{HHI B A &) 312 B i 25 2 5B
of subsidiaries (Note (a)) (KtsE(a)) 1,676 17,789
Other tax payables FE A B 77 18 29,842 11,819
Wages and staff benefits e kiEB B 17,609 17,490
Retention payables and security B REe REKRREEZS
deposits received 32,140 31,139
Compensation received in advance (Note (b))  FEUW #E 2 (Bi:E(b)) 15,792 15,699
Accrued charges and other payables FEET B R & E A B FIE 40,475 32,735
Total trade and other payables B 5 Rk E M FE IR B 266,288 245,355

Notes:

(a)

Included in the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries approximately RMB nil (2021: RMB16,056,000)
are of trade nature and approximately RMB1,676,000 (2021:
RMB1,733,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand, which is of a non-trade nature.

Compensation received in advance represents amount received
from a third party for compensating the removal of the Group’s
pipelines and gas facilities. The removal of the facilities to which
the receipts as at 31 December 2022 related have not yet been
completed as at the date of issue of this annual report. The
carrying values of the related property, plant and equipment at
31 December 2022 and 2021 were approximately RMBnil and
RMB nil respectively.

FEATMI B AR IEE RS 2 EF  HIA
R#ZT T (20214 : AR #16,056,0007T)
BESMEERHARE1,676,0005T (2021
& AR¥1,733,0000T) BERA Tt 5
RIREREE BIEEFHME -

TERWEMEERERE = KEHA
REBEFRRASEEMNEBNRIELIEN
SE-NAFHRTZE R & Z=20229F12
A3MBARE 2 HERE SR TEHRER RN
20224 %2021 128318 {8 W% - B
EREENEAEIANARBZELR
ARBZ Lo

PRERBRAE

2022F R (FE20225F12A31B L FE)
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

1= =
32.LEASE LIABILITIES 2.AE8E
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥BTT
Within one year —FR 3,488 3,507
More than one year, but not more than BE—FETEEMRTE
two years 2,858 3,250
More than two years, but not more than  BEMRFTETBBAF
five years 7,537 7,461
More than five years BiEAF 1,413 3,955
15,296 18,173
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : 25 ARBEEBEE K2
under current liabilities —F R HRFRIE (3.488) (3,507)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 27| R IEREEBEE T 2 &5 11,808 14,666
= /H
33.BANK BORROWINGS 33.8R1TEE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Secured bank borrowings BIRFRITEE 67,000 48,250
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRFIRITEE 18,520 52,000
85,520 100,250
Carrying amount repayable: FEfEREREE :
Within one year or on demand —FRHIZEK 85,020 77,000
In the second and fifth year, inclusive F_FRFAF (BREEEME) 500 23,250
85,520 100,250

FrEE BB R ERFRETEEL AT
EREE FEXNTFTHREARRBITER
& A10.00% %28.45% (20214 : 0.00% =
0.89% ) ©

All secured and unsecured bank borrowings are floating rate
borrowings of which interest rates are in the range of People’s
Bank of China base rate plus 0.00% to 8.45% (2021: 0.00%
to 0.89%) per annum.

AEBvETEEERARFRITEEE
BHR - EFBHNAFREE M B HRKM T
47 -

Certain assets of the Group are pledged for the secured bank
borrowings, details of which are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

34 .DEFERRED TAXATION 34 IR FEF4 18
2022 2021
20226 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETTT

Deferred tax assets IRIERIIAE EE 5,264 5,649
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIRAE (20,919) (18,159)
(15,655) (12,510)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities T ARRZEFEZEBRAEEZRTERIE
recognised and movements thereon during the years: BE/AEREEE:
Fair value
revaluation
Accelerated  Allowance of equity
tax for instruments
depreciation credit loss Others at FVTOCI Total
BARETTA
Hit 2z
bR B E FEBR ZEBIAEZ
e BE Hit 2QAEEM L

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRE ARBTT ARETRT

(Note)
(BI&E)
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1818 (3,379) 3,476 (5,473) (22,633) (28,009)
Credited to OCI REMEE KA — - - 9,904 9,904
Credited (charged) to profit R8st AF1IR) Ea
o loss (note 13) (H3E13) 3,379 2,618 (402) - 5,595 gﬁ
c
At 31 December 2021 M2021F128318 - 6,094 (5,875) (12,729) (12,510)
Charged to OC| P E At 2 T e s 1 Bk - = = (3,491) (3,491)
(Charged) credited to profit AEzE(FAK)EFA
or loss (note 13) (PFf7E13) = (1,087) 1,433 - 346
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12H318 - 5,007 (4,442) (16,220) (15,655)

FRERERAF 185
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Note: The deferred tax was recognised in prior years in respect of
the Group’s gain on disposal of certain property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments. According to the
respective EIT Law, the Group can defer the EIT on such gain
after considering deductible reconstruction cost, if any.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB1,296,997,000 (2021: RMB1,283,813,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

B

i MAREARHEETYE BERRE
RiafHEz a2 RIERBE R BEF
ERMHER - RIFBBEXMEIE  AEE
A AR R AR ERRA (1) &5
ZWERIEIE B E TS

RIEFPBECEMBREA A EKEBERQR
200841 A 18 TR IR A AT E Ik 2 I
BRI TEMFLIE - 1% K 5h B G R R
BAaE B A 4 A R#1,296,997,0007T
(20214 : AR #1,283,813,0007T) 2 & B
MEBERERA T BHRERTIREE REDA
EEAENIEHEREEREERMNRER
ZETRHEEEA AT NAITER KRR
[E] 8 o

Number of
shares HKD'000
R5EE BET T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.07 each FREESK007 T TBR 38,000,000,000 2,660,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITREE:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 20211818 » 20214
and 31 December 2022 12A31H &2022%12A31H 8,934,561,203 625,419
RMB'000
AREF T
Presented in consolidated financial RAGEUNBREANZTY A
statements as:
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A318 &
31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 564,507
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36.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, including
bank borrowings as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report and reserves and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity respectively.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

36.EARE K EL

$EIEEE§$ Mﬁﬁ$ﬁlm 4

REAFELE RS TERE(EBEER
Z ERRMARRFRERSER KRB E
2R AR BB EFE AR -

AEEZEARBEEAE (BRERAF R
REMBREMAIBERELRTES) B
EMREEFERBARKRREEG ARG
fx (BROBETRAMER 2RI HER
RERGEMBRERM SRR EERE
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37.Em T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a)

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are set out as follows:

EMIAZSE

UTFRERSBMEAERSBE BN E
SHK EEERIIOT

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets SREE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAnEst AHEM 2 E YR
=T A

Financial assets designated at FVTPL EEREBEARBEFAERZ
SREE

Financial assets at amortised cost REIEK AR e E E

Financial liabilities SRas

At amortised cost 2 G A AN

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade,
bills and other receivables, loan receivable, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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127,544 104,119

- 1,405
688,546 717,178
816,090 822,702
320,668 309,041

AEEZTIECRIABERAAE
AAEtEHESEZEa TR RO
REFABSAEZEREE E5H-
SR EMEKRIE B ER  RIT
BHRERE BHMEMENREAER
RITBE -ZEeMTAZHBRA
M EARE E%Fe i TANEM
Z R LA KRR 1t 3 [ B 2 BRSR T
RTX-EEEEEMEFRILEFRR -
R IR 2 By B A it SR DU 45 0



The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank deposits (note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report) and bank
borrowings (note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report). It is the Group’s policy
to keep its bank deposits, and bank borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Floating-
rate bank balances have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that the
interest rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near
future and therefore the financial impact to the Group
is not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the Year would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB321,000 (2021:
RMB376,000).

Currency risk refers to the risk associated with movements
in foreign currency rates which will affect the Group's
financial results and its cash flow. As at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021, certain bank balances of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities. The
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging the potential foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

AEEZRSRENXRRE R ERET
B RRITHER (RNFEREE M TR
RIEE30) AR RITIEE (RF&HE
B ERRME33) A - HRERAR
BEMXRER AEEZBRRBFREFE
RITEKARBITEEAFBF X
8 o

AR Z SR E 7 AT T AR BB B I R 4R
TEERREHRFIXRRSEE
MET  EFHFRIBITAELILEMA
BRESN AAEEIRER TR
b SN NLD A RS e S E T g
MY ETTEKN - REBF KRBT
BEMS REZBESMERINR
EHRZAEEABESERE2EDN
AEE-ZEMALEZERE ABER
F & 2 b B & #8 FI) = hn R 501 £ 2
(20214 :SOEEBL) - MR KB
JE % R & 4 1 0] g B B 2 7T {7 o ik FI
K S, FHIE501E E B (20214 : 50
BEZ)MATEEMAIERESFT
B REBEHEANEE 2 HE GG
EA AN AR #321,0007T (2021
& AR#376,0007T) °

R bR Ty e B AN [ R B B AR B
BEEREBR s WHEEREESR
= Z A 72022F 128318 2021
F12A318  AEBE TRITEHRE
UAEBEERE 2N ES (MARK)
LASN SN B MEEHE - AN B I BT
AT INES SRR SR o AT - 5 1R B BE B AN
SR z2ER IEREREERZRE
HHmERZINERRR
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

7.2/ T B (»

TREAREEEERBEK (8)

Currency risk (Continued) EE ke (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AR RE R NREBUIINE B
denominated bank balances at the end of the reporting RITHEBR 2 REERT
period are as follows:
Assets
BE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBETTT
HKD e 11,536 19,113

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to HKD currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2021: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2021: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates.

A negative number below indicates decrease in post-
tax profit for the year where the functional currency
strengthens 5% (2021: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening of functional
currency against the relevant foreign currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on profit or loss
for the year and the balances below would be positive.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

37.8®MI A )

(b)

cHEBEERFERBEEK (&)

Assets
aE
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
HKD B (433) (717)

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to price risk through
financial assets measured at FVTPL and equity instruments
at FVTOCI. The directors do not implement specific
measures to mitigate the price risk.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties, is arising from the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and contract assets (excluding
financial assets at FVTOCI| and at FVTPL) as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively managed.

A 1A R

AEENESRREERBEARE
FFAER EREERE AR BER
NS = NN
ESVAPEREESRARERIETE
i

15 B2 K B (8 &F 1

20224128318 B ¥ F A Rbe
TEIMEBERAEERZMIEEBEN
SeEERRIK LGRSV B RHRE
i AEEeMEERADNEE (B
BEAREBEAEMEZERERIEAAR
Bt ABRZEBEEIN) -

\

[*'ET?/':/]/]Q%\E;XE/W*%Z/B\/ Tﬁ&;ﬁg = %‘g\ru:/ EI/\]
BREFENEHEE

RERXREMBEREERR AKE
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC or banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and the Group has limited exposure to
any single financial institution.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances by reference to the average loss rate for
respective credit rating grades published by international
credit-rating agencies and concluded that the expected
credit loss is insignificant.

Other receivables

The Group has taken into account the economic outlook
of the industries in which the debtors operate and
concluded that there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. As such, other
receivables are assessed for impairment individually at
each reporting date.

Loan receivable

The Group has taken into account the economic outlook
of the industries in which the debtor operates and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The loan receivable
is assessed for impairment individually at each reporting
date.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.EM T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAREEEEREE (&)
(Continued)

SN

K

=

ey
1

t (A& )

iy

=

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =B/

=]
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEBEABEERRTGEERIEUTE
comprises the following categories: Bl :
Internal Trade receivables/ Other financial
credit rating Description contract assets assets/other items
g5 EWRE HttemEE
REBEEFTR  H#HEk BRNEE HfsE H
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts  credit-impaired
Ve HFEFEHNERRRE BREEMaeE FEREHEESE - 2@AEHEEEE
BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
but usually settles after due date credit-impaired
BEaE BEBABRNEERER RN FERRBEEEBE- 2@AEHEEEE
Hig#E BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
17 &¢ FRAPAIINRERNEN EERAREY FERRACEEEE - FERRREEEE-
2 HE TR LA R B SR A BEERE BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit impaired impaired impaired =8
B3R BEBERAZEERREERE FEREBREEBE - FEPREHREEEE - '§§
EERE B {E £
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off  Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
s FREBRBABEARRBRERTBAE BN S8 E wME T ' WM

SEREETR R B AT =
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal
Notes credit rating credit rating

M= SMBEEFR ABEEFR

V2R TR e
b) SREREEEERKE (H)

= B R E G (&)

TRAMIEARESREENEE
Rk EXRREHREEER:

12-month or
lifetime ECL
1218 B =R 1= 48 &
FEHEEEE

Gross carrying amount

BREAE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR¥TT

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBERRIENEREE
Trade and bill 27 n/a (Note(i))
receivables TiEA CP3EG))
B REEE
Wk 4 58
Loss
E518
Amounts due 27 n/a Low risk
from non- TiEA 1K 2
controlling
interests
JE W FE 42 A
7 IR
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Lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired
and provision
matrix)

GEBREHEE
BE (EEER
BEREHER)

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)

BRI EEEE
(EERIAE)

12-month ECL
(assessed
individually)
128 AIEHEE
18 (BT
i)

77,642 77,130
2,443 2,443
25,385 23,372
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.EM T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREZEEZERBE (&)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERE R R EF G (&)
External Internal 12-month or
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1218 B R EZEH
Mz HIBEEFTR ABEEFTHR BHEESRE REAE
2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

BBERAIIRNEREE (8)

Other 27 n/a Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not 42,583 27,312
receivables 38 R 75 credit impaired
and deposits and assessed
H fth fE Y 5K IE individually)
Fiz& GERTEHEEEE
(EEERERE
BaHE)
Loss Lifetime ECL 22,760 23,695
&5 18 (credit impaired)
GRERTER(EEEE
(EERE)
Loan 25 n/a Low risk 12-month ECL - 28,663
receivable N iE A 1K & p (assessed
J& W E K individually)
1218 A TE B E B

B8

18 (BEEaTA)

=
ic
o
=
©
=
i
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€®MIA

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) 2RIEAKREEEERBER (&)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SE R R EF S (E)
External Internal 12-month or
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1218 A RFEB
Mz IBMEEFR RIBEETR AHEESE IREAE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

RBHEBSIRNEREE (B)

Bank balances 30 AAA to Baa3  Low risk 12-month ECL 555,115 575,164
and cash AAAZE Baa3 1K px (assessed
SRIT4E R KR individually)
& 128 ATE A B/
B (ERFFM)
Other items
HE B
Contract 28 n/a (Note(i)) Lifetime ECL (not 27,307 37,494
assets TiEA (BFEEG)) credit impaired
BHEE and provision
matrix)
GEHEREERS
B (EEERE
N B AR )
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note:

(i) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors which
were credit-impaired which are assessed individually, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items grouped by past due status for trade receivables
and the status of the relevant projects of the contract
assets. When there are indicators that the relevant contract
assets may be credit impaired, the relevant amount will be
assessed for expected credit losses individually.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its operation because
these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. Based on the
Group's assessment of historical credit loss experience
of the existing debtors and all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the expected
economic conditions in the PRC and expected subsequent
settlements, the Group does not consider that default
occurs for those contractual payments that are more than
90 days past due.

The Group used estimated loss rates based on aging
for classes with different credit risk characteristics and
exposures, and the estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.EM T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) 2RIEAKREEEERBER (&)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SE R R EFE (&)
During the Year, the Group made impairment loss of REEAN AEERBEREBEMERE
approximately RMB1,250,000 (2021: impairment loss S RERERBRIBRE QB ETER
of approximately RMB5,953,000) for trade and bills BEEEAH AKR1,250,0007T (2021
receivables and contract assets based on the provision FRMBEBELHAKREES5,953,000
matrix. JL) °
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TERETBEECTERNEI RERE
that has been recognised for trade and bills receivables W HIER G N EED BRNFED
and contract asset under the simplified approach. TEHEEBECE8-
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit (not credit ECL (credit
Impaired) impaired) impaired)*

& Lt 3 L FRARA
REER FEER REER
(BEERE) (RREWE) (FEHEE)*

Contract assets Trade and bills receivables Total
RNEE EAREBENT H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBTL ARBTL

At 1 January 2021 R20214€181H - 3,285 2,443 5,728
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR = 627 - 627
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 1[I E AR A EE R = (456) = (456)
Impairment loss recognised BRAZAEER - 6,409 = 6,409
At 31 December 2021 20214124318 - 9,865 2,443 12,308
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BB KR EE B = (3,710) = (3,710)
Impairment loss recognised BRAZAEER = 4,960 = 4,960
Write-off A = (10) = (10)
At 31 December 2022 120228128318 - 11,105 2,443 13,548
c Full provision was made for respective credit-impaired 3 ERFTENEERENE S EKR
trade receivable. THEH 2 REEE-
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.M IE @
SHEREEEEREE ()

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 2 B K o (B A1 (42)

HWAEHBREFARREENIH
MR EEBNERA S AKE
EWMHEE S BREFE NEBALE
BYUBEEABRERF -

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss that TRETEER2MEABHEEERE

has been recognised for 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL R EREREEBENEEEE M
on other receivables. & IR SR B S8R o
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit ECL (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
FEHES FEHES
FEEE FEFIB
(BEERME) (EERE) et
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T ARET T
At 1 January 2021 7R2021%F1 /418 5,749 27,510 33,259
Acquisition of subsidiaries rgiAlap= NG 925 - 925
Reversal of impairment o2 R R EEE
loss recognised (5,372) (25,637) (31,009)
Impairment losses recognised B T 523 (B &5 18 8,268 14,320 22,588
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 9,570 16,193 25,763

OB R ARERIR

Reversal of impairment loss

recognised (3,796) (574) (4,370) 2%
Impairment losses recognised & #7265 18 958 3,563 4,521 S =
Write off i - (2,080) (2,080) | =

'S
At 31 December 2022 2022512 831H 6,732 17,102 23,834
FRERERAF 199
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains the level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management manages
liquidity risk by monitoring adequate reserves, banking
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
The Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated from
operations and bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€®MIA

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREZEEZERBE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB R (&)
Weighted Within Within
average one year second to Total
effective oron fifth years, Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand inclusive  fifth years cash flow amount
E-ELER
METHUER -FadR  (BEEE AERRE
Gk EXE mE)  EREHNE REAE REE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR®TR ARERTR AR®T:R

At 31 December 2022 120224124318

Trade and other payables ~ EZREAMERTE - 235,148 - - 235,148 235,148
Bank borrowings BIIEE 4.65 86,447 598 - 87,045 85,520
Lease liabilities HEEE 4.89 4,254 12,003 1,450 17,707 15,296
325,849 12,601 1,450 339,900 335,964
Weighted Within Within
average one year second to Total
effective or on fifth years, Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand inclusive fifth years cash flow amount
EZERFR
MEFHER —FRIR  (AEER AERR
ME L mE)  FRENE nERE KA

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETLE ARETT ARETR AREBTR

v
g
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 i
Trade and other payables ~ Z 5 REAMERTA - 208,791 - - 208,791 208,791
Bank borrowings ROEE 431 80,319 27,222 = 107,541 100,250
Lease liabilities HERE 5.15 4,420 12,845 4,229 21,494 18,173
293,530 40,067 4,229 337,826 327,214
The amounts included above for variable interest rate W) ZENF R EBEAREHAREED
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject FEEEAR A LB & IEITE
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those PRABENFBINETAESETIER
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the o

reporting period.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

3R T B &

()0 2AR{EFE

AEERDEMEEDINEREHR
BAREFE TREHROMEE L
ZeMEELAABZER (FRIZM
ERZEETERBABE)

Fair value  Valuation technique and significant
Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
ARE AAEER RERWREAFTBRBALE
Financial assets 2022 2021
tRMEE 2022% 20216
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#TTR ARETT
Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOC/
PEREALEFAR
tEERZEZF LT
RERE
An entity engaged in 92,173 65,852 Level 3 Fair value is derived from market multiple -
manufacturing and enterprise value to earnings before interest, tax,
sale of glass products depreciation and amortisation ("EV/EBITDA") of 7.6
business (2021: 8.2) and discount for lack of marketability of
20.6% (2021: 20.6%) (note a)
RERERHERBH E=H ARERBTSEH-—CXEEHHSNEREH
mEBZER ATAF ([EV/EBITDA 1)7.6(20214F : 8.2) Rtz ¥
TBMEYTR20.6% (20219 :20.6% ) (Kizta) Gt
An entity engaged in 23,614 26,356 Level 3 Fair value is derived from the market price-to-book
banking business ("P/B") ratio of 0.6 (2021: 0.7) and discount for lack
of marketability of 20.6% (2021: 20.6%) (note a)
RERTHEZER E=H RAERBHERE ([THEX])0.6(20214:0.7) kit
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.®mIT E @
Fair value measurements (Continued) (c) AREFE(E)
Fair value  Valuation technique and significant
Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
ARE AAEER RERWREAFTBRRBALE
Financial assets 2022 2021
tRMEE 2022% 20215
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOC/

(Continued)

PERBEALEFAR
tEENEZH LT
RERE (&)

Entities engaged in sales 4,836 5109  Level 3 Fair values are derived from market multiple — EV/
and distribution of EBITDA of 8.4 (2021: 9.6) and discount for lack of
cylinder gas and gas marketability of 20.6% (2021: 20.6%) (note a)
appliances business

REHE RS HBEEM =8 AR ERETIHEE- EV/EBITDA 8.4(2021%:9.6)
AEMRFZEEB R R Z 5 7 @ 1 7 #20.6% (20214 :20.6% )
ER (KiFa) G H

Entities engaged in sales 653 857  Level 3 Fair value is derived from market multiple = EV/
and distribution of Revenue of 0.3 (2021: 0.8) and discount for lack of
cylinder gas and gas marketability of 20.6% (2021: 20.6%) (note a)
appliances business

REHERDHBEM E=MR AR ERETIHEE- EV/Revenue 0.3(20215 :0.8)
RAEMREAEBLZ R ERZ 5 % 8 1 57 #20.6% (20216 :20.6% )
B (HizFa) B

Entities engaged in sales 5,880 5677  Level 3 Fair values are derived from the estimated fair value
and distribution of of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
cylinder gas investees

WEHE R HERM E=R RRERBRRESHAEHEENBEZRAD
RZER i

An entity engaged in 238 268 Level 3 Fair values are derived from market multiple - EV/
sale and distribution EBITDA of 8.1 (2021: 10.3) and discount for lack of
of cookware business marketability of 20.6% (2021: 20.6%) (note a)

REHERDHERR E=8 AR ERETHEH- EV/EBITDA 8.1(20214 : 10.3)
AXBZER R ERZ 5 @ 1 5T #20.6% (20214 :20.6% )

(Miza) 5
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Fair value measurements (Continued)

3R T B &

() 2DAREFEE)

Fair value Valuation technique and significant

Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
NAE AREER RERMREATTEERANE
Financial assets 2022 2021
tREE 20226 20216
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT

Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOCI
(Continued)

PEREIAETAR
tE2EARZZHF LT
RERE (&)

An entity engaged in 150 - Level 3 Fair value is derived from the estimated fair value
provision of company of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
consulting service investee

RERBARZARY =% RAERBRRENHARMEEMEAZEAR
ZER i

An entity engaged in - - Level3 Fair value is derived from the estimated fair value
FMCG and food of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
ingredients supply investee
business

RERMHEERNES SR =8 RAERBRRENHARHEEMRAZEAR
BKeER i

Entitlement of - 1,405  Level 3 Discounted cash flow based on projection of future
Shareholder’s dividends to be received
Rights of a non-
wholly owned
subsidiary in the
PRC classified as
financial assets at
FVTPL

WA BRERALETA E=R BIRB e EERARER TRRA RS
BHEZEHEEZH
H#2EHBLAZ
RE#EE

204 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2022 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2022)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Note:

(@  The higher the market multiples and P/B applied, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa. The higher the
discount, the lower the fair value, and vice versa. The
significant unobservable inputs are the discount for lack
of marketability, the market multiples and P/B applied.
A 5% increase/decrease in the discount rate for lack of
marketability, holding all other variables constant, the
fair value of the investments would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB7,652,000 (2021: RMB6,285,000) as at
31 December 2022.

The EBITDA and net asset value of the respective investees
used for the valuations at 31 December 2022 are based
on the audited financial statements or, where the audited
financial statements are not available, the management
accounts of the investees up to 31 December 2022.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

37 &BMIE
(c) AREFE(E)

o :

(@ WHEREEBSEMERMNERQ
AEES RZ2TA- MBS
AREBEBE RZITA-ERRA
HEGARBE AR THREE
i MBEHREMERNER-
MR2022F 128318 B®RZWHB R
BEFTEEM R A5% A E
HEERBTILE KEZALER
B A4 A R#7,652,0007T
(20214 : AR #¥6,285,0007T) °

M2022F12 A318 2 G EFRBHEE
BWEH R ZEBITDAN EEL EFE
To AR ¥R 458 28 A% B 75 3R 5% ok fim S VR
BEBZMEHRE  AREHRES
2022F12A31B L BEBEBEL -

Fair value measurements (d 2REFE
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEEF =R EGERE R
financial assets
Unquoted equity investments FLHRERE
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 /18 167,780
Additions NE 2,652
Transfer to interest in subsidiaries HBEENWB AR 2= (318)
Fair value change recognised in OCl BREHMEZEBSH A EEEY (65,995) | =
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H831H 104,119 -
Additions NE 150
Fair value change recognised in OCI BREAEMEIEREN AR BEEE S 23,275
At 31 December 2022 72022 12H31H 127,544
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

(d)

37.E8mI A

AREFE (B )

EREEFE=RAAETENL KR
(%)

BARBEHABRZEHEE

RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1H1H =
Additions NE 1,719
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss WREBZNARBEEE (314)
At 31 December 2021 720216 12H31H 1,405
Termination after obtaining full control EEWB AR =IPIEHIREEKIE
of a subsidiary (note 29) (MI5E29) (1,405)
At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H -
Fair value measurements and valuation processes AR EFERGEEF
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, ﬁ(\\ﬁ%éﬁ_}iﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ% NE
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent %Fﬁﬁ?iﬁ—fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ"?ﬁ??ﬁ
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, %HYH% Z&f BN EEES
the management establishes the appropriate valuation BEBEEAZLEENGETERE
techniques and inputs to the model. The management ABE-BEEESXFREFTERS
reports the findings to the directors half yearly to explain RUMBEERBBEAABRINER
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets ®
and liabilities.
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that WIHUNEEMEEZN R EFEZ S
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEERTHBEBEZATE
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERR RESMBHERTIRER
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at ﬁ)ZKEE%E’\J%ﬁQﬁE&%%&‘E%%E’UEE
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements HESEEARERE -

approximate their fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during

the Year.
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=T W< = >

38.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES BBAEFEMELEARGZ

ARISING FROM FINANCING ¥ BR

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRFANASEREFTHFIELEBECE

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B(BREeRFRCED) BETHM

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EXzAEEERESRECHARKE SR

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in ERNAERGERERERTOERA

the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BEBAeREs8E

from financing activities.

Bank Others Lease
Borrowings (Note) liabilities Total
RITEE Hito (KraE) HEEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1H 99,416 1,682 24,731 125,829
Financing cash flows BERERE (5,091) 51 (2,218) (7,258)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) & —RKIBA A (F:39) (282) (282)
Finance costs recognised EERHEAA 5,925 = 1,010 6,935
Derecognition of lease liabilites 4 It EAEE & E = = (5,068) (5,068)
At 31 December 2021 M2021512 4318 100,250 1,733 18,173 120,156
Financing cash flows BERERE (17,307) (57) (2,907) (20,271)
Finance costs recognised BRI A 2,577 = 941 3,518
Derecognition of lease liabilites & It ERAHE & E - = (911) (911)
At 31 December 2022 720224124311 85,520 1,676 15,296 102,492
Note: The amount includes amounts due to non-controlling interest of Wit: Ze@REBFEZHEARMNMBARIE BT
subsidiaries that are of a non-trade nature (included in trade and ERESFE (BFARS RAMENR B &=
other payables). I5) o ©
=
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0. HE—FENEAF
B Z2021512A318 L EE

R2021F11 H208 AEBENUIB & KELD
AR®700,000cHEEEFREERRAE
RArR ([EEFREE]) Z100% # &
EEAEENBRARIREETRTREE &
B ANREN17,724,0007¢ ([EF])FEH
(—ZBUE=H) EEPRBPBEETSH
ERERENRREERIHE At AEBE X
FEERPRBENEHIRE-

39.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

On 20 November 2021, the Group disposed of 100% equity
interest in EEH REEMRBABR A E (Chongging Civigas
Lianhua Co., Ltd.* (“Chongging Civigas Lianhua”)) at cash
consideration of approximately RMB700,000 and assigned a
debt due to Chongqing Civigas Lianhua by the subsidiary of
the Company (the “Debt”) of approximately RMB17,724,000 to
the purchaser, an independent third party. Chongqging Civigas
Lianhua was principally engaged in the sales and distribution of
cylinder gas. As a result, the Group lost control on Chongging
Civigas Lianhua.

EEFTPRBENHERNRZEEFEERE

The aggregate net assets of Chongqging Civigas Lianhua as at

the date of disposal were as follows: R
RMB'000
AREF T
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 66
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 201
Inventories FE 1,388
Trade and other receivables (including the Debt) ZEREMEWIE (BIEER) 19,188
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFEEE 273
Trade and other payables B 5 & Hth e 5E (1,849)
Lease liabilities HEARE (282)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 18,985
Cash consideration He&KE 700
Assignment of the Debt B2 (S 17,724
Loss on disposal HEBE 561
Net cash inflow on disposal: PEEEZHESRAFE:
Cash consideration received BUIRENR(E 700
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEHRKIRS (273)
427

*  For identification purpose only
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40.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

£2 B 71 & |8 37 57 B 2 om A IR 2~ &] (Kunming Shengjian
Hengtong Gas Products Co., Ltd.*) (“Kunming Shengjian”)

On 1 March 2022, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into equity transfer agreement
to acquire 70% equity interest in Kunming Shengjian
from the shareholders of Kunming Shengjian at the total
consideration of RMB9,352,000. Kunming Shengjian was
established in the PRC with limited liability and principally
engaged in the sale and distribution of cylinder gas with
aggregate fair value at the date of acquisition amounting
to RMB13,378,000. The transactions were completed
and the Group obtained control in Kunming Shengjian in
March 2022.

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

A0 EFEE

(a)

HZE2022F12A8310 L5 E

B2 EEREERFRAR (£

BHFrE]l)

MR2022F3A818  AAR—HEE2
BENBARR R EEERE AA
ERARZZBRRWEERAEZ70%
AR BR(ERARKI,352,000
TLeBRARARPREFEMEKLZE
RBAR MEBRBHEERDHBE
MR RIEEHBHEBARESER
AR #13,378,0000T * 5% HEX 52 7
BN AREE D R2022463 A RS EHA
T2 2 12 5l 4 o

Consideration transferred: BB (E
RMB'000
AREF T
Cash e 9,352

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

RUKES B EIE K A R R A
mT

RMB'000

AREF T

Property, plant and equipment W BB K& 10,966
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E ith e W EkIE 3,610
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 443
Inventories FE 2,542
Trade and other payables 5 NE M ENSFRIE (4,183)
13,378

*  For identification purpose only
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

40.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

A B AR EEE m B R A Al (Kunming Shengjian
Hengtong Gas Products Co., Ltd.*) (“Kunming Shengjian”)
(Continued)

Acquisition-related cost amounting to approximately
RMB26,000 have been excluded from consideration
transferred have been recognised as an expense in the
Year, within the "administrative expense" line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value and the gross contractual amount of trade
and other receivables at the date of acquisition were
RMB3,610,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
was RMBnil.

Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition:

(a)

40. TS Ft )

FHF2022512A31B L FE (&)

BT EBREERARLAA ([2
Bl (&)

Ik BE AR RE AL AN 49 A R #526,000T 2 B
EEREFIR URAFEELAE
BakEtrmb=sR [THRAS] A

RKERH B5 kEMEWKIEZ
ARERELNRTEHSARE3,610,000
JCo FAUKEE B ER - TR 2 IINAY & 4
REMENZEMTAARBSE Lo

WEBEE 4 2 B B U et

RMB'000
ARET T
Cash consideration paid for acquisition EKRE70% KM 2 ReRE
of 70% share 9,352
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired  J& : B 42B8E70% /% 1D 2 A 3 B & = FE
of 70% share ZARE (9,363)

Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of Kunming
Shengjian is recognised in profit or loss within the “other
gains and losses" line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Kunming Shengjian:

(1n

WEEATEZNZBUBRENES
BEMEME2EREHRRO [HAAUK
mMEIE] HB AR R ER -

WEEAAZZRS R FE:

RMB'000

ARETF T

Cash consideration paid BENRERE 9,352
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B EWERERRESFHEER (443)
8,909

*  For identification purpose only
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40.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

£2 B 71 & |8 37 57 B 2 om A IR 2~ &] (Kunming Shengjian
Hengtong Gas Products Co., Ltd.*) (“Kunming Shengjian”)
(Continued)

Included in the profit for the Year was loss of
approximately RMB694,000 attributable to the
consolidation of the profit of Kunming Shengjian after
the acquisition date. Revenue of Kunming Shengjian for
the Year includes approximately RMB4,195,000 generated
from Kunming Shengjian.

Had the acquisition of Kunming Shengjian been
completed on 1 January 2022, total group revenue
for the Year would have been approximately
RMB2,868,081,000 and profit for the Year would have
been RMB58,707,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2022, nor is it
intended to be projection of future results.

*  For identification purpose only

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

40. TS Ft )

(a)

#FHF2022512A31B L FE (&)

B2 EEREERFRAR (£

AEEMNBEARKEBBHRERE
ERAERGEIMEEZEBEEREOAR
#694,0007T AN F E B B A+ & 1 UL
ABRBEERAZREENDARE
4,195,0007T

fis U B8 B2 BA FH 32 72202241 A1H =
B ARFEAREB WA RER BL
AR 2 868,081,0007T RN E 7 %%
R B #) A R #58,707,0007T © % &
ZEREHKFARSR T —EXRT
W 202251 B1B =R IE R FARE
EEBRRESZWRARKEEESE  TT
HERARIRFELE 2 TAM

v
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On 3 November 2020, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into equity transfer
agreement to acquire 89.41% equity interest in 4t & BB
BF 45 R AR D B R 2 7] (Beijing Ye Lang Chu Fang
Network Technology Co., Ltd* (“Ye Lang Chu Fang”)
formerly known as Jt REFIFHABBEROBR A
7] Beijing Zi Jing Xin Rui Network Technology Co., Ltd*)
(the “Acquisition”) from the shareholders of Ye Lang Chu
Fang at the total consideration of RMB4,782,000. Ye Lang
Chu Fang was established in the PRC with limited liability
and principally engaged in the information transmission,
software and IT services and the issued shares of which
are quoted on the trading platform operated by the
NEEQ (stock code: 837863.NEEQ). Before the Acquisition,
another indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired 10.59% equity interest in Ye Lang
Chu Fang in August 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the Acquisition had not been completed. The 10.59%
equity interest in Ye Lang Chu Fang held by the Group at
31 December 2020 was classified as equity instruments
at FVTOCI. 40.33% equity interest in Ye Lang Chu Fang
under the Acquisition was completed in January 2021 and
together with the 10.59% equity interest already held by
the Group as at 31 December 2020, the Group obtained
control in Ye Lang Chu Fang in January 2021.

Consideration transferred:

Cash e

*  For identification purpose only

R2020F 11 A3 - AR A — M E#E
EEWB ARG M REE R E N
Bt R REBEHEBEREBRGERA
A ([RERET 3] - BB 4b B R 5 851
WEREBROHABRAT) ZREKE
REBETI Y 289.41%#E  BRE A A
R #4,782,0007C ([WHESEIE]) - &
BRETHh A — MR B 2B R
REl REEREEEER THR
BRI - EEETROARE ZH
KENR ST A EHRE (RERS:
837863.NEEQ) o A Uk i = 18 2 Al -
ARES—HEEEZEWBERARER
20208 A W FE R BB BF 5 2 10.59%
A% 4 - 73202012 A31H - W £ 18
iR e Ak o M20205F 12 A31H - K&
B AT RECE 3 210.59% K EE o
HABRARBEFAEMEEKE 2 #
m T B WEEEIFIE TRREBES 2
40.33%B% 4 2 7202141 A £ 0 BA
NiERAREBR2020F12 A31HE#
B.210.59% k- NEE D 1K20214
1 B BUAS TR B BT 35 2 12 ) 4 o

EERRE:

RMB’000
ARETT

4,782
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40.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
bR & BB BT A48 BHE R (0 B R 2~ Al (Beijing Ye Lang Chu
Fang Network Technology Co., Ltd*) (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

40. TS Ft )

(b)

HZE2021512A31B L FE (&)
It R BB BT #9485 Bl IR 17 B BR 2 &)

(#&)

REBEAHERBEERERRAR
LI

RMB'000

AR®T T

Property, plant and equipment M HEREE 23
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E qth Uk 5RIE 2,246
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 1,506
Trade and other payables B 5 NE M ENFRIE (1,529)
2,246

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB180,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recoginsed as an expense in
the nine months ended 31 December 2020, within the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value and the gross contractual amount of trade
and other receivables at the date of acquisition were
RMB2,246,000 and RMB1,552,000 respectively. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected was RMB1,552,000.

*  For identification purpose only

Uk B AR B AR 49 AR 180,000 E
FTABEEAE  WHREE2020F 128
31HIENERBRAGFRE Ba REM
PERERTTHRAX ] BTHMAS -

REAE 5 kE M EKFHIE
ZARBERAEHNBEBES B AEARE
2,246,000 & A R #1,552,0007T °
RKWEAH BRI RENE LR
EMENREMGTTAARE1,552,000
Lo
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

40.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 40. TS Ft )

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) (b) #HZE2021F12H31BLLEE (&)
b RREBET L A84E B AR (7 B R 2 A] (Beijing Ye Lang Chu b R B ET I A0 45 FH 2 IR 17 B R 2 /]
Fang Network Technology Co., Ltd*) (Continued) (#&)
Premium charged for the NEEQ status arising on RERGRAMEECWERES
acquisition: A :
RMB'000
ARET T

Cash consideration paid for acquisition of 89.41% 211 Ukf&89.41% 2 IR & K (E

share 4,782
Plus: carrying amount of 10.59% share mn:RKEEEARNEAZ10.59%
purchased before acquisition day Z BRE S5 318
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired B EWERIHBAEEFEZARE (2,246)
2,854
The premium paid is recognised in profit or loss in other B EERER A E M S & EE
gains and losses. PR e
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Ye Lang Chu Fang: W B 7R BB BT Hh 2 3R <8 7 (V8
RMB'000
AREF T
Cash consideration paid BENRESRE 4,782
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W EWEReRIRESEFHEEE (1,506)
3,276
Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December HZE2021F12A31BEFEZ & E
2021 was profit of approximately RMB1,447,000 FEE R W B BR 18 456 R BB BT 570k A
attributable to the consolidation of the profit of Ye i 2 A& 2 s M #) A R #51,447,0007T
Lang Chu Fang after the acquisition date. Revenue of HE2021F12A31B LFE BB H
Ye Lang Chu Fang for the year ended 31 December P WA K A A R #1,515,0007T © )R
2021 amounted to approximately RMB1,515,000. BREF 3 2 WiE FIHE M2021F1 A 5T
The acquisition of Ye Lang Chu Fang was completed X - R BP BF &k 22021412 4318
in January 2021 and the results of Ye Lang Chu Fang HFEZEBRCEASRAEAEEZ
for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been fully FEZFEE-

consolidated to the Group's results for that year.

*  For identification purpose only
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41.ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS AND OTHER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBSIDIARY

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 F b R 57w B2 A R 2 &] (Shandong Zhongmin Gas Co.,
Ltd. *) (“Shandong Zhongmin”) (formally known as £ £
FERBERAGRLNA)

On 15 September 2022, It T RESMRER A F
(Beijing Zhongmin Tongjin Gas Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing Zhongmin
Tongjin”) and ;AT E R RIMLKBRAE (Henan Civigas Co.,
Ltd.) (“Henan Civigas”), indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company entered into a capital injection agreement,
which Beijing Zhongmin Tongjin and Henan Civigas have to
contribute RMB 13,530,600 to Shandong Zhongmin, which
amounting to RMB8,224,500 is contributed in cash by
Beijing Zhongmin Tongjin and amounting to RMB5,306,100
is contributed in property, plant and equipment by Henan
Civigas, representing 51% of equity interests (on the
enlarged basis). The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
did not constitute a business combination as defined
in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and therefore, the
acquisition was accounted for as assets acquisition.

*  For identification purpose only

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

41 FEPUNEE — R E AT
it B = tth {55 FA A I L ftb
BEURER

(a)

HZE2022F12A8318 L E

WERFRRBAERAA ([WWRFPLE])
(FIBEZTEHBERABFRAF)

R2022F9 8158 At R RRIEMRT
BRAF ([HERFRESR]) & H
RMRERAB (RRAHEEEEN
BAR) (DHEFR])FTIEEER
AR-EFIEFFRAESMIEFR
FEM LR A RFE ARY13,530,600
gt (H i AR#8,224,5007T L R A
RAEURESFEXNTEURARE
5,306,100 C R A A R R A 2% - IR 5
REHEEEE) (h51% s (RK
BWAEE) -FTINBEEERFTEAEAR
WK BB TSRS ERI S35 [
BAEFIRAEZ —BEBAH Bt
ZUEE A BRIIEE EULEE -
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

41.ACQUISITION OF LAND USE A BEBWE—RENE R
RIGHTS AND OTHER ASSETS AND W B £ 3tb {58 7 2 H 1ib
> ~ ==
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION BEEURERE @
OF A S U BS' DlARY (Continued)
(a) For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) (a) HZE2022F12831BLLEE (&)
L R m B2 A R A A] (Shandong Zhongmin Gas Co., WERFARREERA AR ([LLRFE])
Ltd. *) (“Shandong Zhongmin”) (formally known as £ & ( B 78 B8 55 rh i B B3 1 B B R 2 &)
th & 1% B) B 1% 8] B R 2 7)) (Continued) (#&)
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the Group REBRTERZBESHEERARSH
in the transaction upon completion of the acquisition i v BERIAE 2 BFEERT
were as follows:
RMB’000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk 9,728
Right of use assets ERAEEE 6,125
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E h fE Y kI8 271
Bank overdraft RITEX (18)
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E M EFRIE (350)
15,756
Consideration (Note (a)) RAE (M5E@)) -
Non-controlling interest recognised (Note (b)) BRI (b)) 14,351
Difference arising on acquisition (Note (c)) WHEES 2 =8 (H53E0) 1,405
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W EE 2 IRE ML FHE :
Cash consideration paid BENRESRE -
Add: bank overdraft m:RITEX 18
18

*  For identification purpose only
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41.ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS AND OTHER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBS'D'ARY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

1 F b R 57w B2 A R 2 &] (Shandong Zhongmin Gas Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Shandong Zhongmin”) (formally known as &
hEZE) B 1 )8 B R 2 Fl) (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Consideration of approximately RMB13,531,000 was
injected by the Group in Shandong Zhongmin and hence
eliminated on consolidation in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Non-controlling interests were measured at the acquisition
date at their proportional share in the recognised amounts
of Shandong Zhongmin'’s identifiable net assets (including
the amount of RMB13,530,600 injection of the Group
under the acquisition).

(c)  The difference arising on the acquisition of RMB1,405,000
has been recognised in profit or loss as amount is
immaterial.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Chonggqing Jingtong Xiye

On 12 January 2021, Chongging Xiye, Chongging
Jingtong Xiye and Chongging Jingtong entered into a
capital injection agreement, which Chongging Xiye has
contributed RMB35,000,000 to Chongging Jingtong Xiye,
representing 60.34% of equity interests (on the enlarged
basis). The principal activity of Chongging Jingtong
Xiye is mainly holding a land use rights in PRC with
aggregate fair value at the date of acquisition amounting
to RMB23,000,000. The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed did not constitute a business combination as
defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and therefore,
the acquisition was accounted for as assets acquisition.

*  For identification purpose only

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

41

SEBUEE — M A

U B + th {5 P RE R ELAth
BEEURERE@w

(a)

(b)

#FHE2022512A31B L FE (&)

WERFRRBAERAA ([WWRFPLE])
(FIBEZTEHBERABFRAA)

[ 43
(&)

MsE:

(@) AEEZFERELHARK13,531,000
TRILEREF R ERELEMBHRE
B GHEE B IR 8E o

() RIURPRZIFZEBRERNEKER
BEAELRPRABAFEE (B
BRASEEARERIERESARY
13,530,6007T ) My HERR & BE FH EL P ih
Pt L st & -

(0 WBEBELZZ=% ARK1,405,0007C
ERBEER REAZESBITE
j( °

HZE2021F12A8318 L EE
BESBEEE

R2021F1A12H EEEH BES
BETLREESBLIEEAERA
B - EFEEEHCRERSBEY
SEE AR #35,000,0007T  1560.34%
B (RERAEE) EESERE
FrrE2EFHANTREFE LHER
EoRBBRHEBAARAEAARE
23,000,0007T © fT 45 B & B % B &
BEWTEKE B BREER FE357
[¥BE0] AR E 2 —HEKE G
B I 5z U8 A BR T B & E UK -
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e MEBRME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

41.ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS AND OTHER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBS'D'ARY (Continued)

A1 BB WEE — B E A F
Wt B + th f5F P A R H Atk
EEUREE @

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) (b) #HZE2021F12A31BLLEE (&)
Chonggqing Jingtong Xiye (Continued) BEERBET (8)
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the Group REBERRZ HHR2021F1 A TR Z WK
in the transaction upon completion of the acquisition in BEEHENBCEEREREZBEN
January 2021 were as follows: ™
RMB’000
ARBTT
Leasehold land HE L 23,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFHEEE 500
Other payable H b fE 508 (512)
Net assets of the subsidiary acquired by the Group N&EBUKEEHN B A R~ & EFE 22,988
Consideration (Note (i) KB (M) =
Non-controlling interest recognised (Note (ii)) EHRIEERE R (FIFEG)) 22,998
Difference arising on acquisition (Note (iii)) WrEETHE A ZER (M) 10
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEHEENRSRAFHE:
Cash consideration paid BENRERE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BlWERS MRS EMEEE 500
500
Notes: B 5 -

(i) Consideration of RMB35,000,000 was injected by the
Group in Chongging Jingtong Xiyi and hence eliminated
on consolidation in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Non-controlling interests in Chongqing Jingtong Xiyi were
measured at the acquisition date at their proportional
share in the recognised amounts of Chongging Jingtong
Xiyi's identifiable net assets (including the amount of
RMB35,000,000 cash injected by the Group under the
acquisition).
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41.ACQUISITION OF LAND USE

RIGHTS AND OTHER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBS'D'ARY(Cominued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
Chongging Jingtong Xiye (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)  The difference arising on the acquisition of RMB10,000
has been recognised in profit or loss as amount is
immaterial.

42 .SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

The Group operates a share option scheme for remuneration of
its full-time employees (including directors), consultants, agents
and advisors of the Group.

All services received in exchange for the grant of any share
options are measured at their fair value. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

Share option

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include full-time employees (including
directors), consultants, agents and advisors of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective until 8 September
2026.

41

42.
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As at 31 December 2022, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 694,495,413
(2021: 694,495,413), representing approximately 7.77%
(2021: 7.77%) of the issued share capital of the Company.
Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, and the aggregate number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the "“Offer”). The Share
Option Scheme may be exercised at any time for a period of
ten years commencing from the date of acceptance of the
Offer, subject to the conditions imposed by the board of the
directors. The exercise price of the option shares would be at a
price equal to the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the option; (ii) the average closing prices
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option was granted, exercised or outstanding during
both years.

2022612 A318  IRIFE AR T8I 7T 3%
17 2 M1 48 8 /5694,495,4130% (20214 -
694,495,413/%) "G AR Al B BITAR A4
7.77% (20214F : 7.77% ) > KRG A D A &
RELME  REIRER A TR 2B
SN ZBD BB TEBBEARRRRER
BB BT 2 10% @ il PRI Z A A
FERMERA LR E 2 BIRES &k 2D 48
HINEHBEBAARRNEMERED ZHTRM
Z1% °

BEAREBRES RO A RBEAR RN
ZEEEZEN(TEH])BAGBNRER-
EREREI AN ERMEDHERRI0F
AEAISETE EAXRRESSHENL
Rt - BAAER D 2 TTEERBER T2
BeE: (RN LERE 2 BB e H R
EBRAFIARRRD ZWHE: (NEERH
FERHE 2 B RTSIARR 5 B B AT AT 3R A 1 7]
Bt 2 FEWm B : K EE -
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43.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute defined percentages, ranging from 12% to 25%,
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits in compliance with the applicable regulations of the
PRC.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the rules and regulations of the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HKD 1,500 (2021:
HKD1,500) per month per employee to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is matched by
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions
under the respective schemes above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB 18,460,000 (2021: RMB19,264,000) represents contributions
paid or payable to these schemes by the Group for the Year.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

& M35 R M
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FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

*  For identification purpose only
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS MEBFREALTZREG
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RS MMk EME D PAREE SN K
statements, the Group entered into the following transactions SEEREA TR ARFEANE R T
with related parties during the Year: 5

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Purchase cylinder gas from Yunnan Jiehua BEMBERERAE AR
Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd.* IR (M)
(Note i) 47,869 49,177
Sale of gas to Yunnan Pioneer Chemical MEMEEILIERAFEE
Co., Ltd.* BRI R 2,425 -
Transportation fee paid to Yunnan Panva MEmMEALXERHE 31 =
Rental fee paid to Mile City Xinyuan FMBESHTERRREREELF
Gas Co., Ltd.* SR NEikA 105 -
Rental fee paid to Funing County Fuxiang MEBEENARRBEAES
Oxygen B Express Factory* 100 =
Purchase of cylinder gas from Southwest BERIAMRBEREERR
Panva 4,146 8,632
Purchase of cylinder gas from Yunnan Panva HZEm@ B/ IHRBEEMRE 750 1,263
Purchase of natural gas from Shanxi BREAERARRMNBERA RIERE
Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd.* (Note ii) KA (i) 146,961 133,155
Sale of gas to Xianyang Haihui New Energy  [A] R[5 /8 E#T6EIR A PR A 5 5 S M4
Co., Ltd.* (Note iii) S (Bt aEiii ) 28,855 78,744
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The above transactions were made on terms mutually agreed
between both parties.

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

Yunnan Jiehua Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. is a connected
person of the Company by holding 49% equity interests in
Yunnan Jiehua Civigas Clean Energy Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Jiehua").

These are connected person transactions and details are set out
under the heading of connected transactions in the report of the
directors.

Shanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. is also a connected person
of the Company by holding 40% equity interests in Xi‘an Civigas
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas"), a subsidiary of the Company.

These are connected person transactions and details are set out
under the heading of connected transactions in the report of the
directors.

Xianyang Haihui New Energy Co., Ltd. is also a connected person
of the Company by holding 49% equity interests in Xi‘an Civigas
Haihui New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Haihui”), a subsidiary of the
Company.

These are connected person transactions and details are set out
under the heading of connected transactions in the report of the
directors.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company considered they are the sole
management personnel of the Group, and their remuneration
during the Year is disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The remuneration
of the directors of the Company is recommended by the
remuneration committee to the Board having regard to the
performance of individual and market trends.
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FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

45 .OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45 & & 1 & &I

The Group as lessor EEBEREEA

The Group leased its investment properties, as set out in MAFEREE M B RRMT18AE A K
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this ERESEHETHNEETHSHEMEE
annual report under operating lease arrangements with KREWE LB EHEFHR/IESF -
leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 5 years at fixed RAFERBZUMERSFRARDAR
rental. Net property rental income earned during the Year was #8,664,0007T (20214 : A R #56,249,000
approximately RMB8,664,000 (2021: RMB6,249,000) with ) MHEELZRAX -BHEKRR—KRTE
minimal outgoings. The terms of the leases generally also KHEPFPARRERS -

require the tenants to pay security deposits.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HEE R HEHEENKREIN DT
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Within one year —F A 3,413 3,251
In the second year E4F 1,899 1,837
In the third year B=4F 541 1,287
In the fourth year EJutkeS 320 569
In the fifth year FREF 207 324
6,380 7,268
46.CAPITAL AND OTHER 46. 7N & H M AIE
COMMITMENTS
Capital and other expenditure contracted for but not provided BET4E M ARG AU RERBE BN
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: REMREY
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Purchases of: RS
Property, plant and equipment Wz BB M 16,828 14,605
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15,336 15,054

32,164 29,659
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47.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain assets to banks to secure certain

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

47 B =K #

AEECARTEMETEENRBALE

bank borrowings of the Group. Carrying amounts of the assets EoETRITEE DEPEE CREEN
pledged were as follows: Ik

2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment LENY N 64,475 64,536
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,623 2,715
67,098 67,251

Restrictions on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB15,296,000
(2021: RMB18,173,000) are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of RMB5,355,000 (2021: RMB21,308,000) as at
31 December 2022. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

48.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no significant contingent
liability.

48.

BEERS

BN R2022F12A31H  ERREES
B4 ARE15,296,0007T (20214 : A R
18,173,0007T) RABEE AEEEN AR
5,355,0007T (20214 : A R #21,308,000
L) cBREBAABENHEEEPNIERE
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FEeMBEERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

49.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period includes:

497K 1 B) 1 B FE R O R &

AIRNBEMR A BRAREEBLE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T AREEF T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HE RERE 7 9
Right-of-use assets CREEE - 209
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B BB A &) FRIA 426,113 390,380
426,120 390,598

Current assets MEEE
Other receivables and prepayments H A FE YR IR K T8 3RIE 847 737
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 9,577 16,194
10,424 16,931
Current liabilities mEEE

Other payables H A FE - 50IR 911 1,414
Lease liabilities HEAE - 209
911 1,623
Net current assets mENEEFE 9,513 15,308
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDERE 435,633 405,906

Capital and reserves IR A R R4
Share capital (note 35) A&7 (H$5E35) 564,507 564,507
Reserves L] (128,874) (158,607)
Total equity kg 435,633 405,900

Non-current liability EnRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 6
435,633 405,906
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49.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Note:

The following table sets out the components of the reserves of the

& M35 R M

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H

497K 1 \] 2 B 7 AR O R 5k

(4=
(25 )
(45 )

p

}:_‘A%t

TREIIARRBREEZ BRI D RERANFE R

Company and the movements thereof during the current year and prior BAFE2EE-
year.
Deemed
Share Contributed contribution Capital Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve Contribution losses Total
RHEE BARH RErERE EAES 2itER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 Ra021E1A18 1,003,995 104,932 2628 1701 (867,669) 275,608
Deemed contribution arising on HENBAAZERR
intra-group disposal of subsidiaries  RAELZAETE - - (422,514) - - (422,514)
Deemed contribution arising from EUHBARSEZBEFSES
imputed interest on amounts due from 2B {EEE
subsidiaries - - (29412) - - (29.412)
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FREHI & 2 AMELE
for the year - - - - 17,11 17,11
At 31 December 2021 Ra0215128318 1,003.9% 104,932 (4252%) 77 (649.957) (158,607)
Deemed contribution arising from EUMBLRRGEZ HENSES
imputed interest on amounts due ZBIETE
from subsidiaries - - (3,765) - - (3,765)
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FREHI R 2 AMALE
for the year - - - - 33,498 33,498
At 31 December 2022 K225 12831A 1,003.9% 104,932 (429.03) 771 (616,459) (128874)

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company's shares issued and the value of net assets
of the underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

The deemed contribution reserve mainly represents the deemed
contribution on disposal of subsidiaries and deemed contribution
arising from imputed interest on amounts due from subsidiaries. During
the year, Beijing Civigas, a subsidiary directly and wholly owned by the
Company previously, was transferred to Chinese People Gas Holdings
Company Limited, a subsidiary directly and wholly owned by the
Company.

BABREARADHITRHMAERD K
BHEENBARZEEFEZEZR -RIER
REI1BIFRANE (BIER]) RRENRT
BRI AR BABRE IR SR ALE X
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

A == —
50.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES S50.EEME AT
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 M2022%12A31H &2021612H318 - &
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows: RRAIZEEWNBRRFHEOT
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company*## establishment share capital Group's effective interest ~ Held by the Company directly  Held by the Company indirectly Principal activities
AL/
PR RI%E BRAIRERRE AREERER RELTERER BELABEER IEER
wm m 02 01 0 m
bl MIE Pl WE Pl M
bzt PRC 1$D60,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Beijing Civigas) e 60,000,000 72 RARR
mhRRERERRAT PRC RMB300,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Sichuan Civigas Investment Co, Ltd) ] AR#300,000,00070 REBHE
IreRA PRC RMB152,222,200 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Befing Zhongmin Tongjin HE ANRE152,222,200%0 RERR
REARRARRERAR PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Tianjin Civigas Technology Co, Ltd) Bl AR 100,000,000 FERR
IRRREFRTEHERARAN PRC RMB113,040,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Beijing Zhongmin Ruoja hE (2021: RMB108,360,000) FERR
Supermarket Chain Management ARH113,040,00070
Limited) (2001%:
AR108,360,0007C)
HehRMRARAA PRC? RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Yanting Civigas Co,, Ltd.) hE ARE20,000,0007 fEEERS
BIHRERERAR PRC? RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Mianzhu Civigas Co,, Ltd) hE AR&70,000,0007 fEZERS
BUTERRAREARALRA MWC RMB15,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Mianzhu City Long Teng Gas hE ARE15,000,0007 REEERA
Installation Co, Ltd)
BImERRRRARAR PRC? RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural B¢ AEE10,000,0007 REEERA
Gas Co, Ltd)
TNEARRRERAR PRCt RMB16,762,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas
(Beichuan County Cvigas Co, Ltd) Bl AKE16,762,0007 REEERA
ERPRIABRAR PRCt RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas
(Chongging Civigas Co, Ltd.) e (2021: RMB44,080,000) HEZERT
AEE70,000,0007
(201
AR 44,080,0007)
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

AY
: a5 = | 7=
50.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) S0.EEZME QA @
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company*#* establishment share capital Group's effective interest ~ Held by the Company directly  Held by the Company indirectly Principal activities
AL/
RS iAokt BRRERRE AEERRER HELIERER HELARERR TERE
2022 20 2022 20 2022 20
WnE MIE WnE ME W0F Wi

ERPRERIZNABRAR  MmC RMB2,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Provision of piped gas

{Chongging Civigas Fugiang hE ARE2,000,0007 fEEERS
Industrial Gas Co, Ltd.)

ERPRAGEENAERAR  MmC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Provision of piped gas

{Chongging Civigas Xiangyang hE ARE10,000,0007 fEEERS
Compressed Gas Co,, Ltd.)

ETEARIRARDA PRC’ RMB30,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60% Provision of piped gas

{Fuping Chvigas Co,, Ltd) hEH (2021: RMB10,000,000) fEEERS

ABR30,000,0007
(20m1%:
ARE10,000,0007C)

il PRC RMB62,080,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Provision of piped gas

(Xi'an Civigas) HE AFR#62,080,00070 HEEENS

ENegBETRIAERERALR PRC RMBA0,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas

(Guizhou Province Zhengfeng County Bl AR &40,000,0007 EEEERS
Ping'an Gas Co,, Ltd)

ERE PRC RMB5,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51% - Gas distribution

{Xi'an Haihui) A ARH5,000,0007 fRE%

BEtRERERAR PRC RMB26,000,000 55% 55% - - 55% 55%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(TfEhR]) e ARE26,000,000T BERAHERNR "
(Hunan Civigas Co, Ltd,) Tg %
(*Hunan Civigas") =

£

HATRMRARAR PRC RMB10,000,000 28.05% 28.05% - - 28.05% 28.05%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas -
([HBRR]) e AR10,000,000T BERDBREMR

(Xupu Civigas Co., Ltd.*

("Xupu Civigas")

SHhE PRC RMB66,260,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Sales and distribution of cylinder gas

(Yunnan Civigas) e A 66,260,00070 HERAHREMA

BEARMEARAA PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas

(Baise Civigas Co, Ltd.) HE ARE10,000,0007 HERAHEERA
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T == — =
50.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) S0.EEZMHME QA @
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company*##* establishment share capital Group's effective interest ~ Held by the Company directly  Held by the Company indirectly Principal activities
HhAL/
DRAR i hkcH3 BRARMERE AREERER HALRERKE HALRBERE 354
202 201 2022 20 2022 20
W0F WME W0F WiE W0F Wi
ERPRIRARAA PRC RMB12,353,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Guangdong Chvigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARE12,353,0007 HERDHERAR
REHEHRMAHERRAT  PRC RMB6,640,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distributon of cylinder gas
(Tianjin Ji County Civigas Co, Ltd) Bl AR 6,640,007 HERDHEENR
REREREARBENRARLA PRC RMB16,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Tianjin Binhai New Ditrct Civigas ARE16,000,0007 HERDHREMR
(o, Ltd)
AHRREARAA PRC RMB15,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Hebei Civigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARE15,0000007 HERDHREMR
AEHR PRC RMB13,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
Henan Civigas e ARE13,0000007 HERDHREMR
ENHRMEERAA PRC RMB500,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Guizhou Civigas Co, Ltd) e AB500,0007 HERAHERNR
REARMEARAA PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% - - 60% 60%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Changshun Civigas Co,, Ltd) HE ARES,000,0007 HERDHEENR
REARERMAERAR PRC RMB32,500,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Tianjin Civigas Heng'an Gas Co,, Ltd) Bl ARE32,500,0007 ANHEANES
REMZEEENDRARAT™  PRC RMB3,010,000 0% 100% - - 0% 100%  FMCG and food ingrediint supply
(Tianjin Yun Ze De Botechnology Bl ARE3,010,0007 RNREAES
I.td‘)”m
ERNEX PRC RMB55,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Chongaing Yubaija) HE AR 55,000,00070 RIREAES
EREREENARREREERE PRC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingrecient supply
BEAAT il AR10,000,000T RIEAES

(Chongging Grain Group Yubajia
Agricultural Technology
Development Co,, Ltd.)

ERMEELMIAARERLR PRC RMB1,789,390 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingrediient supply
(Chongaing Keweia Logisics hE ARE1,789,3907 RIEENES

Distribution Co., Ltd.)
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AY
: a5 = = =
50.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) S0.EEZME QA @
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company*#* establishment share capital Group's effective interest ~ Held by the Company directly  Held by the Company indirectly Principal activities
HRL/
DRAR iAokt BRARAERE AREERER HALRERKE HALREERE 354
2022 20 2022 20 2022 20
WnE MIE W0E Wi W0F Wi
EEETESERAR PRC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Chongging Huiguan Trading Co,, Bl AR 10,000,0007 RNREAES
Ltd)
ERTRERMEEERARAT  PRC RMB10,000,000 53.50% 53.50% - - 53.50% 53.50%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Chongging Zhongmin Ruojia Supply R El AR E10,000,0007 RNEEANES
Chain Management Limited)
ERE PRC RMB20,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Distibution and supply of
(Yunnan Jiehuz) k| ABE20,000,0007 dimethorymethane and

wholesale of cylinder gas
AEREE_REETS

REBEY PRC RMB,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Information transmission, software and
Ye Lang Chu Fang H AR 86,000,000 IT services
EEEE AN RITRE

ERRRENEEARAN PRC RMB58,000,000 100% 60.34% - - 100% 60.34%  property investments and operation and
(Chongging Jingtong Xiye L ARE58,000,00070 other related business
Industrial Co, Lt MEREREENRELABRE
WEHR PRC RVB18,000,000 51% - - - 51% ~ Sales and distrioution of cylinder gas
Shandorg Zhogrin 48 ARR16,0000007 BERABEENT
=8
-E E
BHfE PRC RMB13,360,000 0% - - - 70% - Sales and disrbuton of cyinder gas
Kunming Shengjan e ARH133600007 HERARRENA -
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

50.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. E;cﬁﬁ%’l\\ a) (&)

# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC. RABEMZ I EEERE-

# Sino-foreign joint equity enterprise registered in the PRC. o R EEMRINEERE

e Xupu Civigas is a 51% subsidiary of Hunan Civigas. As a result, # R RAME R RS %ESME AR -
the total effective interest held by the Group in Xupu Civigas is Bt "EERBREFRFBEZEERE
28.05%.  £428.05% ©

#hth Deregistered during the Year. it RNARFEANEFHER

R English translated names are for identification only. S 2 AR B -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during FAREZR ir%% BN RS mBITE

the Year and at the end of both years. AIEBBE %

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their FHAEHBAREZEES BT

respective place of incorporation/establishment. S/ PR AL B AR o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, RAREERB LRI ARG 2B

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally RAEAEB  EEREEFEBEERNY

affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give details ZoRHEEMHBARZFE  ~AAFE

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of ERREFEERBRITEK -

the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

S1EEERFEEZERERZ
I EEBMNE R AF

1

TRINNEREAFERBRE ZAKEFE

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling EERENBRARFS:
interests:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and Profit (loss)
and principal voting rights held by attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
IR FEREEREZHAR
WEARERE ITERNY BERRZELH FERERELE (FR) ZitkERER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
202F WNE 2022% W1E ANE W021%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARBTT
Hunan Civigas PRC
MR i 45% 45% 3,406 1,780 18,480 15,191
Xi‘an Civigas PRC
BRHR hE 49% 49% 12,798 13,395 93,831 100,633
Xupu Civigas PRC
AT R HE 71.95% 71.95% 2,361 3,542 18,080 18,597
Yunnan Jiehua PRC
ZhRt R 49% 49% 919 (1,603) 17,282 19310 [
Chongging Jingtong Xiye PRC s
ERRBRE hE 0% 39.66% 30 (1,016) - 29 =
Fuping Civigas PRC
RS i 40% 40% 1,818 18 28,367 18,549
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
BREARER BUKEANBLA 4,467 3,156 57,509 40,177
25,799 19272 233,519 235,039
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

STERERFERER Z

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE FEE %&ﬁﬁﬁ?@ Gk
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 1% @)

|NTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the BEEEREEREE  SAEEH B AR
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests 2B EREEES AT o T3 8 75 & R
is set out below. The summarised financial information below ZERESERNARMEEKIEN S/

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

(i) Hunan Civigas

(i) HEHPE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests
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mBEE 34,085 9,983
FERBEE 51,413 54,546
ok IR=Ri (44,432) (30,772)
ANEHE ANEGER

22,586 18,566
FEVE A HE 2 18,480 15,191




51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBERERME

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

()

Hunan Civigas (Continued)

S1EEERFEEZERERZ

FEEREWB QA

1% (m)

(i) MEHE(E)

2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETF T
Revenue WA 105,398 75,899
Expenses > (97,830) (71,944)
Profit for the year N Z i T 7,568 3,955
Total comprehensive income for the year 74 [ 2 M U 25 4258 7,309 4,010
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN2A &) #E A A &1l 2 i 7 4,162 2,215
Profit attributable to the non-controlling  JE4% A% 4 25 FE 15 2 % 7
interests 3,406 1,780
Profit for the year RE 7,568 3,955
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A% 48 25 2 A% & - 6,750
s
Net cash generated from operating KEXEBEE IR S5 g
activities 6,424 4,698 £
Net cash generated from investing REEHELEZRSFHE
activities 5,105 5,578
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEBMA R /558 - (15,000)
Net cash inflow (outflow) HemA ORl) F8E 11,529 (4,724)

FRERBRAT 35
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31 December 2022 2022%12HA31H

51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY S1EEE RFEIERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2 EEEMHE R E
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 ()
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(i) Xi'an Civigas (ii) AZHFR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Current assets mEEE 122,439 151,099
Non-current assets ERBEE 217,183 210,756
Current liabilities mEAaE (148,130) (156,479)

Equity attributable to owners of the KRGS AEMLER
Company 97,661 104,743

Non-controlling interests FEVE IR = 93,831 100,633
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31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

S1EEERFEEZERERZ

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

FEEREWB QA

1% (m)

(i) Xi'an Civigas (Continued) (ii) ALZHFERE(E)
2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETF T
Revenue A 238,221 198,081
Expenses Fx (212,105) (170,746)
Profit for the year AN A 26,116 27,335
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANRA G HEA A 1L 2% F &
attributable to owners of the Company & U z5 4258 13,318 13,940
Profit and total comprehensive income — FE#%E A% 4 25 FE (h 2 55 FI| &
attributable to the non-controlling ek
interests 12,798 13,395
Profit and total comprehensive income N4 &% 5| & 2
for the year W 2% 4858 26,116 27,335
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {5 F 3 A% #E 25 2 I% B 19,600 9,800
v
=8
.g P
Net cash (used in) generated from KEERE (FTR)EAZ =
operating activities IR & F R (37.313) 57,069 =
Net cash generated from (used in) BEEHESLE (FTH)Z
investing activities IR &R 92,478 (32,407)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEESMAZRSFE (92,000) (19,203)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Re Ond) mRAFE (36,835) 5,459
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY S1BEBERFEERERZ
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE ZEEEWE R B
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 )
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(iii) Xupu Civigas (iii) BEFE
2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETT

Current assets mEEE 14,408 13,346
Non-current assets ERBEE 13,396 14,082
Current liabilities mEAE (2,675) (1,581)

Equity attributable to owners of the KRGS AEMLER
Company 7,049 7,250

Non-controlling interests FEVE IR = 18,080 18,597
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY S1EEE RFEIERERZ
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2EEEME R E
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 ()
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(iii) Xupu Civigas (Continued) (iii) BEPE (EF)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Revenue A 47,206 44,276
Expenses > (43,924) (39,329)
Profit for the year N Z i T 3,282 4,947

Profit and total comprehensive income — ANA A #EA A &L 2 5 F &

attributable to owners of the Company 2 Wz 4258 921 1,405
Profit and total comprehensive FEPE AR A 25 A 2 0m T
income attributable to the ek
non-controlling interests 2,361 3,542
Profit and total comprehensive REERNREE2ME
income for the year I #5485 3,282 4,947
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 F FE4E AR A 25 2 AL B 2,878 4,317
i
c
Net cash generated from operating activities 4% & ¥ #§E 4 2 IR & F 5 5,022 5,836 =
Net cash used in investing activities WEFBMACR &5 - (130)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEESMAZRSFE (4,000) (6,000)
Net cash inflow (outflow) RemA ORit) F5E 1,022 (294)
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY S1EEE RFEIERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2 EEEMHE R E
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 ()
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (iv) EZEE@BEtRENEB QT
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETE

Current assets mEEE 26,330 40,841
Non-current assets IERBEE 14,778 21,001
Current liabilities mENBE (20,233) (38,506)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (146) (423)

Equity attributable to owners of the KRGS AELER
Company 3,477 3,603

Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 17,252 19,310
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 51.%‘&%%1:#@%%57&3
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE EEEBNE QA
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 ()
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (Continued) (iv) EEBEtERENBEAR (&)
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Revenue WA 134,469 91,627
Expenses 53 (133,504) (94,397)
Profit (loss) for the year REEmF (EE) 965 (2,770)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive RANBHEA A Z % F
income (expense) attributable to (B8 ke2mEkz=s
owners of the Company (ZH)#zE 46 (1,167)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive JEPERR R B 2w A (E18)
income (expense) attributable to the kemEmkzs () 4%
non-controlling interests 9219 (1,603)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive AEEaF (EE) &
income (expense) for the year PEHE (ZH)EE 965 (2,770)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 15 F 3F#5 i A 25 = B% B 2,977 5,163
Net cash generated from operating BEEBELE R 55 o
activities 5,436 3,228 S =
2
Net cash generated from (used in) WERSELE (FTA)Z
investing activities REFHE 2,190 (735)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMA R © /%5 (8,534) (5,600)
Net cash outflow IR & F5E (908) (3.107)
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY STHEEEARGFERERZ
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE FEERBNE QA
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 1% @)
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(v) Chongging Jingtong Xiye (v) EESEEYH
2021
20214F
RMB’000
AREF T
Current assets mENE E 26,348
Non-current assets IERBEE 29,611
Current liabilities mENa & (533)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AA &% A A E(HEZS 33,444
Non-controlling interests IEVE IR = 21,982
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 51 B EAFERER >
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE FEERBMBE QA
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 1% @)
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(v) Chongqing Jingtong Xiye (Continued) vy EESERY (&)
1 January FZr(;)Zr; 1 January '2:[;72”1‘

to 31 March 2022 to 31 December 2021
#2022F1818ZE #®2021F1A1BE
202293A31H  2021%12A831H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR¥ETTT

Other income HAb WA 425 -
Expenses X (351) (2,562)
Profit (loss) for the year AEEmH (EE) 74 (2,562)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive ZANA & #EH A FE1G 2 Y% A

income (expense) attributable to (1) Reamis (ZE)

owners of the Company 4858 44 (1,546)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive FE42 I 4 25 & {5 2 0% 7l

income (expense) attributable to () REmkas

the non-controlling interests () 4@z 30 (1,016)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive A EEH (F5E) R2MH
income (expense) for the year e (i) 4288 74 (2,562)

B8

=
o
o]
f=
(]
=
i

Dividends paid to non-controlling 15 F 3EiZ i i 25 2 A% B,
interests - -

Net cash generated from (used in) EEEBEL (FFH)Z
operating activities ReF5E 74 (2,562)

Net cash inflow (outflow) ReRA R ) F5E 74 (2,562)
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY S1EEE RFEIERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2 EEEMHE R E
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 )
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(vi) Fuping Civigas (vi) E¥FR
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETE

Current assets mENE E 32,767 19,933
Non-current assets IERBEE 81,622 81,112
Current liabilities mEEE (43,472) (54,672)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - -

Equity attributable to owners of the KRGS AELER
Company 42,550 27,824

Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 28,367 18,549
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51.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

| NTE R ESTS (Continued)

(vi) Fuping Civigas (Continued)

S1EEERFEEZERERZ

(vi) EFHE (&)

I EEBMNE R AF
15 (@)

2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AREF T
Revenue WA 82,901 71,838
Expenses = (78,357) (71,792)
Profit for the year EINCERi T 4,544 46
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANRA G HEH A 1L 2% F &
(expense) attributable to owners of EE (X H)EE
the Company 2,726 28
Profit and total comprehensive income — 3E4% A% 4 25 FE 1l 2 i 7 &%
(expense) attributable to the non- 2mEkE () @5
controlling interests 1,818 18
Profit and total comprehensive (expense) ZN4F & M 2m () W
income for the year P 4,544 46
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 F FE4% A A 25 2 AL B - =
Net cash (used in) generated from LEER (TA)EEZ =
operating activities HE R (11,978) 4,403 E
Net cash used in investing activities WEFBMACR©F5 (1,399) (3,730)
Net cash generated from (used in) BMEEHESLE (FTH)Z
financing activities He 55 13,280 (2,380)
Net cash outflow e FE (97) (1,707)
+ Y
52.EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 52 SRS IE

The Group has no significant events after reporting period.

AEBYERERERER-
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMRBER

For the nine
months
For the year ended
ended 31 December 31 December  For the year ended 31 March
BZ128318 #ZE12A318
t5E LE9fE A HE3ANALEE
2022 2021 2020 2020 2019
20224 20214 20204 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTT ARETT AR®Tr ARETR
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 2,867,697 2,731,601 1,747,553 2,232,600 1,955,486
Profit before tax BR 5 A A 74,762 184,510 168,758 242,165 238,931
Income tax credit (expense) FEHEE (%) (16,073) 2,543 (24,057) (25,644) (23,227)
Profit for the year/period KEE /BRERF 58,689 187,053 144,701 216,521 215,704
Profit for the year/period THEEEFE/ BERT :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAEAA 32,890 167,781 107,906 182,629 174,325
Non-controlling interests R ER 25,799 19,272 36,795 33,892 41,379
58,689 187,053 144,701 216,521 215,704
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERSE 3,603,306 3,579,584 3,536,600 3,255,315 3,093,284
Total liabilities BERS (620,608) (642,464) (710,314) (594,923) (603,305)
Net assets BEFE 2,982,698 2,937,120 2,826,286 2,660,392 2,489,979
Equity attributable to owners ALREHE AEEER
of the Company 2,749,179 2,702,081 2,590,199 2,452,611 2,272,384
Non-controlling interests RS 233,519 235,039 236,087 207,781 217,595
Total equity R 2,982,698 2,937,120 2,826,286 2,660,392 2,489,979
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Principal Activities

ERFRH

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

EEMRBERR

e Construction and operation of city gas pipeline network
HEREEHETMREERG

e Provision of piped gas
REEEMRR

Cylinder Gas Supply Business
MR UHEXE

e Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)

RAE RAR

e Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)
B BBR

e Liquefied Dimethyl Ether (DME)

— AR

AT A

Gas Distribution Business

MR 7 HER

* Purchases a large amount of gas resources from upstream
suppliers and then distributes to other gas operating companies

RERHEBRAAERBARER  2HAEMNRREELE

Food Ingredients Supply and FMCG
BMHERES

e Service to commercial consumers by online and
offline operations supplying fruits and vegetables, fresh produce,
seasoning, dry foods and oil and other ingredients
BRRLRTOBXAFPREMRE - £8 - AWM -
BmERM R
e The community supermarket and convenience stores
HtEEMMERNELE
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